QZ Oadby & Wigston Law & Democracy
&v%@gjm BOROUGH COUNCIL Democratic Services
TO COUNCILLOR:

G A Boulter S Z Haq I K Ridley

C S Gore K J Loydall (Chair)

I summon you to attend the following meeting for the transaction of the business in the agenda below.

Meeting: Audit Committee
Date & Time: Tuesday, 9 December 2025, 6.00 pm
Venue: Civic Suite 2, Brocks Hill Council Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5]]

Special Title:  Extraordinary

Contact: Democratic Services
t: (0116) 257 2775
e: democratic.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Yours faithfully E E

Council Offices 67,-.,,,5 E v .
Oadby -
01 December 2025 E
Anne E Court
Chief Executive Meeting ID: 3029
ITEM NO. AGENDA PAGE NO’'S

Meeting Live Broadcast | Information and Link

This meeting will be broadcast live.

Press & Public Access:

A direct link to the live broadcast of the meeting's proceedings on the Council's
Civico platform is below.

https://civico.net/oadby-wigston/22977-Audit-Committee

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence from Members to determine the quorum of the
meeting in accordance with Rule 7 of Part 4 of the Constitution.

2. Appointment of Substitutes

Postal Address: Brocks Hill Coundil Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 51]

w
e :,_) Refuse & Recyding Centre: The Depot, Wigston Road, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5JE
=
egg Telephone: (0116) 288891 Email: customer.services@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
m>‘d ARMED FORCES
8§§ ,; COVENANT oadby-wigston.gov.uk o OadbyWigstonBC o @Oadby_Wigston

~Page 1~


https://civico.net/oadby-wigston/22977-Audit-Committee

To appoint substitute Members in accordance with Rule 26 of Part 4 of the
Constitution and the Substitution Procedure Rules.

3. Declarations of Interest

Members are reminded that any declaration of interest should be made having
regard to the Members’ Code of Conduct. In particular, Members must make
clear the nature of the interest and whether it is 'pecuniary' or ‘non-pecuniary'.

4. Annual Financial Statement (2024/25) 3-225
Report of the Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer

Access all available public meeting information, documents and live broadcasts on:

g

Our website at oadby- Our Civico platform at Your smart device using
wigston.gov.uk/meetings civico.net/oadby-wigston the Modern.Gov app
Printed and published by Democratic Services, Oadby
Audit Committee and Wigston Borough Council, Brocks Hill Council
Tuesday, 9 December 2025, 6.00 pm Offices, Washbrook Lane, Oadby, Leicester, LE2 5]J

~ Page 2 ~


https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://civico.net/oadby-wigston
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073
https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/meetings
https://civico.net/oadby-wigston
https://apps.apple.com/gb/app/modern-gov/id1453414073

Agenda Item 4

Audit Committee Tuesday, 09 Matter for
. Information and

A leae/ Ve (Extraordinary) December 2025 . .

WD “‘@ Decision
Report Title: Statement of Accounts Report (2024/25)
Report Author(s): Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / S151 Officer)

Simon Ball (Finance Manager / Deputy Section 141 Officer)

Purpose of Report: To approve the Statement of Accounts 2024/25.
Report Summary: The draft Statement of Accounts were approved and uploaded

onto the Council website in June 2025. These have since been
subject to a detailed audit by the Councils external auditors,
Grant Thornton.

This report updates the Audit Committee on the outcome of the
audit of the Statement of Accounts 2024/25.

Recommendation(s):

That the committee:

A. Review and approve the Audited Financial Report
(2024 /25) (Appendix 1) including the Annual
Governance Statement (Appendix 2) approved June
25) for the year ending 31 March 2025, subject to
any final changes required in agreement with the
Councils external auditors, Grant Thornton.

B. Note the Audit Findings Report (2024/25) (at
Appendix 3) and approve the outlined
recommendations.

C. Approve the publication of the Audited Financial
Report and Annual Governance Statement and
authorise the S151 officer in consultation with the
Chair of the Audit Committee to make any final
changes to the accounts as agreed with the external
Auditors, in order to comply with the Councils
statutory obligations.

D. Approve the Letter of Representation (Appendix 4).

Senior Leadership,
Head of Service,
Manager, Officer and
Other Contact(s):

Colleen Warren (Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer)
(0116) 257 2759
colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Simon Ball (Finance Manager / Deputy Section 151 Officer)
(0116) 257 2624
simon.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Strategic Objectives:

Our Council (SO1)

Our Communities (S02)
Our Economy (S03)
Our Environment (S04)

~ Page 3 ~



mailto:colleen.warren@oadby-wigston.gov.uk
mailto:simon.ball@oadby-wigston.gov.uk

Our Partners (S05)

Vision and Values:

"Our Borough - The Place To Be” (Vision)
Resourceful & Resilient (V4)

Report Implications:-

Legal:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Financial:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Corporate Risk
Management:

Decreasing Financial Resources / Increasing Financial Pressures
(CR1)

Regulatory Governance (CR6)

Economy / Regeneration (CR9)

Equalities and Equalities
Assessment (EA):

There are no implications arising from this report.

Human Rights:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Health and Safety:

There are no implications directly arising from this report.

Statutory Officers’ Comments:-

Head of Paid Service:

The report is satisfactory.

Chief Finance Officer:

As the author, the report is satisfactory.

Monitoring Officer:

The report is satisfactory.

Consultees:

None.

Background Papers:

e Unaudited Draft Statement of Accounts

Appendices:

Audited Financial Report (2024/25)
Annual Governance Statement (2024/25)
Audit Findings Report (2024/25)

Draft Letter of Representation (2024/25)

PWNH

1. Introduction and Background

1.1 The publication of the Statement of Accounts is governed by requirements of the
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015. These require the Statement of Accounts to
be certified by the Council’s Section 151 Officer as presenting a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council by 31 May each year (amended to 30tht June for the 20225

accounts).

1.2 The Council’s unaudited Statement of Accounts were published on the OWBC website on
1st July 2025 and made available for the external audit. The audited Financial Report is
provided at Appendix 1, which includes the adjustments made following the audit. The
already approved Annual Governance Statement is provided at Appendix 2. The Audit

~ Page 4 ~




Findings Report is provided as Appendix 3 The draft Letter of Representation is provided at
Appendix 4.

2. The Statement of Accounts

2.1 The audited Statement of Accounts is provided at Appendix 1. As per the normal
Council format, the salient points are detailed within the Narrative Report (p3 — p25) of the
Statement of Accounts and are summarised below.

2.2 General Fund (p14): The outturn position is a £118K overspend, with the main cause of
the overspend relating to pressures from increased homelessness.

2.3 Reserves and Balances (p17): The adjusted General Fund Reserve opening balance was
£1.540m after a £225K appropriation to reserves that was omitted in 23/24. In 2024/25 the
account had a budget deficit of £118k after appropriations to/from earmarked reserves,
leaving General Fund Reserve balance of £1.422m on 31 March 2025.

The Housing Revenue Account opening balance on its main reserve was £1.411m. In
2024/25 the account had a budget surplus of £264k after appropriations from earmarked
reserves, leaving an estimated HRA Reserve balance of £1.675m at 31 March 2025.

2.4 Pension Liabilities (p18): The Council owes £7.466m across future years offset by the
value of assets invested in the pension fund. The Council contributed £1.85m to the scheme
in 2024/25 and recognised a total charge of £0.71m for the year.

2.5 Provisions (p18): The Council has set aside a provision of £327K for business rate
appeals against rateable valuations. Business ratepayers who have appealed against their
assessment are still required to pay the rates demanded, but should their appeal be
successful then any sums overpaid will be refunded.

2.6 Borrowing (p18): On 31 March 2024 the Council had a total external borrowing of
£15.871m of long-term borrowing. This relates to loans from the Public Loans and Works
Board (PWLB), which were either taken out in 2012 to fund HRA self-financing (£11.070m),
or in 2016, to fund the leisure Centre project (£4.301m), with the remainder being general
fund borrowing (£500k). Additionally, there is another £19.506m of short-term borrowing,
both for cash flow purposes, and in lieu of long-term debt. All our borrowing was within our
Prudential Code limit of £46m for the year.

2.7 Cash-Flow (p18): This shows a decrease of £389k in cash and cash equivalents from the
previous year. Interest payable was £271k higher than in 2023/24, reflecting both the
increase in interest rates over the period. Interest receivable increased in line with prevailing
interest rates.

2.8 Financial Position (p19): We have maintained a strong financial position despite the
financial challenges we face, with net assets increasing by £1.846m between 2023/24 and
2024/25 primarily due to pension changes. We are continuing to monitor the reserves
regularly including the last MTFS and looking for other income streams and continuing to
find savings.

2.9 Capital (p19): The 2024/25 Capital Programme was set at Full Council February 2024.
Table 3 P19 provides a summary of the programme. Key features of the 2023/24 Capital
programme included the undertaking of Decent Homes standard related works for Council
homes, the replacement of the heating system at Chartwell House, upgrades at parks and
play areas, and the acquisition and refurbishment of vehicles for the Council fleet.

2.10 Basis of Preparation (p20): When assessing what to include in these financial
statements, the principle of materiality has been applied. This ensures that the core issues

~Page 5~



considered to have an impact on the Council’s strategies, governance, performance and
aspirations in respect of matters such as the services it provides and the wellbeing of its local
community, are presented. This includes matters that are ordinarily outside of the scope of
financial reporting, but which are deemed to have a significant effect on the authority’s
ability to meet its objectives. Where information in this report is based on other information
published by the Council, it is prepared on that same basis and is reconcilable and
referenced to that published information.

2.11 Statement of Responsibilities (p26): This outlines the responsibilities of the Council and
the Section 151 Officer in preparing the accounts as well as Members in approving the
accounts.

2.12 Annual Governance Statement 2024/25: This is detailed at Appendix 2 to this report
and provided for information and was originally approved at July 2025 Audit Committee.
Progress against the actions has been made and these will be reported at the July 2026
Audit Committee.

3. Audit Findings Report:

3.1 This is detailed at Appendix 3 and will be presented by Grant Thornton LLC. The report
outlines the key findings and other matters relating to the statutory audit of the Council and
the preparation of the Council’s financial statements for the year ending 31 March 2025 for
those charged with governance.

3.2 Grant Thornton will take the Committee Members through several key items relating to
the audit in detail. This will include key headlines, the audit approach, the financial
statements significant risks, any new issues and risks, key judgements and estimates as well
as their assessments.

4, Letter of Representation:
4.1 The Draft Letter of Representation is detailed at Appendix 4. The Audit committee is

asked to approve the letter of representation, which is a standard but formal record of the
representations made by the Council to our external auditors.

~ Page 6 ~



Appendix 1

7 -
L

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council

Audited Financial Report

For the year 2024/25

Oadby & Wigston

UGH COUNCIL




The Narrative Report

Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts
The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS)

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES)
The Balance Sheet

The Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement

Notes to the Housing Revenue Account

Collection Fund Explanatory Foreword

The Collection Fund Account

Notes to the Collection Fund Account

The Statement of Accounting Policies

Glossary of Terms

Annual Governance Statement (AGS)

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25
~ Page 8 ~

26

28

30

31

32

33

76

77

77

81

82

83

86

105

116



NARRATIVE REPORT

The Statement of Accounts

The Section 151 Officer is the statutory officer responsible for the proper administration
of the Council’s financial affairs and is required by law to confirm that the Council’s system
of internal controls can be relied upon to produce an accurate Statement of Accounts. To
do so the Section 151 Officer ensures that the Council maintains proper and up to date
accounting records and takes all reasonable steps to prevent and detect fraud and any
other irregularities. The Statement of Responsibilities appears on page 26.

The Statement of Accounts has been produced in accordance with The Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting (‘the Code’) developed by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Council’s Accounting Policies, which are
written to incorporate the Code, and are outlined on pages 86-104 of the Statement of
Accounts.

Oadby and Wigston as a place

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is a
diverse, thriving and vibrant place, located to
the south-east of the city of Leicester and
sharing boundaries with Harborough and Blaby
district areas.

There are just under 58,000 residents living in
Oadby and Wigston within an area of around
nine square miles which is predominantly
urban. The Borough consists of three distinct
communities, Oadby, Wigston and South
Wigston. Each of the three areas have very
different perceived levels of affluence. South
Wigston has the highest level of social
deprivation and is the least affluent with Oadby
having the lowest level of social deprivation and is perceived as the most affluent area.

The Borough is ranked 217th out of 316, (where one is the most deprived) by the Indices
of Deprivation 2021.

The ethnic and cultural composition of the Borough is diverse. The overall Black and
Minority Ethnic (BME) population is 36.6%.

The Borough Council delivers the full range of services that all district councils provide.
These are delivered through a combination of arrangements which are direct, contracted,
shared or delegated. The Council also owns and manages its own housing stock of 1,178
homes.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 3
~Page 9 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

» Oadby and Wigston:

e Collects £41.6m in council tax but retains only £4.7m to provide essential services
such as waste and recycling collection

e Generates over £2m of income

e Collects £13.5m in business rates but retains only £1.9m to spend on delivering
council services

e Holds £111m of assets for service delivery, council housing provision and
investments

e Collects £5.9m in rent payments in respect of our council homes.

» Like all other district councils, Oadby and Wigston has seen its net general fund
annual budget reduce over a number of years, from £8.5 million in 2010/11 to £7.7
million in 2024/25. The Council has managed to reduce its budget without cutting
any front-line services over the previous years turning to income generation as a
means of balancing its budget.

» The increasing budget requirement in 2024/25 reflects the impact of inflationary
pressures on employee costs, energy costs and interest cost and means our funding
does not match our budgeted net revenue expenditure. A sustainability programme
was introduced in year and has achieved savings of £807k from services reviews
and income generation in 2024/25.

» The Council’s is severely restricted by its size and existing housing density. The
Borough therefore has a limited capacity to host additional housing compared to
most other districts and boroughs. This means the Council has limited capacity to
increase its funding by growing its Council Tax base and attracting New
Homes Bonus and is also limited in attaining Business Rates growth.

The council

Governance

There has been political continuity since 1991 when the
Liberal Democrats achieved an overall majority for the first
time. The latest full local election took place on the 4t °f May
2023 with 19 Liberal Democrat Members and 7
Conservative Members elected. The current composition
is 16 Liberal Democrat Members, 7 Conservative Members
and 3 Independent Members.

The leader of the Council is Samia Haq and the Deputy
Leader Councillor is Lee Bentley.

Oadby and Wigston Council operates a committee system
of governance and all 26 members are involved in the
decision making. All 26 members sit on the Full Council
and this oversees decisions and actions of the five main committees.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 4
~ Page 10 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

The five committees are:

* Policy, Finance and Development Committee
* Service Delivery Committee

* Development Control Committee

* Licensing and Regulatory Committee

* Audit Committee

The Committees debate and decide Council policy and make specific decisions in relation
to their individual responsibilities. There are also a number of working groups, with limited
decision-making power, that develop specific initiatives and which report through the main
committees to Council. A Standards Panel to oversee Councillor’s conduct can be called
at any time from the membership of the Policy, Finance and Development Committee.

On a national level Oadby and Wigston is contained wholly within the Harborough
Constituency and is represented at Westminster by Neil O’Brien, MP of the Conservative
Party. Mr O’Brien held the seat for the Conservatives and was re-elected as the MP for
the Harborough constituency in May 2024 with a majority of 18,614.

Our Vision and priorities

The Council’s policy drivers are the objectives as set out in the adopted Corporate Plan
for the period 2024-2027 which set out the Council’s Vision of: A Stronger Borough
Together

“Councillors, staff, residents, businesses, partners and stakeholders will continue to create a

stronger borough by working together.

A stronger borough that is inclusive and engaged and focuses on delivering effective services,

balanced economic development, green and safes places resulting in better wellbeing for all”.
The Corporate Plan centres around three core Corporate Objectives and is reviewed and

updated on an annual basis.

Corporate Objectives

Building, Protecting and Empowering Communities
a “Be Proud of your borough as a place to live”

Growing the Borough Economically
“Realise the aspirations of the borough, benefiting those who live and work here”

Providing Excellent Services
e “Delivering those services needed to the highest standard whilst providing value for
money”

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 5
~ Page 11 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

A new Vision was formally adopted at our Full Council meeting on 27 September 2022 and will
now be the driving force behind our aims and ambitions. The first major milestone in embedding
this Vision will be in creating a new Corporate Plan, which is in development.

Our council

* To be the local voice of residants and
businesses.

* To ensure that we provide high quality, value for
maney services that meet the needs of
rasidents, husinesses and visitors.

» To ensure high connectivity with residents and
businesses.

Our communities

* To provide a clean and safe place for everyone.

* To suppert any activities or actions that
enhance the health and wallbeing of our
Borough.

* To provide gmd, offardable and efficient
heusing for everyone.

Our Economy
* To support economic growth that is focused en
our fown centres.

* Ta make our Borough an inviting place fo visit.

« Ta help fo provide good employment
opportunities,

Customer Excellence Award

Qur vision

Our environment

= To ensure that we are o carbon conscicus
Borough.

* To be seen to be 'Green'.

Our partners
» To develop, maintain and enhance partnerships
to help support delivery of cur ebjectives.

Dadby & Wigsten

» To ensure we are engoged and listening to all
sactions of the community.

Qur purpose

The high quality of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council’'s customer service has seen the
authority continue to achieve the nationally recognised Customer Service Excellence
Award. The award was created by the Cabinet Office and is the gold standard for
customer service delivery, recognising that an organisation delivers excellent services
with the customer at the heart. The Council achieved the award for the first time in 2020
and retained it in December 2021, December 2022, December 2023 and December 2024.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 12 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

Working for Oadby and Wigston

At the end of March 2025, the Council employed 169 individuals (147 full-time and 21
part-time and 1 casual) alongside 4 agency workers across a wide range of services.
The majority of the Council’'s services are provided in-house and our employed
positions reflect this with roles across many job types including manual workers,
professional roles and administrative roles.

We have a strong set of organisational values which were adopted from May 2023
which were developed in consultation with staff. The values and behaviours reflect
the qualities and behaviours that staff should portray and are centred around the
following four core values:

Our Values Our Culture

Our empowered and supported people are driven to be... We will...

* Embed our values and behaviours into our policies, processes and everything
% Customer and community focused we do

= Have a robust performance management system

= Undertake regular culture snapshots through our surveys, acting on areas

o i
* Proud of evervthlng we do which prohibit a healthy and positive workplace culture

* Share success stories across the organisation, recognise and celebrate what
%+ (Collaborative and creative we do well and share that learning across the organisation

= (Create a rewarding place to work, where we can encourage innovation,
continually learn from what we do and collaborate with others to get the best

% Resourceful and resilient results.

-

These values are ingrained into the Council’s service provision, performance,
management and recruitment policies throughout the Council.

The Council’s Performance

As part of the Council’s ongoing development to service performance management and
reporting, KPIs have now been reported on in two different ways since 2022/23 -
continuous improvement in line with our Corporate Plan 2024 — 2027; and statutory KPIs
that have to be delivered as part of legislative or legal duty as a Council.

The Council reported on 21 Continuous Improvement Key Performance Measures for
2024/25, and these measures relate to each of the Council’s three Corporate Objectives
as part of the Council’s five-year Corporate Plan (2024-2027).

The Council has produced 38 Statutory Improvement Key Performance Measure for
2024/2025. Statutory KPIs refer to those that the Council has to report and measure from

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 7
~ Page 13 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

a legislative, legal or need to report to a particular body.

Each target has been graded using the Red/Amber/Green status ranking system. There
is also a “blue” ranking, and this is for indicators where work has yet to begin, and
therefore cannot be ranked. Finally, there is a “white” rating where the indicator cannot
be met due to circumstances outside of the Council’s control. The scoring system has
been applied using the following definitions:

Green Target fully achieved or currently on track to achieve target
Indicator is in danger of falling behind target
Red Indicator is off target or has been completed behind the deadline target.
Continuous Improvement Key Performance Indicators —
Out of the 21 indicators:
18 were Green status
2 were Amber status

1 was Red status

This equates to 86% Green, 9% Amber and 5% Red status. The following table
identifies the Council’s performance by service delivery section.

Performance Chart — Continuous Improvement KPI's - By Service Area

Red
Number of
Indicators

Number of
Indicators

Quarter Four 2024/25

Percentage

Number of
Indicators

All Targets Due 18 86% 2 9% 1 5%

Department
Built Environment 100% 0% 0%

12.5%|

Overall Performance

>

0 0

Customer Service & Transformation 6 75% 1 12.5% 1
Finance & Resources 3 100% 0 0% 0

Law & Democracy 5 83% 1 17% 0

Statutory Key Performance Indicators

Out of the 38 indicators, 37 were due for reporting as at the end of Quarter 4 2024-
2025.
Of the 37:

30 were Green status
1 was Amber status
6 were Red status

This equates to 81% Green, 3% Amber and 16% Red status.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 8
~ Page 14 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

The following table identifies the Council’s performance, by service delivery section.

Performance Chart - Statutory KPI’'s - By Service Area

Number of Pe -
rcenta
Indicators a

Red

Quarter Four 2024/25

Overall Performance

All Targets Due

Built Environment 16 80% 0 0% 4 20%
Customer Service & Transformation 7 78% 0 0% 2 22%'
Finance & Resources 3 100% 0 0% 0 O%I
Law & Democracy < 80% 1 20% 0 O%I

Financial context and outlook
Key financial features for Oadby and Wigston

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is responsible for managing cash flows and assets
exceeding £165m each year. Of this amount:

£111m relates to the value of our assets, of
which £107m of these are held for providing
council services and £0.15m of investment
property. The remaining £0.12m of assets are
made up of heritage and intangible assets and
£3m of assets classed as held for sale.

Over £2m relates to local income that we raise
in the form of fees and charges. We use this
funding and income to deliver services and
keep council tax down. In addition, we collect
£5.9m in rent for council homes.

We collect around £13.5m in business rates and
we retain  approximately  10%,  with
approximately 10% being passed onto to our
major preceptors, Leicestershire County
Council and Leicestershire Fire and Rescue Service, 30% paid into the Leicester and
Leicestershire Business and Skills Partnership, to support economic growth in
Leicestershire, and the remaining 50% going to central government.

We collect £41.6m in council tax from residents in the district. We retain just 11% of this
amount, with the remainder passed on to LCC, LFRS and PCC. The Council’'s Band D
precept is £254.04.

The Council has in previous years utilised reserves in year to balance the budget but has
recognised that this is not sustainable and methods of income generation, service reviews
and changes to service delivery have been consulted on and where suitable included in
the budget and plans made for implementation during 2024/25.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 9
~ Page 15 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

The Council recognises that the reserves cannot be used to bridge budget gaps going
forward and that the depletion of reserves means the Council will become unable to
respond to external financial challenges.

Strong financial stewardship underpins our approach to service delivery and projects: we
manage our budgets well to provide excellent value for money services and invest in key
schemes to make a real difference in our communities.

For 2024/25 our revenue budgets totalled £7.7 million and our capital investment
programme £8.483 million. Atthe end of the year, we held reserves of £1.540 million and
£1.759m million for the General Fund and HRA respectively. We know that we need to
build our level of General Fund reserves to remain healthy and resilient in the future and
this is flagged in the CIPFA Financial Resilience Index and other benchmarking data when
our reserves performance is compared to other districts.

Our borrowing is in line with prudential

guidelines and is affordable and sustainable.

We are likely to continue to need to borrow

externally as part of our treasury position.

Financial Sustainability

The Council approved a  Medium-
Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in February
2025, this presented a high-level five-year
assessment of the financial resources required
to deliver the Council’s strategic priorities and
essential services, and the projected
resources available which showed budget
gaps each year. In previous years the Council
had utilised some of the reserves in order to balance the budget however looking ahead
the reserves available were not sufficient to fund the budget gaps over the MTFS period.
Councillors recognised that reserves cannot continue to be used to balance the budget
and as such action has been taken to ensure that the budget can be balanced annually
and ensure that the Council can balance its expenditure within its funding and income
means.

The MTFS (2025) included a sustainability plan of high-level savings targets to identify
income generation methods, methods of financial management and Asset Management
to generate savings or income to bridge the budget gaps. £65k of savings were achieved
in 2023/24 and a further £807k of savings were achieved in 2024/25 and will reduce the
budget going forward.

The Chief Executive is the sustainability programme sponsor and the members of the
Senior Leadership Team are project leads.

Projects

During 2024/25 the Council concluded negotiations for the sale of its former offices at
Bushloe House in Wigston with the sale expected in mid-2025/26.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 10
~ Page 16 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

We have also progressed negotiations for the sale of Oadby swimming pool, with the sale
expected towards the end of 2025-26.

The development of plans for the Horsewell Lane site for housing are ongoing — external
funding contributions are being sought.

Current economic conditions

The national fiscal and economic situation is an
important consideration for the Council. Currently
there are a number of significant financial challenges
for the sector.

Local Government Funding System

The system of funding for local government has
significantly changed since 2010, with Councils now
increasingly reliant on localised funding sources,
principally council tax and business rates. However,
the mechanics around these funding streams are still determined by central government
in a financial settlement. In recent years this has moved from a multi-year settlement to
one year settlement. The settlement for 2024/25 was a one-year settlement, meaning
understanding the funding position beyond 2024/25 is extremely difficult.

Local government funding reforms were first announced in 2016 and there have since
been a number of deferrals. The reforms include:

e A review of the Needs and Resources assessment (previously Fair Funding
Review announced in 2016) is due to determine a new mechanism for allocating
resources within the sector.

e A review of the new Homes Bonus funding system

e The Business Rates Retention Scheme is due to be reset potentially removing all
of the previously generated growth in the system

The potential impact of these changes represents significant uncertainty in terms of the
financial resources available from 2025/26 onwards.

Local Government Reorganisation

The English Devolution White Paper (published on 16 December 2024) set out the
government’s vision for simpler local government structures. Alongside the publication of
the English Devolution White Paper on the 16 December, the Minister of State for Local
Government and English Devolution wrote to all councils in remaining two-tier areas and
neighbouring small unitary authorities to set out plans for a joint programme of devolution
and local government reorganisation.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 11
~ Page 17 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

On the 5 February 2025 the Minister of State for Local Government and English
Devolution issued a statutory invitation to all councils in 2-tier areas and small
neighbouring unitary authorities to develop proposals for unitary local government. These
will bring together lower and upper tier local government services in new unitary councils
to deliver local government reorganisation. This invitation requested that councils produce
interim plans and submit these to government by Friday 21 March 2025, setting out their
progress on developing proposals in line with the criteria and guidance.

These interim plans that have been submitted in proposals to Government:
e one by Leicestershire County Council.
e a North-City-South approach, with North West Leicestershire, Charnwood,
Melton and Rutland in the north, Hinckley, and Bosworth, Blaby, Oadby and
Wigston, and Harborough in the south, and
e a third by Leicester City Council

The Government decision on which proposal goes forward will not be until after the full
plan have been submitted later this year.

The table below gives the expected timeline.

LGR full plan submission deadline Friday 28 November 2025
Elections to shadow authorities April/May 2027
Vesting day for new authorities April 2028

This would mean that Oadby and Wigston Borough Council would cease to be a council
on the 31 March 2028, and would be merged into the new unitary council as from the 1
April 2028, referred to as the vesting day. Up until then Oadby and Wigston Borough
Council will continue to delivery services as normal.

Global and national economic climate

The current global and national economic climate remains unstable. GDP growth remains
sluggish. Inflation has declined slightly over the course of 2024/25, from 3.0% in April-24
to 2.6% in March-25. The Bank of England expects inflation will drop below 2% by the first
quarter of 2027.

The Bank of England have decreased the bank rate from its medium-term peak of 5.25%
at April 2024 to the current rate of 4.25%. The bank rate impacts on the interest rate earnt
on investments and influences the interest rate on borrowing. It is expected that the rate
will drop during 2025/26, but when, and by how much, remains uncertain.

Service costs, risks and demands

Inflation rates have impacted on employee pay with awards in 2023/24 and 2024/25 being
a fixed sum rather than a percentage increase as in previous years. These higher costs

are embedded into the cost of providing our services.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 12
~ Page 18 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

Energy inflation rates have been impacted by the Russian invasion off the Ukraine,
although the increases have reduced slightly since this time last year. This remains an
area where prices are volatile.

Inflation is also impacting on the costs of supplies and contracts and adding risk to the
viability of some suppliers which increases the contract risk exposure.

The impact of inflation on the cost of living creates more demand for our services and is
creating unprecedented demands around homelessness support and costs.

Our General Fund Medium Term Financial Plan

Our General Fund account summarises the expenditure on the council’s main services
which are paid for in part by council tax.

The current medium term financial plan looks ahead to the forthcoming five-year period
and projects deficits over the course of the 5-year forecast resulting in the General fund
reserve decreasing over the life of the MTFP. Proposals and actions are being taken to
ensure that the Council is sustainable in the future including a review of the sustainability
plan

The Council’s ability to influence growth in the area and increase its funding through new
homes bonus, additional council tax and business rates growth is restricted due to its size
and due to it already being densely built up.

The changes to the funding regime anticipated as part of the Needs and Resources
Review and Business Rates Reform aren’t likely to hit the Council’s finances as hard as
may be the case for some authorities, but we still expect our modest business rates
funding to reduce in the future when these reviews are implemented.

Currently the Medium-Term Financial Plan is looked at annually alongside the
forthcoming years’ budget, having been reviewed at budget setting 2024/25 and
2025/26.

Our Housing Revenue Account 5-year projections

The Housing Revenue Account summarises income
and expenditure relating to the rented housing
accommodation of 1,178 homes provided by the
Council.

The HRA is a ring-fenced account, meaning that HRA
funds are maintained separately from other council
finances and must only be spent on the council’s
housing stock and tenants’ services. Its primary
source of income is from collecting circa £5.9 million

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 13
~ Page 19 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

of rent from properties let at either social or affordable rental rates.

The Council’s current projections with the HRA MTFP show a stable five-year financial
position when considering the level of reserves available to balance projected deficit
years.

The council’s financial performance in 2024/25
General Fund

The outturn position for the General Fund Revenue Account is a £118K deficit.

The position on the account as the end of year is set out in the table below.

Service Original Revised Actual Variance
Budget Budget Spent (Under) /
2024/25 2024/25 2024/25 Overspend

2024/25
£ | £ | £ | £

Senior Leadership Team 407,620 396,420 373,804 (22,616)

Finance and Resources | 4,098,977 = 3,994,177 4,626,482 632,305

The Built Environment 922,878 934,078 446,899 (487,179)

Law and Democracy | 813,940 815940 621,841  (194,099)

Community and Wellbeing, (335,820) | (337,820)  (356,758) (18,938)

Corporate Assets . 273,885 288,535 371,201 | 82,666

Depot 985,100 985,100 | 1,004,708 19,608

s s s Sl 1,030,428 1,034,328 | 965,034  (69,294)

Business Transformation

HRA Recharge (1,468,803)  (1,364,003) | (1,341,881) 22,122

Capital Financing 948,600 948,600 955,980 | 7,380

Net Revenue Expenditure 7,676,805 7,695,355 7,667,312 (28,043)

Earmarked Reserves | 0 18,550  (721,079)  (736,629)

Funding 7,676,805 7,676,805 | 8,270,733 593,928

Budget Deficit / (Surplus) | 0 0 117,658 117,658

A summari of the maior variances on the 2024/25 iear are detailed in the table below.

Adverse

Cemeteries 35,185

Garden Waste Collection 80,695

Corporate Management 56,150

Council Tax 112,067

Housing Benefits 660,256

Council Tax Benefits 46,436

Revenues and Benefits Manager 69,362

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 14

~ Page 20 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

Favourable

Corporate Projects (85,031)
Legal and Admin Section (38,022)
Taxi Licences (59,542)
Homelessness (133,260)
Development Control (98,782)
Forward Planning (246,796)
Customer Services (43,829)
Food Waste (43,999)
Corporate Management Non-Financial (158,293)
Finance (52,314)

WHERE THE MONEY IS SPENT: GENERAL FUND 2024/25

Capital Financing [j Contributions to § 23/24
4% Reserve NNDR
1% Deficit

3%

Employees
35%

Housing Benefit
31%

Other Services
Expenses
26%

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25
~ Page 21 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

WHERE THE MONEY COMES FROM: GENERAL FUND
2024/25

Recharges out of
General Fund
6%

Council Tax

Other Income
24%

Government Grants
Non-COVID
36%

N

Contributions From
Reserves
1%

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The Housing Revenue Account summarises income and expenditure relating to the
rented housing accommodation of 1,178 homes provided by the Council. The HRA is a
ring-fenced account, meaning that HRA funds are maintained separately from other
council finances and must only be spent on the council’s housing stock and tenants’
services. The position on the account as the end of year is set out in the table below.

Service Original Revised Actual Variance

Budget Budget Spent

2024/25 2024/25 2024/25

£ £ £ £
Housing Revenue Account (4,342,020) | (4,342,020) | (4,481,372) (139,352)
Supervision and Management 2,251,443 2,253,143 2,433,905 180,762
Repairs and Maintenance 1,253,750 1,253,750 1,165,089 (88,661)
Net Cost of Services (836,827) (835,127) (882,377) (47,250)
Capital Charges 735,760 735,760 627,279 (108,482)
Appropriations 0 0 (8,786) (8,786)
Year End Adjustments 0 0 0 0
(Surplus) / Deficit (101,067) (99,367) (263,885) (164,518)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 16

~ Page 22 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

A summary of the major variances on the 2024/25 year are detailed in the table below.

Adverse

General Repairs 163,765
Estate Management 209,047
Favourable

Void Property Repairs (142,410)
General Planned Maintenance (136,775)
Housing Revenue Account (223,375)
Capital Charges (108,482)

Reserves and Balances

The General Fund Reserve decreased by £343k and Housing Revenue Account Reserve
increased by £264k during 2024/25.

The adjusted General Fund Reserve opening balance was £1.540m after a £225K
appropriation to reserves that was omitted in 23/24. In 2024/25 the account had a budget
deficit of £118k after appropriations to/from earmarked reserves, leaving General Fund
Reserve balance of £1.422m on 31 March 2025.

The Housing Revenue Account opening balance as at 1st April 2024 on its main reserve
was £1.410m. In 2024/25 the account has a budget surplus of £264k leaving an HRA
Reserve balance of £1.675m at 31 March 2025.

The following table sets out the reserves available to the Council to meet its capital
expenditure plans and other financial commitments as at 31 March 2025.

2024/25 2023/24
Restated
£000’s £000’s
Revenue Reserves
General Fund 1,422 1,765
Housing Revenue Account 1,675 1,411
Other Reserves
Useable Capital Receipts 1,780 1,737
Earmarked Reserves 2,143 1,933

Our Assets and Liabilities

Pension Liabilities

£7.466m

This is the value of what the council owes across future years offset by the value of assets
invested in the pension fund. The council made a contribution of £1.85m to the scheme
in 2024/25 and recognised a total charge of £0.71m for the year.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 17
~ Page 23 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

The pension fund, which is a Local Government Pension Scheme, is revalued every three
years to set the future contribution rates. The last valuation took place in March 2022
which set our additional contribution rate at 22.4% plus £676K for the 2024/25 financial
year. This rate means we pay additional amounts into the pension fund to offset the
predicted liability on the scheme.

Provisions

The council sets asides provision for business rate appeals against rateable valuations.
Business ratepayers who have appealed against their assessment are still required to pay
the rates demanded but should their appeal be successful then any sums overpaid will be
refunded.

2024/25 2023/24
Business Rates Appeals Provision £327k £348k

Borrowing
As at 31st March 2025 the council has total external borrowing of £15.871m of long-term

borrowing. This relates to loans from the Public Loans and Works Board (PWLB), which
were either taken out in 2012 to fund HRA self-financing (£11.070m), or in 2016, to fund
the leisure centre project (£4.301m), with the remainder being general fund borrowing
(£500k). Additionally, there is another £19.506m of short-term borrowing, both for cash
flow purposes, and in lieu of long-term debt. All of our borrowing was within our Prudential
Code limit of £46m for the year.

Cash flow
The Council's cash flow shows a decrease of £0.389m in its cash and cash equivalents
from the previous year.

Interest payable was £27 1k higher than in 2023/24; Interest receivable increased by £28k
in line with prevailing interest rates.

Financial Position

We have maintained a strong financial position despite the financial challenges we face,
with an increase in net assets of £1.846m between 2023/24 and 2024/25.

2024/25 = 2023/24

£000s £000s

Non-Current Assets (property and long-term investments) 111,892 111,117

Net Current Assets (debtors, stock and cash less creditors (16,863) (16,460)

and liabilities)

Long-term Liabilities and Provisions (25,129) \ (26,604)

Net Assets 69,900 68,053

Funded by: |

Usable Reserves (7,678) (8,065)

Unusable Reserves (62,222) | (59,998) |
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 18

~ Page 24 ~



NARRATIVE REPORT

Capital

The 2024/25 Capital Programme was set at Full Council in February 2024. Table 3 shows
a summary of the 2024/25 capital programme.

Some key features of the capital programme for 2024/25 include:

» £2.586m on improvement works to Council housing; including £1.196m to replace the
heating system at Chartwell House.

> £605k of expenditure on upgrading parks and play areas, signage and street furniture,
pathways and shop fronts;
» £473k on vehicle and equipment replacement and refurbishment.

Table 3 - Capital Programme Summary

Revised Actual Variance
Budget Spent to Budget

2024/25 2024/25

£'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund 3,155 1,896 (1,259)

Housing Revenue Account 5,328 2,995 (2,333)

Total 8,483 4,891 (3,592)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 19

~ Page 25 ~



~ 9z abed ~

Risk Management

NARRATIVE REPORT

A refreshed Risk Management Policy was approved in January 2023 reaffirming the formal arrangements the Council has in place
for risk management, with the prior policy being approved in July 2021.
policy is the identification, analysis, management and financial control of those risks which can most impact on the Council’s ability
to pursue its approved corporate objectives.

The overall objective of the Council’s risk management

A Strategic Risk Register is in place and is approved by both the Senior Leadership Team and Elected Members via the Audit
Committee. The Strategic Risk Register is a live document constantly under review to ascertain progress on managed risks and new
risks that could impact on the Council. Set out below are the key risks from the Council’s Strategic Risk Register.

Decreasing
Financial resources
I/ Increasing
Financial Pressures

Key Supplier Failure

Cuts in services

Political and customer expectations not met
Quality of service

Reputation damage

Knock on impact on the local community and
economy e.g. spiral effect

Legal challenge, Reduction in rent/monies owed
to the council through the introduction of UC,
increased homelessness adding stresses to
council finances and the local economy.
Supplier price variations significant.

Cost implications
Business Continuity
Loss of revenue
Service failure

TUPE issues
Potential court action
Increased complaints

Review of Financial Regulations

Training on Contract Procedure Rules

Enhance budget monitoring

Creating a new MTFS

Cost of Living impact assessment

Engagement with stakeholders on Financial Outlook
Updated MTFP position

Implementation of the Sustainability Programme

Formal contracts and agreements including realistic
notice periods.

Performance management of contracts,
Comprehensive Contract Register, Partnership
working with Local Authority Partners

Partnership and contract risk registers

Contract term renegotiation with key providers as

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 20



~ )z obed ~

NARRATIVE REPORT

Reputation issues
Political damage
Delays

necessary
Full review of all contracts

Full review of contract procedure rules in line with
new regulations

Failure to work
effectively with
other public sector
partner
organisations
(PSOs)

Loss of public confidence in Community Safety
Partnership

Loss of funding for LLR Sports Alliance
partnership

Impact on service delivery of poor ICT service
May not realise potential economies of scale
Impact on staff morale

Formal agreements with public sector partners which
clearly identify roles and responsibilities

Governance arrangements which manage
performance against agreements

Lead officer arrangements/contract manager
Financial controls ensuring payments are only
authorised where service being delivered by partner
organisation is received and is of appropriate quality
Strategic Planning Group - governance arrangements
are in place for this.

Member Advisory Group also in place Southern
Alliance (OWBC, HDC, Blaby and Hinckley working
together)

Performance of these arrangements is formally
reviewed, and changes are made if necessary.
Regular account meetings with contracted 3rd sector
organisations.

Service Level Agreements in place where necessary.
Cost of Living support programme has funded 3rd
sector organisations and support for warm hubs.

Hard to reach
demographics feel
disenfranchised
through lack of
specific
communication and
engagement.

Reputational damage

Lack of support for community initiatives

Missed opportunity to impact on equalities
agenda and HWB of residents

Citizens panel not representative of demographic.
Services may not meet the needs of this
demographic

Customer Experience Strategy Action Plan.

Housing Regulators new Tenant Satisfaction
Measures that all social housing landlords will need to
adopt from April 2023.

Tenant Engagement Review

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 21



NARRATIVE REPORT

Risk Impact _______________ Mitgation
Political Dynamics  Change in priorities Member development programmes
Change in member/officer engagement Code of Conduct
Breakdown in communication Review of the Constitution
Inability to meet expectations Development and use of the members Enquiries
Reputation issues (organisational and political) system

Reactive decision making (rather than planned) IT training for Members including cyber Security

Failure to follow legislative requirements e.g.

~ gz abed ~

equalities
Further strain on council finances
Reputational Intervention Anti-Fraud Policy approved June 2023.
Damage Loss of public confidence Whistle blowing and Anti-Fraud and Corruption
Ombudsman findings policies
Court costs Freedom of Information log
Quality of service affected Qualified in house legal team
Breakdown in a partnership Officer complaints training and new complaints
Adverse publicity process _
Lower public satisfaction level Peﬁormance reporting and Key Performance
Indicators

Time spent mitigating damage/rectifying the
situation

Low Morale

Difficulties to recruit/staff retention
Inadequate budget provision, inappropriate
financial decisions made

Public and media consultation

Achieved accreditation for customer service
excellence award

Communications Policy and Communications Plan in
place

Online customer care training in place for all new staff
and a separate module also in place for managers.

Effective utilisation | Loss of investment opportunities Revision of Asset Management Policy and Capital
of Assets/Buildings | Loss of income Expenditure Plan annually
Loss of capital Production of a Health and Safety Action Plan
Higher revenue costs approved by Council April 2023
Costs Health and safety risk assessments
Designated health and safety officer

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 22



~ 6g obed ~

NARRATIVE REPORT

Mitigation

Death or injury Designated facilities officer

Higher insurance premiums Marketing of assets available to hire
Reputation damage

Public liability

Personal liability for corporate team e.g. corporate
manslaughter

Regulatory  Substantial fines e.g. Data Protection Data Protection Policy and log

Governance Judicial review Freedom of Information log
Reputation Code of Conduct and training
Code of conduct HR Induction .
Financial loss Statutory Monitoring Officer

Prosecution Policy

Dedicated Policy, Compliance and Data Protection
Officer

Appraisal training and 1-2-1 training has been rolled
out to all managers.

Cost orders
Personal liability

Failure to respond Insurance — higher premiums Business Continuity training exercise and refresh
to a significant Loss of essential services BC Plans refresh and incorporation into service plans
incident Adverse publicity — completed December 2022.
Reputation damage Membership of Local Resilience forum
Loss of public confidence Training conducted by LRF undertaken by SLT/CMT
Loss of income on call officers
Financial damage Refresh of the Agile working policy underway July
Death and injury 2025

Litigation risks

Insurance — higher premiums
Loss of essential services
Adverse publicity

Reputation damage

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 23



~ 0g abed ~

NARRATIVE REPORT

Loss of public confidence

Loss of income

Financial damage

Death and injury

Litigation risks

Staff unavailable after major incident
Large proportion of staff becoming ill

Organisational/ Redundancy Developing a People Strategy - to include resilience
Transformational Staff morale and succession planning as a key consideration —
Change Staff retention underway

Change in working practices Organisation review policy

Impact on quality of service Formal induction programme

Legal implications Performance appraisal process

HR implications Regular 1-2-1s

Reputation damage/perception
Financial loss

Possible litigation

Increased fraud

Economy/ Relocation (Business and Domestic) Continue to review the opportunity to maximise
Regeneration Lack of inward investment funding sources (as per Corporate Peer Review
Increased demand for certain services e.g. Action Plan)
benefits Bids being prepared to UK Social Prosperity Fund
Loss of value in public assets and Levelling Up Fund to develop projects that will
Need to continually adapt/change support local businesses, bring investment into the
Conflicting pressures - decreased funding — Borough and regenerate key sites
increased demand Sub-committees established to provide a focus on
Spiral effect key regeneration projects
Specialist support procured to advise on the

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 24



~ T€ obed ~

NARRATIVE REPORT

Short term decision making — uncertainty
Increased autonomy leads to greater risk
Decrease in collection levels

Mitigation
deliverability of regeneration projects

Increased Fraud

Homelessness, poverty and social deprivation
Financial loss

Resources of the authority to investigate fraud
issues

Reputation impact

Litigation

Anti fraud policy including bribery act approved July
2023

Fraud Awareness Training approved July 2023
Implementation of internal audit recommendations
Participation in National Fraud initiative

New internal auditors appointed

Cyber
Threat/Security,
Cyber security is
seen as an ICT risk
and not a corporate
risk that needs to be
managed and
monitored by senior
management.

Staff lone working
including out of
hours

Financial loss

Resources of the authority to investigate fraud
issues

Reputation impact
Litigation, Loss of data, breaches of GDPR, SMT
lack of oversight

Staff could suffer physical and emotional harm,
which could lead to long periods of sick leave.

BCP has been reviewed by IT Security Manager.
Consider Cyber Threat training and awareness
raising via internal exercises.

Ensure access to secure email is provided where
needed across organisation.

Member training provided Sept 24

Lone worker policy and procedure
Panic alarms and Body cameras

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 25




STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Authority’s responsibilities

Manage arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to ensure that one
of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that
officer is the Section 151 Officer.

Manage its affairs to ensure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard
its assets.

Approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s responsibilities:

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Authority’s Statement of Accounts
in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has:

Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

Made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

Complied with the Code;

Kept proper accounting records which are up to date;

Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities;

Assessed the Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern;

Used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of the
Authority will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future;

Maintained such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 26

~ Page 32 ~



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

Certification of the Accounts

| certify that the unaudited statement of accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position
of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council as at the 31 March 2025 and the Council’'s income and
expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2025.

P —

Colleen Warren
Chief Financial Officer and Section 151 Officer

Date: 20/06/2025

Approval of the Accounts

| certify that the unaudited Financial Statements have been approved by the Deputy Section 151
Officer in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 and are authorised
for issue.

Councillor Kevin Loydall
Chair, Audit Committee

Date 26/06/2025
e oA

Anne Court
Chief Executive

Date: 25/06/2025

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 27

~ Page 33 ~



~ i€ abed ~

THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Council, analysed into ‘useable reserves’ (i.e. those that
can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other reserves. The Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services line shows
the true economic cost of providing the Council’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. This is different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance and the Housing Revenue Account
for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes. The Net Increase/Decrease before Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves line shows
the statutory General Fund Balance and Housing Revenue Account Balance before any discretionary transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves
undertaken by the Council.

During the Covid-19 pandemic and recovery additional business rates reliefs were given by Central Government, billing authorities were
compensated by additional Section 31 grant. Due to the collection fund accounting rules, the impact of the additional reliefs created a deficit
taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account which is then required to be released and incurred in the following year. This requires that the
Section 31 Grant is held in reserve and released in the same year as the deficit is incurred. This is shown by the inclusion of the Section 31
Grant Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 28



~ G¢ obed ~

THE MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

Movement in reserves Statement

@ © —_
Q - =2 -
- -2 £ T= o o s -2 — 08 Doz 2o 2
$e: BZs 3 £8: 5% & gt Es: E2f3 38c §Ex 3zl
§C3 883 & Es3 3% 3i §of 8§53 358 33z 23s °sg
o
8“8 336¢ % 508 g d& g°¢& g 5 3&¢= S5&2 xS
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES 2024/25
I t 31 March 2024 v
ENREGe AW AL DE SR RN® 1,765 3 141 1,488 1,191 0 446 1,737 2 8065 59987 68,052
brought forward
(SurPIus) or Deficit on provision of “72) 0 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 ar 0 ()
services
Other C‘omprehensrve Income and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2018 2,018
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure (472) 0 301 0 0 0 0 0 0 (171) 2,018 1,847
Adjustments between accounting
basis & funding basis under 348 0 (48) 0 (561) 0 0 43 0 (215) 215 0
regulations
Net (Increase)/Decrease before
Transfers to Earmarked (124) 0 255 0 (561) 0 0 43 0 (386) 2,233 1,847
Reserves
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked
Reserves (Note 6) (218) 0 9 273 0 0 (64) 0 0 0 0 0
Increase/(Decrease) in Year (342) 0 264 273 (561) 0 (64) 43 0 (386) 2,233 1,847
Belance as atof March 2025 1,423 3 1675 1,761 630 0 382 1,780 2 7679 62,220 69,899
carried forward
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES 2023/24 - Restated
DUES AL Maniy A 1,180 3 1419 1,805 1,206 44 446 1,699 2 7916 63736 71,652
brought forward
(Surplus) or Deficit on provision of (5,838) (1,054) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (6,892) 0 (6,892)
services
Other C.omprehens'rve Income and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3292 3,202
Expenditure
Total Comprehensive Income L4 v
and Expenditure (5,838) 0 (1,054) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (6,892) 3,292 (3,600)
Adj between accounting
basis & funding basis under 6,049 0 1,059 0 (105) 0 0 38 0 7,041 (7,041) 0
regulations
Net (Increase)/Decrease before L4 L4
Transfers to Earmarked 210 0 6 0 (105) 0 0 38 0 149 (3,749) (3,600)
Reserves
Transfers to/(from) Earmarked
Reserves (Note 6) 375 (14) (317) (44) 0 0 0 0 0
(Increase)/Decrease in Year 585 0 8) (317) (105) 44) 0 38 0 149 (3,749)  (3,600)
Oalance as at HiNarchi2024 1,765 3 141 1488 1,191 0 a5 1,737 24 8065 59987 68,052

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25



THE COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This Statement (The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (CIES)) shows the accounting
cost in the year of providing services in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover
expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost.

The taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves (MIR) Statement.

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2023124

/
Restated ——
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
1,019 (2) 1,017 Customer Services & Business Transformation 1,027 (80) 947
1,118 (713) 405 Senior Leadership Team 351 (14) 337
1,480 (460) 1,020 Community and Wellbeing 1,290 (676) 614
5,591 (1,165) 4426 Corporate Assets 1,819 (1,170) 649
2,092 (562) 1,530 Depot 2,631 (835) 1,796
1,225 (457) 768 Law and Governance 1,255 (695) 560
3,739 (2,275) 1,464 The Built Environment 3,812 (3,158) 654
12,466 (7,733) 4733 Finance and Resources 12,865 (8,218) 4647
165 39 204 Covid 19 Council Costs 0 0 0
4743 (5,916) (1,173) Housing Revenue Account 4275 (6,276) (2,001)
33,638 (19,244) 14,394 Cost of Services 29,325 (21,122) 8,203
2) Other operating expenditure (Note 8) (517)
1,318 Financing and investment income (Note 9) 1,404
(8,818) Taxation and non-specific grant incomes (Note 10) (8,919)
6,892 (Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services 171
39 Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) (370)
(3,331) (Surplus) or deficit on revaluation of PP&E (1,648)
(3,292) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (2,018)
3,600 Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (1,847)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 30

~ Page 36 ~



THE BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities
recognised by the Council (31 March 2025). The net assets of the Council (assets less
liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council. Reserves are reported in two
categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, i.e., those reserves that the
authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of
reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve
that may only be used to fund capital expenditure or repay debt).

The second category of reserves is those that the Council is not able to use to provide
services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses
(for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to
provide services if the assets are sold, and reserves that hold timing differences shown in
the Movement in Reserves (MIR) Statement line “Adjustments between Accounting Basis
and Funding Basis under Regulations”.

31st March 31" March
2024 - 2025
Restated
£,000 £,000
107,430 Propenrty, Plant and Equipment 1 108,532
69 Heritage Assets 69
144 Investment Propenrty 12 150
83 Intangible Assets 13 50
5 Long Term Debtors 14 3
3,386 Assets Held for Sale 16 3,088
113,117 Non- Current Assets 111,892
1,001 Short Term Investments 40 1,600
40 Inventories 36
5,649 Short Term Debtors 14 5,087
923 Cash & Cash Equivalents 17 535
7,613 Current Assets 7,258
(19,658) Short Term Borrowing 40 (19,744)
(3,891) Short Term Creditors 18 (3,941)
(524) Short Term Provisions 19 (436)
(24,073) Current Liabilities (24,121)
(36) Long Term Creditors 40 (25)
(16,968) Long Term Borrowing 40 (15,871)
8,556 Net Pension Fund Liability 29 (7,466)
(1,044) Capital Grants and Receipts in Ad 20 (1,767)
(9,492) Non- Current Liabilities (25,129)
85,165 Net Assets 69,900
(8,065) Usable Reserves 6 (7,677)
(59,987) Unusable Reserves 21 (62,223)
(68,052) Total Reserves (69,900)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 31

~ Page 37 ~



THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the change in cash and cash equivalents of the authority
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the authority generates and uses cash
and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing
activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of
the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of taxation and grant
income or from the recipients of services provided by the authority. Investing activities
represent the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended
to contribute to the authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from financing
activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e.
borrowing) to the authority.

Cash Flow Statement

2023/24
£,000

6,892

(7,859)

401

(566)
3,850
(426)

2,858

3,782

924

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the provision of
services for non-cash movements (Note 22)

Adjustments for items included in the net surplus or deficit on
the provision of services that are investing and financing
activities (Note 22)

Net Cashflows from operating activities
Investing Activities (Note 22)
Financing Activities (Note 22)

Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning of the reporting
period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting
period (Note 17)

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 38 ~

202425
£,000

171

(4,953)

2,738

(2,044)

1,506
927

389

924

535

32



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Accounting Standards Issued but not Adopted

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting requires the Council to disclose the
expected impact of new standards that have been issued but not yet adopted by the Code for
the financial year.

The Code also requires that changes in accounting policy are to be applied retrospectively
unless transitional arrangements are specified, this would, therefore result in an impact on
disclosures spanning two financial years.

The standards applicable for 2024/25 financial statements, which will apply from 2025/26 are:

o |AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate (Lack of Exchangeability)
issued in August 2023. The amendments to IAS 21 clarify how an entity should assess
whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should determine a spot exchange rate
when exchangeability is lacking.

o IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts issued in May 2017. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 and sets out
principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance
contracts.

These changes are not expected to have a material impact on the Council’s financial

statements.

2. Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies as set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies the
Council has had to make critical judgements about complex transactions and those involving
uncertainty about future events.

Future Funding

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding for local government.
However, the Council has determined that this uncertainty is not yet sufficient to provide an
indication that the assets of the Council might be impaired, as a result of a need to close
facilities and reduce levels of service provision.

3. Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounting Policies describes the significant areas in which estimates and
assumptions have been made, relating to the reporting of results of operations and the
financial position of the Council.

The items in the Council’s Balance Sheet on 31 March 2025 for which there is significant risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 33

~ Page 39 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Item

Uncertainties

Effect if Actual Results Differ
from Assumptions

Property, Plant and
Equipment

(Value £107.4M, of which
Council Dwellings are
£78.7M)

See Note 11

The Council’s portfolio of land and
buildings are revalued on a five-year rolling
programme. This valuation is based upon
calculations and estimates made by the
Council’s valuers, in accordance with
Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors
(RICS) guidance. Change in asset values
are largely influenced by market forces,
which can be volatile. It is therefore
uncertain that the Council’s assets will not
see a significant change in value.

Any revaluation of assets
upwards or downwards would be
reflected on the Council’s balance
sheet. It is estimated that a 1%
change in asset valuations would
results in a change of £1.07M.

Pensions Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate

The effect on net pensions of
changes in individual
assumptions can be measured.

(Value £7.466M) used, the rate at which salaries are For instance: - A decrease in the
projected to increase, changes in discount rate assumption of 0.1%
retirement ages, mortality rates and would result in an increase in the

See Note 29 expected returns on pension fund assets. pension liability of £680k - A one-
These judgements are made by Hymans year increase in member life
Robertson actuaries appointed by expectancy would result in an
Leicestershire County Council, the pension | increase in the pension liability of
fund administer. £1.739m - Anincrease in the

pension increase rate of 0.1%
would result in an increase in the
pension liability of £679k

Arrears On 31 March 2025, the Council had a If collection rates were to

(Value £0.853M)

balance of £853k for sundry debtors. A
review of balances suggested that no
further impairment of doubtful debts of was
necessary.

deteriorate and sundry debt
increased with the same debt
profile, an additional contribution
would be required to be set aside
as an allowance.

Business Rate Appeals

(Value £372K)

See Note 19

The Business Rate Retention scheme
introduced a requirement to maintain a
provision for rating appeals. The system is
complex and neither the number of
successful appeals nor the percentage
reduction in rateable value (RV) achieved
can be pre-determined. The current
provision totals £818k, of which the
Council's share as a billing authority is
£327k, as detailed in note 19.

A change of 5% in the assumed
RV reduction achieved for each
NDR appeal could increase or
decrease the provision
requirement by around £41k. Of
this, the Council's share as a
billing authority would be £16k.

4. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 34

~ Page 40 ~



~ T{ obed ~

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Adjustments between Accounting and Funding Basis under Requlation

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and expenditure recognised by the Council in the year in
accordance with proper accounting practice to the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being available to the Council to meet
future capital and revenue expenditure.

[ 2023124 | 2024125 |
° @ - 2 2 £ e @ - 2 £
£f $3f 5 $9f iyos2tgd oz;#i gp Pzi s f3f 1t ospfgi iid
T2 s2% 3 g§§ €% Bgy R Efs s og2e g fLy €3 Rei oE ELg
$d 8°2 g goe & °22 35 g5& 4 2°2 g o2 2& O22 35 g5
o T Q o I Q
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 ¢£000 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 ¢£000 £000 €000
Adjustments primarily involving the CAA
Reversal of items debited or credited to the Comprehensive Ir and Expenditure Statement
Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets S.675 0 2.521 0 0 0 0 (8,196) 2,048 1912 0 0 0 0 (3,960)
Movements in fair value of investment properties S) 0 0 0 0 0 S 6) 0 0 0 0 0 6
Amortisation of intangible assets 100 0 23 0 0 0 0 (123) 46 23 0 0 0 0 (63)
Capital grants and contributions applied 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 933 0 0 0 0 0 (993) 784 0 0 0 0 0 (784)
Arr_\ounls of nc_m-cunent assets written off on disposal or sale as part of the 0 0 394 0 0 0 0 (334) 408 543 0 0 0 0 (354)
gainfloss on disposal to the I&E
Subtotal 6.763 0 2,938 0 0 0 0 (9.701) 3.278 0 2,483 0 0 0 0 (5.761)
Insertion of items not debited or credited to I&E
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment (224) 0 0 0 0 0 0 224 (303) 0 0 0 0 0 0 303
Capital expenditure charged against earmarked reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Subtotal (224) 0 0 224 (303) 0 0 0 0 0 0 303
Adjustments primarily involving the capital grants unapplied account
Application of grants to capital financing transferred to CAA (8086) 0 0 0 0 0 0 806 (1,030) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,030
Subtotal (806) 0 0 0 0 0 0 806 (1.030) 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,030

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 35



~ 21 oabed ~

NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ 2023124 - Restated | | 2024425
° v 2 32 c ° @ 2 2 €
5 o _ o T_w = _ ED 9w < o _ ] T_w = _ ED C 9w
€8 $38 5 €Ty 3¢ e S& fs: &% p3f 5 €Ty 3% jE: 52 $3g
TS g3 3 gEg 28 "Es ZE £ TS s2¢ 3 gis €3 YL CE E3g
18 83¢ 5 ;o6& ze Ose §3 §5& :d £#0s 5 ;38 ¢ Sad 33 35%
o I 2 I ] = 2 3
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Adj ts primarily involving the capital receipts reserve
:rs:r:f;rl;fEcash sale proceeds credited as part of gain ! loss on disposal of (38) 0 (358) 0 0 396 0 0 (644) 0 @27 0 0 1471 0 0
Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 (358) 0 358 0 0 0 0 0 (1428) 0 1428
Contribution from. the cap-ital receipts reserve to finance payments to the 1 0 0 0 0 o) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Government capital receipts pool
Subtotal 37 0 (358) 1] 0 37 0 358 (644) 0 (827) 0 0 43 0 1,428
Adj primarily involving the Major Repairs Reserve
Reversal of Major Repairs Allow ance credited to the HRA 0 0 (1.517) 0 1517 0 0 0 0 0 (1,633) 0 1633 0 0
Use of the Major Repairs Reserve to finance new capital expenditure 0 0 0 (1.823) 0 0 1623 0 0 0 (21%4) 0 0 2,134
0 0 (1.517) 0 (106) 0 1] 1.623 0 0 (1.633) 0 (561 0 0 2,194
Adjustments involving the Financial Ir s Adj it Account
Amount by which finance costs charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement are different from finance costs chargeable in the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
in accordance with statutory requirements
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m 0 0 0 0 0 0 7
Adj pril ily i lving the p i reserve
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits Or or Cr to I&E 1,729 0 150 0 0 0 0 (1,879) 1,296 0 155 0 0 0 0 (1,451
Employers contributions and direct payments to pensioners payable in year (1,731 0 (150) 0 0 0 0 1,881 (1,940) 0 (232) 0 0 0 0 2,1
Subtotal (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 (644) 0 N 0 0 1] 0 720
Adjustments primarily involving the collection fund adjustment account
Amount by which council tax and NOR income credited to the I&E is different
from council tax and NOR income calculated for the year in accordance with 334 0 0 0 0 0 0 (394) (347) 0 0 0 0 0 0 347
statutory requirements
Adjustments primarily involving the lated ab account
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on accrual basisis
different from remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory (39) 0 (3) 0 0 0 0 42 44 0 9 0 0 0 0 (S3)
requirement
Total adjustments 6.049 0 1,060 0 (106) 37 0 (7.040) 347 0 (45) 0 (561 43 0 215
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 36



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. Transfers to/from Earmarked Reserves

This note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) balances in earmarked reserves to provide financing for future expenditure plans and the
amounts posted back from earmarked reserves to meet General Fund and HRA expenditure in
2024/25.

Transfers Transfers
Balance at 31st In/(Out)  (To)/From Balance at 31st IN/(Out) (To)Fro  gajance at 31st
March 2023 Other March 2024 mOther  march 2025
Reserves Reserves
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Earmarked Reserves* 2,295 (288) (74) 1,933 (15) 225 2,143
Total Earmarked Reserves 2,295 (288) (74) 1,933 (15) 225 2,143
Deferred Capital Receipts 3 0 0 3 0 0 3
Capital Grants Unapplied 24 0 0 24 0 0 24
Capital Receipts Reserve 1,699 38 0 1,737 43 0 1,780
General Fund 1,180 21 375 1,766 (343) 0 1,423
Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 1,296 (105) 0 1,191 (561) 0 630
HRA 1,419 5 (14) 1,410 264 0 1,674
Total Useable Reserves 5,621 149 361 6,131 (597) 0 5,534
Useable Reserves 7,916 (139) 287 8,064 (612) 225 7,677
Earmarked Reserves
General Fund
Budget Carried Forward 27 (20) @) 0 51 0 51
Corporate Challenge S8 (58) 0 0 0 0 0
Disabled Facilties 22 0 (22) 0 0 0 0
Contingency 139 0 0 139 0 0 139
Land Valuation 1 0 0 1 0 0 1
Collection Fund 446 0 0 446 671) 225 0
FRueatsaeir:s Business Rates 0 0 0 0 282 0 282
Covid 19 45 0 (45) 0 0 0 0
Local Elections 58 (58) 0 0 18 0 18
GF Cost of Living 42 0 0 42 0 0 42
Lottery 0 6 0 6 6 0 12
Grounds Maintenance 257 207 0 464 (50) 0 414
Local Plan Reserve 204 (13) 0 191 238 0 429
Earmarked Grants S77 (352) 0 225 1 0 236
HRA
Regeneration 361 0 0 361 0 0 361
Budget Carried Forward 8 0 0 8 0 0 8
HRA Cost of Living 50 0 0 50 0 0 S0
2,295 (288) (74) 1,933 (15) 225 2,143
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 37

~ Page 43 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Purpose of Reserves

Details of the purpose of reserves with balances at the end of 2024/25 which are not given
elsewhere in either the Notes to the Core Financial Statements or the Statement of Accounting
Policies are shown below.

Useable Revenue Reserves - 31 March 2021 government changed how authorities are
compensated through the S31 grants for administering their Covid-19 support programmes.
Primarily in the form of Business Rate Reliefs and Business Grants. Due to timing the payments
were not considered within the NNDR 1 set business rates share for 2020/21. They were paid
to the General Fund in the year and the reliefs sit in Earmarked Reserves at the year end.
(Revised Note has been complied to reflect the movements and changes as per reporting
requirements).

Usable Capital Receipts - Proceeds of fixed asset sales available to meet future capital
investment

Capital Grants Unapplied- Reserve contains capital grants for which all conditions of use have
been fulfilled but have yet to be used for funding.

Deferred Capital Receipts - Proceeds of fixed asset sales which are not receivable
immediately on sale.

General Fund - Resources available to meet future running costs of non-housing services.

Housing Revenue Account - Resources available to meet future running costs of council
houses.

Budget Carried Forward - Contains authorised budget carry forwards from this year, to be used
in the next financial year.

Contingency Reserve - To safeguard against budget risk and for one-off priming initiatives.

Land Valuation Reserve - To allow the Council to value land within the Borough with a view to
selling.

NNDR Equalisation - To hold the surplus of Section 31 grant received from central government
in-year over and above the applicable deficit on business rate for the year. This will be released
to the collection fund to offset the expected deficit on businesses rates.

Local Elections Reserve - To balance the budget for the four-yearly borough election cycle.
Contributions of one quarter of the anticipated cost of the election are appropriated into the
reserve in each of years 1-3 and the balance is then appropriated out in the year of the election.

Retained Business Rates Reserve - To hold the amounts required to fund the anticipated deficit
on business rates collection over the following three financial years.

General Fund Cost of Living Reserve - To fund measures aimed at supporting borough residents
struggling the most with the cost-of-living crisis.

Grounds Maintenance Reserve - This reserve holds commuted lump sums received from
developers earmarked for the maintenance of specific green spaces.

Local Plan Reserve - Formerly Housing and Planning Delivery Grant Reserve and will be used
to fund the development of the Local Plan in future years.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 38

~ Page 44 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Earmarked Revenue Grants Reserve - Reserves containing the proceeds of revenue Grants
and Contributions grants and other external contributions that are yet to be used.

Regeneration Reserve - Additional reserve set aside for regeneration and new build of council
housing.

Major Repairs Reserve - Resources available to meet capital investment in council housing.

HRA Fund Cost of Living Reserve - To fund measures aimed at supporting Council tenants
struggling the most with the cost-of-living crisis.

Lottery Reserve - Funds from the community lottery for disbursement to good causes.

7. Material Iltems of Income and Expenditure

For 2024/25 the Council has the following material items of income and expenditure for both
capital and revenue:

The Council paid out £5.327m in housing benefits during 2024/25 and a further £2.005m in rent
rebates. The Government subsidy that provides the funding for these items is included in Note
30 to the core statements. The Council also carried out £2.994m of major refurbishment work
on the Council’s housing stock.

8. Other Operating Expenditure

2023/24 2024/25
£,000 £,000
209 Carrying amount of non-current assets 954
(212) Proceeds from sale of non-current assets (1,471)
1 Contribution to Housing Pooled Capital Receipts 0
(2) (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets (517)

9. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2023/24 2024/25
£,000 £,000

1,203 Interest payable and similar charges 1,474
(5) (Gains)/Losses on revaluation of investment properties (6)

286 Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets 130

(166) Interest receivable and similar income (194)
1,318 Total 1,404

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 39

~ Page 45 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure

2023124
£,000

(62)
(4,464)
14
0
(6,201)
3,704
42
114
0
(1,274)
(433)
(258)

(8,818)

General Government Grants

Council Tax Income

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax
Council Tax Adjustment

Non Domestic Rates Income

Non Domestic Rates Tariff Payment

Non Domestic Rates Levy

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - NNDR
National Non Domestic Rates Adjustment
S31 Small Business Rates Relief

Capital Grants and Contributions

New Homes Bonus

Total

202425
£,000

(163)
(4,666)
(75)

319
(5,064)
3,847
146

(48)
(427)
(1,493)
(1,008)
(287)

(8,919)

General government grants, contributions in the form of Revenue Support Grant, NDR
redistribution, other non-ringfenced government grants are disclosed within Taxation, non-
specific grant, income and expenditure.

Revenue grants which are contributions that are not considered as general grants are credited
to service revenue accounts, support services, trading accounts and the Housing Revenue

Account (HRA).

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 46 ~

40



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. Property, Plant and Equipment

2 - 0 3 s &
=2 2 g, s 5% X £EE
g £ 33 ER 2L S 5 S¢S
55 sz c: 255 x5 GZiis
a ‘s 3 o @ Ss =
°8 8§ §< 8°EF &% sa g
< w < ©
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Cost or Valuation
78,411 23,411 2,794 7,912 178 112,706
Additions 1,799 175 9 2,071 0 4,054
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Revaluation Reserve ) (228) o “ B oo
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of (621) (74) 11) 0 (178) (884)
Services
De-recognition — disposals (sales) (475) 0 0 (430) 0 (905)
De-recognition — disposals (components) (73) 0 0 0 0 (73)
De-recognition — other 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assets reclassified — to/from Non-Operational B 0 0 0 0 0
Assets
Assets re;lasmﬁed —to/from Assets Under 0 0 0 0 0 0
Construction
At 31* March 2025 78,721 23,284 2,732 9,553 0 114,290
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1% April 2024 0 0 (5,276) (5,276)
Depreciation charge (1,458) (1,501) 9) (819) 0 (3,787)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 960 1297 0 0 0 2,257
Reserve
Eipéfjlflziz v:fngisﬁ?‘t:teto the Surplus/Deficit on 498 204 9 0 5 711
Impairment losses recognised in the 0 0 0 0 0 0
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
De-recognition — disposals 0 0 0 339 0 339
De-recognition — other 0 0 0 0 0 0
At 31* March 2025 0 0 0 (5,756) 0 (5,756)
Net Book Value
At 31% March 2024 78,411 23,411 2,794 2,636 178 107,430
At 31% March 2025 78,721 23,284 2,732 3,797 0 108,534
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 41

~ Page 47 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- - (=] -
- = o 5 & @ s = i -
S o & © =) o588 ®,e0 —fgcEQo
£ JES 22 SEZ2E 28:.- EzcE
5¢ 2°% E2 525°5 252 Sgs5%
8 § o S¢ s & § <78 £a g
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Cost or Valuation
At 1% April 2023 78,299 24,615 2,630 8,948 3,928 118,420
Additions 1,684 43 43 950 1,015 T35
Revaluatlon m;reases/(decreases) recognised 331 266 125 . 5 722
in the Revaluation Reserve
Revaluation increases/(decreases) recognised
in the Surplus / Deficit on the Provision of (1,509) (4,598) (4) 0 0 (6,111)
Services
De-recognition — disposals (sales) (185) 0 0 (325) 0 (510)
De-recognition — disposals (components) (209) 0 0 0 0 (209)
De-recognition —other 0 0 0 (1,661) 0 (1,661)
Assets reclassified — to/from Non-Operational 0 (1.262) 0 0 370)  (1,632)
Assets
Assets re_classnﬁed —to/from Assets Under 0 4347 0 0 (4,395) (48)
Construction
At 31* March 2024 78,411 23,41 2,794 7,912 178 112,706
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1% April 2023 0 0 0 (6,542) 0 (6,542)
Depreciation charge (1,385) (1,203) (10) (720) 0 (3,318)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation 902 907 0 0 o 1,809
Reserve
Deprecngtl.on written put to the Surplus/Deficit on 483 206 10 0 0 789
the Provision of Services
Impairment losses recognised in the 5 0 0 0 0 0
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
De-recognition — disposals 0 0 0 325 0 325
De-recognition — other 0 0 0 1,661 0 1,661
At 31* March 2024 0 0 0 (5,276) 0 (5,276)
Net Book Value
At 31% March 2024 78,411 23,411 2,794 2,636 178 107,430
7 © s
=2 -3 = ; SE - g €
B Sg 5% fgsg g$§3 szfse
3% 3 g3 ££8% 25§ RE3s
Q F— < 0 <=3 < = [ &
a © > = aa
o) z Q 2 w 8 w
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Carried at historical Cost 0 0 2,794 2,636 178 5,608
Valued at Current or Fair Value as at:
30th March 2024 78,411 23411 0 0 0 101,822
78,411 23,411 2,794 2,636 178 107,430

Depreciation

The following useful lives have been used in the calculation of depreciation:

i) Council Dwellings — 40 Years

i) Other land and buildings - 5 to 40 years

iii) Vehicle Plant and Equipment - 5 to 10 years
iv) Park Equipment — 20 years

Capital Commitments

As of 31 March 2025, the Council had outstanding capital commitments of £215k (2023/24

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 42

~ Page 48 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£423k) on the Housing Revenue Account, primarily relating to disability adaptations and fire
safety works.

As of 31 March 2025, the Council had outstanding capital commitments of £595k (2023/24
£149k) on the General Fund, mostly relating to new refuse vehicles and other equipment
associated with the implementation of food waste collection.

Valuation of Assets

The freehold and leasehold properties which comprise the Council’s property portfolio have
been valued as of 31 March 2025 by an external independent valuer, Innes England, in
accordance with the statements of Asset Valuation Practice and Guidance Notes of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

Assets that are held on the balance sheet at current value are formally revalued on a five-year
rolling programme, with any material changes to valuations adjusted in the interim. During
2024/25, all General Fund fixed assets were individually revalued to provide a baseline for the
programme going forward, while Council Dwellings were valued using the “Beacon Principle”.
Inspections to determine the Beacon properties were carried out between March and April 2025.

Plant and machinery directly associated with the building is generally included in the valuation
of the buildings. However, where in conjunction with the valuer it is found that a building has
plant of which the value forms a significant part of the building and which needs to be
depreciated at a different rate from the building, then this has been dealt with as a separate
item.

Properties regarded by the Council as operational were valued on the basis of open market
value for the existing use or, where this could not be assessed because there was no market
value for the subject asset, the depreciated replacement cost.

Where an impairment loss on an operational fixed asset occurs this has been recognised, if it
is caused by a clear consumption of economic benefit (e.g. physical damage or deterioration in
the quality of the service provided by the asset), or a significant decline in the market value of
assets that is significantly greater than would be expected as a result of the passage of time or
normal use.

In order to judge impairment of Council Dwellings, a rolling stock condition survey is being
carried out. Any assets that are considered to have suffered any impairment are referred to the
Council’s independent valuer for assessment. To date no impairment relating to obsolescence
has been recognised although some assets have suffered a reduction in value due to market
forces.

12. Investment Properties

The following items of income and expense have been accounted for in the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

2023/24 2024/25
£,000 £,000
(18) Rental Income from Investment Property (19)
(18) Net Gains/(losses) (19)

There are no restrictions on the Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 43

~ Page 49 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

property or on the Council’s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of disposal. The
Council has no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment property or
repairs, maintenance or enhancement.

2024/25 has seen a net increase of £6k in the value of the Council’s investment properties due
to revaluation gains

The current investment property balance consists of £150k of retail property let out.

2023/24 2024/25
£,000 £,000
139 Balance at 1 April 144
0 Disposals 0
5 Revaluat.ic?n Gain Regognised in the Surplus/(Deficit) on 6
the Provision of Services
0 Reclassification of assets 0
144 Balance at 31 March 150

13. Intangible Assets

The Council accounts for its software and licenses as intangible assets, to the extent that the
software is not an integral part of a particular IT system and accounted for as part of the
hardware item of Property, Plant and Equipment.

All software is given a finite useful life, based on assessments of the period that the software is
expected to be of use to the Council. The useful life assigned to all the major software suites
used by the Council is 5 years.

Amortisation of the assets is charged to the ICT support service and then recharged to services
on an appropriate basis under Net Cost of Services within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

2023/24 2024125
£,000 £,000
Balance at start of year:
- Gross carrying amounts 1,368 1,139
- Accumulated amortisation (1,168) (1,056)
Net carrying amount at start of year 200 83
Additions:
- Purchases 6 36
Disposals (235) (212)
Amortisation for the period (123) (69)
Amortisation on disposals 235 212
Net carrying amount at end of year (Note 1) (117) (245)
Comeprising:
Gross carrying amounts 1,139 963
Accumulated amortisation (1,056) (913)
Net carrying amount at end of year 83 50
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 44

~ Page 50 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Debtors

Gross amounts falling due in less than one year are:

Central Government Bodies
Other Local Authorities
Council Tax Payers

NNDR

Housing Rents

Housing Benefit Overpayment
Sundry Debtors

Prepayments

Other Entities and Individuals

Impairment allowances on those amounts are:

Council Tax Payers

NNDR

Housing Rents

Housing Benefit Overpayment
Sundry Debtors

Net amount falling due in less than one year is:

Amounts falling due after one year are:

Voluntary Organisation Loans
Car Loans to Employees
Other Long Term Debtors

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

2024/25

£000's
879
1,373
718
548
338
406
943
605
3,559

5,810

2024/25

£000's
(204)
(82)
(139)
(220)
(80)

(724)

2024/25

£000's
5,086

5,086

2024/25

£000's

wio O w

~ Page 51 ~

2023/24

£000's
721
1,477
792
835
355
475
1,622
304
4,383

6,581

2023/24

£000's
(183)
(80)
(275)
(277)
(116)

(932)

2023/24

£000's
5,649

5,649

2023/24

£000's

NN W

45



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Investments

The Council had £1.600m of short-term investments outstanding as of 31 March 2025 (2023/24
£1.001m).

The Council had no long-term investments outstanding as of 31 March 2025 (2023/24 £0m)

16. Assets Held for Sale

31° March 2024 31 March 2025
£'000 £'000
871 Oadby Swimming Complex 888
2,200 Former Council Offices 2,200
315 Walter Charles Community Centre 0
3,386  Total 3,088

17. Cash and Cash Equivalent and Bank Overdrawn

31% March 2024 31 March 2025
£'000 £'000
323 Short Term Deposits 14
0 Cash held by the Authority 1
600 Bank current accounts 520
923 Total 535

Cash and cash equivalents consist of short-term bank deposits and money market funds.
Short-term bank deposits consist primarily of money market deposits, which can be readily
converted to cash at short notice. The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits on
31 March 2025 was 1.11% (1.45% as of 31 March 2024). The maximum exposure to credit
risk for cash and cash equivalents is equal to the carrying value.

18. Short Term Creditors

31° March 2024 31 March 2025
£'000 £'000
(1,353) Central Government Bodies (763)
(42) Other Local Authorities (42)
(2,496) Other Entities and Individuals (3,136)
(3,891)  Total (3,941)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 46

~ Page 52 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. Short Term Provisions

Accumulated NNDR

Provision for Exit Total

Absences Appeals court costs Packages
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 1% April 2024 (12) (348) 0 (164) (524)
Arising during the year (64) (303) (45) 0 (412)
Used during the year 12 324 0 164 500
Balance at 31% March 2025 (64) (327) (45) 0 (436)

The accumulated absences provision represents the value of employee benefits, mainly flexi
time and annual holiday entitlement not taken by 1 April each year.

The NNDR appeals provision has been set up to fund appeals against rateable values for
business within the Borough which will be utilised as appeals are settled.

20. Capital Grants and Contributions - Receipts in Advance

2023/24
£,000
(5) Big Lottery Grant - Toy Library
(1) Big Lottery Grant - Mobile Library
(10) Section 106 South Wigston Regeneration
(790) S106 Open Space
(6) Green Roof Bus Shelter
(1) Brocks Hill Alarm
(5) DECC Grant
(10) LCC BRP Kirkby Bridge
(11) Treescape Grant
(205) Social Housing Decarbonisation
0 Food Waste Scheme
0 UK Shared Prosperity
(1,044) Total

21. Unusable Reserves

2023124
£'000
(42,911) Capital adjustment account
(26,146) Revaluation reserve
8,556 Pensions reserve
493 Collection fund adjustment account
1" Accumulated absences account
7 Financial Instruments Adjustment account
(59,990) Total Unusable Reserves

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 53 ~

2024/25
£,000
(5)
(1)
(10)
(1,110)

202425
£'000
(43,623)
(26,276)

7,466
146

64

0
(62,223)

47



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. A Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumption of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under statutory provisions.

The account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as
depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement (CIES) (with reconciling postings from the Revaluation Reserve to
convert fair value figures to a historical cost basis). The account is credited with the amounts
set aside by the Council as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement.

The account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
before 1 April 2007, the date the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.

2023124 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(48,479)  Balance at 1" April (42,911)
Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure debited or
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement:
Adjustment in respect of previous years
8,196 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non-current assets 3,960
123 Amortisation of intangible assets 69
992 Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute 784
Amounts of non-current assets written off on disposal or sale as part
394 of the gain/loss on disposal to the Comprehensive Income and 954
Expenditure Statement
9,705 Subtotal 5,767
(1,121) Adjusting amounts written out of the revaluation reserve (1,312)
B Accumulated gains on assets sold written out of the revaluation (206)
reserve
8,584 Net written 'out amount of the cost of non-current assets 4,249
consumed in the year
Capital financing applied in the year:
(358) Use of the capital receipts reserve to finance new capital expenditure (1,428)
Capital grants and contributions credited to the Comprehensive
(806) Income and Expenditure Statement that have been applied to capital (1,030)
financing
(224) Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment charged (303)
against the General Fund (MRP)
(1,623) Major Repairs Reserve (2,194)
(3,011) Subtotal (4,955)
5) Movements in the Market Value of Investment Property Debited or ©6)
Credited to the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement
(42,911)  Balance at 31" March (43,623)

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 54 ~

48



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. B Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in
the value of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets.

The balance is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

o Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
e Used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
o Disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that
the Reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(23,936)  Balance at 1" April (26,146)

(3,331) Downward (Upward) revaluation of assets (1,648)

Difference between fair value depreciation and historical cost

1,121 g 1312
depreciation

0 Accumulated gains on assets sold 206

(26,146)  Balance at 31* March (26,276)

21. C Pensions Fund Reserve

The Pension Reserve absorbs the timing differences arising from the arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and for funding benefits in accordance with
statutory provisions. The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by employees
accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect inflation, changing
assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside to meet the costs.

Statutory arrangements require benefits earned to be financed as the Council makes
employers contributions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which it is
directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pension Reserve therefore shows a substantial
shortfall in the benefits earned by past and current employees and the resources the Council
has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that funding will have
been set aside by the time the benefits come to be paid.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
8,519 Balance at 1st April 8,556
(436) Transfer to pension fund 340
475 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset) * (710)
Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited or credited
1,879 to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the 1,451
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(1.881) Em‘ploye.rs pen'swn contributions and direct payments to pensioners 2.171)
payable in the year
8,556  Balance at 31" March 7,466

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 55 ~

49



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. D Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The account collects the differences between adjustments under statute and actual council tax
and non-domestic rates income.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £000
99  Balance at 1% April 493
Amount by which council tax and non-domestic rates income credited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is different from
394 . . . . (347)
council tax and non-domestic rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements
493 Balance at 31°' March 146

21. E Accumulated Absences Account

The account collects the authority’s obligation to staff for leave earned but not taken at the end
of the financial year.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
54 Balance at 1°* April 1
Amount by which remuneration charged to the Comprehensive Income
(43) and Expen.diture Statemerlt onan acs:ruals basis is different from 53
remuneration chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements
11 Balance at 31°' March 64
21. A Cash Flow Statement — Investing
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
3685 Purch;se of property, plant and equipment, investment property and 4107
intangible assets
(397) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment (1,471)
1,000 Proceeds from short term and long term investments 600
(438) Other receipts from investing activities (1,731)
3,850 Net cash flows from investing activities 1,505
22. B Cash Flow Statement - Financing Activities
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(3,500) Cash receipts from short and long term borrowing 0
1,094 Repayments of short and long term borrowing 1,097
394 Appropriation to/from the Collection Fund Adjustment Account (347)
1,586 Other payments for financing activities 177
(426) Net cash flows from financing activities 927

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 56 ~

50



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. C Net cashflows from Operating Activities

2023124 2024/25
£'000 £'000
6,892 Surplus or Deficit 171

2023124 2024/25
(8,319) Depreciation and Impairment of non-current assets (4,029)
(96) Bad debts written off in year (67)

(2) Increasel/(decrease) in Inventories (3)

951 Increase/(decrease) in Debtors (142)

307 Increasel/(decrease) in Creditors (571)

2 Net charges made for retirement benefits 720

(185) Carrying amount of non-current assets sold (881)

(209) Carrying amount of non-current assets de-recognised (73)
(318) Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 87

5 Movementin the value of investment properties 6

5 Other cash and non-cash movements 0

(7,859) (4,953)
(602) Adju§tments for itgms ir_1c|uded in thg Sum!u§_or Deficit on the Provision of 1,545

Services that are investing or financing activities

(168) Interestreceived in year (196)

1,171 Interest paidin year 1,389

401 2,738

(566) Net Cashflows from operating activities (2,044)

Net Movement in Liquid Resources

The Council seeks to maximise return on short term cash surpluses by the use of money

market deposits.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £000

1,323 Money Market (Short Term deposits) 1,614
(1,883) Increase/(Decrease) in Year 291

The Council collects Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates on behalf of its Precepting
Authorities and the Government. At the end of the year the difference between money
collected and paid over is shown as an increase or decrease in liquid resources.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
1,586 Net Movement in Other Liquid Resources 176

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 57 ~

51



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. Note to The Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis below shows how annual expenditure is used and
funded from resources (government grants, rents, Council Tax and Business Rates) by local
authorities, in comparison with those resources consumed or earned by authorities in

accordance with generally accepted accounting practices

It also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision making purposes, between the
Council’s directorates/ services/ departments. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fully in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement.

There is a material difference between the outturn reported in the Expenditure
Funding analysis and that in the Q4 monitoring report submitted to committee, and included in
the Narrative Statement. This is comprised of adjustments for accrued leave, debt charges
included in the outturn report but disclosed elsewhere in the CIES, recharges between the GF
and the HRA, and HRA depreciation disclosed in the outturn report, but reversed out of the

CIES.

| 2023124 | | 2024125 |
NetE dit Net Expenditure in Net Expenditure Net Expenditure
Che XPz:‘ : u'r: Adjustment the Chargeable to Adjustment in the
angeame fothe between Funding Comprehensive the General between Funding Comprehensiv
General Fund and " &
& Accounting Income & Fund and HRA & Accounting e Income &
HRA Balances " ” " =
Raliiics Basis Expenditure Balances Basis Expenditure
Statement Balance Statement
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Customer Services &
1,022 @) 1,015 Business 972 (24) 948
Transformation
446 @1) A SoevLeadessiip 379 42) 337
Team
32 1,022 T T e (356) 969 613
Wellbeing
453 3,941 4394 Corporate Assets 374 276 650
1,255 276 1,531 Depot 1,013 783 1,796
779 (10) 769 Law and Governance 626 (66) 560
723 741 1,464 The Built Environment 453 200 653
4112 619 a7ay Tinanceand 4,630 18 4,648
Resources
204 0 204 Covid 19 Council 0 0 0
Costs
Housing Revenue
(3,658) 2,485 (1,173) ACEGinE (3,850) 1,848 (2,002)
5,368 9,026 14,394 Net Cost of Services 4,241 3,962 8,203
Other Operating
0 (2) 2) Expenditure 0 (517) (517)
2,821 (1,503) 1313 nandngs 3471 (1,767) 1,404
Investment Income
Taxation & Non-
(8,406) (412) (8,818) Specific Grants (7,543) (1,376) (8,919)
Other Income &
(5,585) (1,917) (7,502) Expenditure (4,372) (3,660) (8,032)
(217) 7,109 6,892 (Surplus)/Deficit (131) 302 171
Opening General Fund
S50 & HRA Balance )
(Plus)less movement
(578) in GF and HRA 79
balances
(3,77) Closing Balance (3,098)
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 52

~ Page 58 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Adjustments for Capital Purposes

This column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation gains and losses in the
services line and for:

= Other operating expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income on
disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

* Financing and investment income and expenditure — the statutory charges for capital
financing, i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions are
deducted from other income and expenditure as these are not chargeable under
generally accepted accounting practices.

» Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — capital grants are adjusted
for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices. Revenue
grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable without
conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The Taxation and
Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with capital grants
receivable in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in the
year.

Note 2 — Net Change for the Pensions Adjustments

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS 19 Employee
Benefits pension related expenditure and income:

» For services — this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions made
by the authority as allowed by statute and the replacement with current service costs
and past service costs.

» For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the net interest on the defined

benefit liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
(CIES).

Note 3 — Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under statute:

» For Financing and investment income and expenditure — the other differences column
recognises adjustments to the General Fund for the timing differences of premiums and
discounts.

» Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure — this charge represents the
difference between, what is chargeable under statutory regulations for council tax and
NNDR that was projected to be received at the start of the year, and the income
recognised under generally accepted accounting practices in the Code. This is a timing
difference as any difference will be brought forward in future Surpluses or Deficits on the
Collection Fund.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 53

~ Page 59 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2024/25
Adjustments from the General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Adjustmgnts i chapge Other Total
a for Capital for Pensions z i
Income and Expenditure Statement amounts | adjustments Adjustments
Purposes Adjustments
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Customer Services & Business Transformation 70 (94) 0 (24)
Senior Leadership Team 0 (42) 0 (42)
Community and Wellbeing 983 (14) 0 969
Corporate Assets 363 (87) 0 276
Depot 903 (120) 0 783
Law and Governance 15 (81) 0 (66)
The Built Environment 301 (101) 0 200
Finance and Resources 243 (225) 0 18
Housing Revenue Account 1,935 (87) 0 1,848
Net Cost of Services 4813 (851) 0 3,962
Other Income and Expenditure from the EFA (3,490) 130 (300) (3,660)
Dmerenf:e between GF and HRA (Surplus) or Deficit and CIES (Surplus) 1323 (721) (300) 302
or Deficit
2023/24
. . . Adjustments Net change
Adjustments from the General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Income . . Other Total
. for Capital for Pensions . .
and Expenditure Statement amounts . adjustments Adjustments
Purposes  Adjustments
£,000 £,000 £,000 £,000
Customer Services & Business Transformation 75 (82) 0 (7)
Senior Leadership Team 0 (41) 0 (41)
Community and Wellbeing 1,034 (12) 0 1,022
Corporate Assets 4,028 (87) 0 3,941
Depot 383 (107) 0 276
Law and Governance 74 (84) 0 (10)
The Built Environment 828 (87) 0 741
Finance and Resources 348 271 0 619
Housing Revenue Account 2,544 (59) 0 2,485
Net Cost of Services 9,314 (288) 0 9,026
Other Income and Expenditure from the EFA (2,555) 286 352 (1,917)
Diffferzence between GF and HRA (Surplus) or Deficit and CIES (Surplus) or 6,759 @ 352 7,109
Deficit
Segmental Income
Income received on a segmental basis is analysed below:
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(2) Customer Services and Business Transformation (80)
(713) Senior Leadership Team (14)
(460) Community and Wellbeing (676)
(1,165) Corporate Assets (1,170)
(562) Depot (835)
(457) Law and Governance (695)
(2,275) The Built Environment (3,158)
(7,733) Finance and Resources (8,218)
39 Covid 19 Council Costs 0
(5,916) Housing Revenue Account (6,276)
(19,244) (21,122)

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 60 ~

54



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

The authority’s expenditure and income is analysed as follows:

2023124 2024/25
£,000 £,000

Expenditure
Employee Benefits Expenditure 8,993 8,507
Other services expenses 15,600 16,239
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 8,319 4029
REFCUS 829 784
Interest Payments 3,493 3,841
Precepts and Levies 3,821 4617
Loss on disposal of assets 0 0
Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool i 0
Total expenditure 41,056 38,017
Income
Fees charges and other service income (12,008) (13,250)
Interest and Investmentincome (2,181) (2,431)
Income from council tax, NNDR and district rates (10,612) (10,585)
Government grants and Contributions (9,355) (11,057)
Gain on disposal of assets (8) (523)
Total income (34,164) (37,846)
(Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services (6,892) 171

25. Members Allowances

In 2024/25, the Council paid allowances to members totalling £167,379 (2023/24 £172,876).

26. Audit Costs

In 2024/25 Oadby and Wigston Borough Council incurred the following fees relating to external

audit and inspection:

2023/24
£'000
Fees payable to external auditors with regards to external audit
139 ) i ; :
services carried out by the appointed auditor for the year
46 Fees Payable in respect of other services
185 Total

Fees payable for other services comprise £81.5k for audit of Housing Benefit, and £20k for

audit of Right-to-Buy Pooling.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 61 ~

202425
£'000

55



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. Related Party Transactions

The aim of this note is to demonstrate that any material transactions between the Council and
those in a position to influence decisions are properly disclosed.

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the extent
to which the Council might have been constrained in its ability to operate independently or might
have secured the ability to limit another party’s ability to bargain freely with the Council.

The Council is also required to disclose interests it holds in companies and other entities.

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Council — it is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates, provides
substantial funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many of the transactions
that the Council has with other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills, housing benefits). Grant funding
received from central government is shown within Note 39 to the accounts.

As Members and Chief Officers are considered to be related party, a Register of Interest is used
to record and monitor related party transactions. Disclosure forms were also completed by both
Members and Chief Officers.

Any declarations made by members are listed below. Leicestershire County Council,
Leicestershire Police and the Leicestershire Local Government Pension Scheme are
considered to be related party transactions, their year end balances being as follows:

2024/25 2023124
Organisation Payments Precepts Payments Precepts
£M £M £M £M

Leicestershire County Council 0.000 29.753 0.000 27.525
Leicestershire County Council (Pension Fund) 2171 0.000 1.881 0.000
Leicestershire County Council - year end debtor 0.693 0.000 0.780 0.000
Leicestershire County Council - year end creditor -0.042 0.000 0.000 0.000
Leicestershire Police Authority 0.113 5.318 0.120 4930
Leicestershire and Rutland Fire Authority 0.000 1.5 0.000 1.431

2.935 36.588 2.781 33.886

Entities controlled or significantly influenced by the Council:

The following grants were given to, or received from, external organisations in-year. These
transactions do not imply that the Council controls or is controlled by any of the following
organisations but are disclosed for purposes of transparency.

2024/25 2023/24

£,000 £,000
Senior Citizens Action Group 6 6
Helping Hands 36 57
Framework Knitters Museum
Elliot Hall For Youth and Community C.I.C 3 0
50 63
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 56

~ Page 62 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. Remuneration of Senior Staff

The Council is required to disclose payments made to senior employees, by post, whose
remuneration is in excess of £50,000 per annum. The situation for 2024/25 is as follows:

Information for 2024/25
Total

Salary, Fees Compensatio remuneration . Total
Expense 2 Pension s g

P tion (Post it and s n for loss of excluding Contiatices including

ost hoider information (Post title) Allowances office pension Pension

contributions
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 118 0 0 118 25 143
Chief Financial Officer/S151 Officer 69 0 0 69 15 84
Deputy S151 Officer 65 0 0 65 0 65
Strategic Director 95 0 0 95 20 115
Head of Law and Governance 84 0 0 84 17 101
Legal and Democratic Services Manager 71 0 0 71 10 81
Head of the Built Environment 69 0 0 69 15 84
Head of Customer Services and Transformation 69 0 0 69 15 84
640 0 0 640 117 757
Information for 2023/24
Total

Salary, Fees Compensatio remuneration . Total

and oo n for loss of excluding S including

Post holder information (Post title) Allowances Allowances office pension Contributions Deisilon

contributions

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Chief Executive 118 0 0 118 24 142
Chief Financial Officer/S151 Officer 79 1 0 80 0 80
Deputy Section 151 Officer 72 0 0 72 15 87
Head of Legal 82 0 0 82 17 98
Strategic Director 55 0 0 55 12 66
Head of the Built Environment 67 0 0 67 14 81
Head of Customer Services and Transformation 59 0 0 59 13 72
531 1 0 533 95 626

Officers Salary Exceeding £50,000

The Council’s other employees receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year 2024/25
were paid in the following bands:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 57

~ Page 63 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Remuneration Band 2023/24 2024/25
£ Number of Number of
Employees Employees
50,000 - 54,999 6 5
55,000 -59,999 0 3
60,000 - 64,999 1 1
65,000 - 69,999 1 3
70,000 -74,999 1 1
75,000-79,999 1 0
80,000 -84,999 1 1
85,000-89,999 0 0
90,000 -94,999 0 1
95,000-99,999 0 0
100,000-105,000 0 0
105,000-110,000 0 0
110,000-120,000 1 1
12 16

Remuneration for these purposes includes all sums paid to or receivable by an employee, sums
due by way of expense allowances and the money value of any other benefits received other
than in cash, but excludes pension contributions payable by either the employee or the Council.
This table includes senior staff disclosed above.

Exit Packages

The cost of the exit packages paid in year is given in the table below. Exit packages include
compulsory and voluntary redundancy costs, pension contributions in respect of added years
and costs of early retirements without actuarial reduction in benefits. One compulsory exit
package and 11 other departures were agreed in 2024/25.

Exit Packages

Exit Paf:kage C?St Band Number of S of Gikior Total Number of Exit Total Cost qf all Exit
(including special Compulso'ry Departures Agreed Packages by Cost Packages in each
payments) Redundancies Band Band
2023/24 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25 2023/124 2024/25
£'000s
£0-£20,000 1 0 0 6 0 6 3 74
£20,001-£40,000 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 27
£40,001-£60,000 0 0 0 4 0 4 0 220
£60,001-£80,000 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 86
Total Cost Included in CIES 0 1 0 1 0 12 3 407

29. Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Council participates in the Local Government Scheme administered by Leicestershire
County Council. This is a defined benefit funded scheme, meaning that the Council and
employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level estimated to balance the pension

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 58

~ Page 64 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

liabilities with investment assets.

In 2024/25 the Council paid an employer’s contribution of £1,846,610 (2023/24 £1,841,746) into
the Leicestershire County Council Superannuation Fund, representing 33.520% (2023/24
35.121%) of Pensionable Pay. In addition, the Council made payment into the Leicestershire
County Council Superannuation Fund relating to added years benefits of £41,660 (2023/24
£39,411), representing 0.756% (2023/24 0.752%) of Pensionable Pay.

The annual report of the Leicestershire County Council Pension Fund is available from County
Hall, Glenfield, Leicestershire.

Transactions Relating to Post-employment Benefits

The cost of retirement benefits are recognised in the reported cost of services when they are
earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

The charge we are required to make against council tax is based on the cash payable in the
year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement benefits is reversed out of the General
Fund and Housing Revenue Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The value of the Councils pension commitment was a net asset of £6.147m, however this
pension fund surplus reported under IAS19 is not fully realisable by the Council so an asset
ceiling is applied. This ensures that the reported asset is limited to the present value realisable
by the Council.

A further implication of IFRIC 14 is that the net benefit defined asset will be measured at the
lower of-

e The surplus in the defined benefit plan, and
e The asset ceiling

The asset ceiling calculation revises the position to a liability of £7.466m. This becomes the
revised liability value used in the balance sheet and has resulted in a movement of £1.090m
from the 2023/24 value. Under IAS19 the Council has recognised the maximum economic
benefit available as a reduction in future contributions, being the present value of the future
service costs, less the present value of minimum funding requirement contributions for future
service.

The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and General Fund Balance via the Movement in Reserve Statement during the year:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 59

~ Page 65 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000

Cost of Services

Service cost comprising:

- Current service costs 1,091 1,030
- Past service costs 502 291
- (Gain)/loss on settiements 0 0
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

- Net interest expense 286 130
Total post-employment benefits charged to the Surplus 1.879 1.451
or Deficit on the Provision of Services ! !
Other post-employment benefits charged to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability comprising:

i Return on plan assets (excluding the amount included in the net (2,037) (575)
interest expense)

- Actuangl gains and losses arising on changes in demographic (294) @&7)
assumptions

- Actuangl gains and losses arising on changes in financial (2.135) (7,387)
assumptions

- Other (experience) 1,662 (511)
- Changes in asset ceiling 3,279 7,850

Total post-employment benefits charged to the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement i s

Movement in Reserves Statement
2023/24 2024/25

£'000 £'000
Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or Deficit on the
Provision of Services for post-employment benefits in 751 817
accordance with the Code
Actual amount charged against the General Fund Balance
for pensions in the year:

Employers’ contributions payable to scheme 2,278 2,138
Retirement benefits payable to pensioners 0 41
3,029 2,996

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the Authority's obligation in respect of
its defined benefit plan is as follows:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 60

~ Page 66 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

202324 2024/25
£'000 £'000

Present value of the defined benefit obligation (49,611) (43,463)
Fair value of plan assets 46,470 49610
Subtotal (3,141) 6,147
Other movements in the asset (liability) 0 (348)
Unadjusted net asset (liability) (3,141) 5,799
Effect of the asset ceiling (5,415) (13,265)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (8,556) (7,466)

The Effect of the Asset Ceiling on the Defined Benefit Surplus

The Council has a surplus in its defined benefit plan of £6.147m:

£'000
Assets 49610
Liabilties (43,463)
Total Assets 6,147

Under IAS19 the authority is required to measure the defined benefit asset reported as the lower
of the surplus in the defined benefit plan and the asset ceiling.

The asset ceiling is the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Under IFRIC14 there is no option for refunds from the plan, and the component of the asset
ceiling available through reductions in contributions, is calculated as the Present value of future
service costs less the Present value of future service contributions:

A. Annuity (into perpetuity) x 2025-26 future service cost, less
B. Annuity (into perpetuity) x future service element employer contribution, so

A. 41.3 years x £733K = £30.273m less
B. 41.3 years x £1.234m = £50.964m

As B is greater than A, then the economic benefit available as a reduction in future contributions
is floored at 0.

The authority also has an obligation under a minimum funding requirement to pay contributions
to cover an existing shortfall in respect of services already received. This is calculated by taking
the funding ‘time horizon’ and multiplying by the present value of agreed past service
contributions. The present value of past service contributions equates to £7.118m. These
agreed past service contributions have been committed to be paid to the pension fund and are
added to the net asset position (£6.147m + £7.118m = £13.265m). This position is then
compared to the economic benefit available as a reduction in future contributions to determine
if there is an additional liability to recognise in the financial statements.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 61

~ Page 67 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£'000
Net Unadjusted Asset 6,147
Effect of the asset ceiling on net asset / liability (13,265)
Net funded liability (7,118)
Present Value of Unfunded Obligations (348)
Total Net Liability (7,466)

Reconciliation of the Movements in the Fair Value of Scheme (Plan) Assets

2023/24 2024/25

£'000 £'000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 41,967 46,470
Interest income 2,004 2,237
Remeasurement gain/(loss)
ncluded n the net nterest operse o 2057 75
- Other
The effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Contributions from employer 2,278 2,138
Contributions from employees into the scheme 361 358
Benefits paid (2,177) (2,168)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 46,470 49,610

Reconciliation of Present Value of the Scheme Liability (Defined Benefit Obligation)

2023124 2024725
£'000 £'000

Opening balance at 1% April 48,350 49,611
Current service cost 1,091 1,030
Interest cost 2,290 2,367
Contributions by scheme participants 361 358

Remeasurements (gains) and losses:

- Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in
demographic assumptions
- Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial

(294) (87)

(2,135) (7,387)

assumptions

-  Other (Experience gains/losses) 1,662 (511)
Past service costs 502 291
Losses/(gains) on curtailment 0 0
Benefits paid (2,216) (2,209)
Closing balance at 31% March 49,611 43,463

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 68 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Local Government Pension Scheme Assets comprised:

Fair Value of Scheme Assets
31% March 31% March 31% March 31% March

2024 2024 2025 2025
£'000 % £'000 %
Equity investments
- Consumer 49 0.01% 45.0 0.09%
- Manufacturing 233 0.05% 434 0.09%
- Energy and utilties 43.0 0.10% 44 4 0.09%
-  Financial institutions 147 0.03% 52.1 0.11%
-  Health and care 8.0 0.02% 65.3 0.13%
- Information technology 9.0 0.02% 1.2 0.00%
-  Other 38.1 0.08% 70.6 0.14%
Subtotal equity instruments 146.0 0.31% 323.0 0.65%
Bonds
-  Corporate 0.0 0.00% 0.0 0.00%
-  Government 2,140.2 461% 1,820.3 3.67%
-  Other 196.3 0.42% 255.1 0.51%
Subtotal bonds 2,336.5 5.03% 2,075.4 4.18%
Property
- UK 3,293.3 7.09% 33955 6.84%
- Overseas 0.0 0.00% 0.0 0.00%
Subtotal property 3,293.3 7.09% 3,395.5 6.84%
Private Equity 3,181.5 6.85% 2,878.2 5.80%
Investment Funds and Unit Trusts
-  Equities 20,348.4 43.78% 21,105.3 42.55%
- Hedge Funds 0.2 0.00% 0.2 0.00%
-  Commodities 1,193.6 2.57% 998.1 2.01%
-  Other 11,102.3 23.89% 9,638.7 19.43%
- Infrastructure 3,801.5 8.18% 4576.9 9.23%
Derivatives 21.3 0.05% -2476 -0.50%
ts,-l::;t:;tal - investment funds and unit 36,467.3 78.47% 36,071.6 72.72%
Cash and cash equivalents 1,045.4 2.25% 4,866.3 9.81%
Total assets 46,470.0 100.00% 49,610.0 100.00%

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method, an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years dependant on
assumptions about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been

estimated by Hymans Robertson LLP, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for the
Council Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as of 31 March 2022.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 63

~ Page 69 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The significant assumptions used by the actuary have been:

Mortality assumptions 2023/24 2024/25
(yrs) (yrs)

Longevity at 65 for current pensioners:

- Men 21.2 21.2

- Women 241 241

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

- Men 215 214

- Women 25.5 255

Other Actuarial Assumptions 2023/24 2024/25

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.30 3.30

Rate of increase in pensions 2.80 2.80

Rate for discounting scheme liabilities 4.80 5.80

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

Increase in  Approximate

Employer's Monetary
Liability Amount
% £'000
Longevity increase of 1 year 4 1,739
0.1% decrease in Real Discount Rate 2 680
0.1% decrease in Salary Increase Rate 0 20
0.1% decrease in Pension Increase Rate 2 679

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 70 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. Revenue and Capital Grants

The Council has credited the above grants and contributions to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (CIES) during 2024/25:

2023/24 2024725
£'000 Revenue: £'000
Credited to Services
Affordable Housing Investment New Burdens -
9  Tenant Satisfaction Measures New Burdens 10

28

Social Housing Decarbonisation Revenue

- XL Bully Ban Implementation 2
107 Local Authority Delivery 3 Revenue -
17 Home Upgrade Grant 2 -
34 Accommodation based DA New Burdens 35
183 Homelessness Grant 185
42 Asylum Dispersal Grant 33
105 Homes for Ukraine 54
- Rough Sleeping 29

- Food Waste Collection 130

- Redmond Review Implementation 37

51 Community Safety Partnership Grant 27
129 Safer Streets S Grant -
20 Energy Bills Support New Burdens -
- Land Registry Transition 24

- Business Rate Relief New Burdens 5
3,552 Rent Allowance 3,804
56 Housing Benefit Hardship 54
1,996 Rent Rebates 2,237
10 Housing Benefit New Burdens 14
o Housing Benefit Accuracy Award B

6 Verify Earnings and Pensions Grant 1
124 Benefit Administration 123
65 Council Tax Support Grant -
8 Council Tax Support New Burdens Grant -
24 Electoral Integrity New Burdens 22
8  Transparency Code 8
12 Local Authority Data Sharing 13
S Treescape S

- Planning Skills Delivery 49
54 Biodiversity Net Gain Grant 27
< Green Infrastructure »

- Local Plan Delivery 250
283 UK Shared Prosperity Fund Revenue 393
1 Taxi Licences New Burdens -

2 Pavement Licencing New Burdens Grant -
79 Physical Activity Development Grants 80
7,021 Total 7,655

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 71 ~

65



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2023/24
£'000

205
298
18

43
460
1,024

8,045

Capital

Credited to Services

Social Housing Decarbonisation
Local Authority Delivery 2

Home Upgrade Grant

Food Waste Capital
Photovoltaics

UK Shared Prosperity Fund
Disabled Facilities

Total

Grand Total

31. Capital Expenditure

The Council’s in year capital expenditure was financed as follows:

2023/24
£'000
40,380

3,735
6
945

(358)
(806)

(1,623)

(224)
42,055
(1,675)

(60)
(1,675)
(1,735)

General Fund capital expenditure in 2024/25 resulted in a net increase in the underlying need

Adj Opening capital financing requirement
Capital investment

Property, plant, and equipment

Intangible assets

REFCUS

Sources of finance

Capital receipts

Government grants

Sums set aside fromrevenue

Major Repairs Reserve

MRP inc finance lease repayments
Closing capital financing requirement
Movements in year

Explanation of movements in year

Opening Adjustment to CFR

(Increase)/decrease in underlying need to borrow
(Increase)/decrease in capital financing requirement

for unsupported borrowing of £0.064m (2023/24 £1.735m increase).

32. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

Under the Capital Finance Regulations, this Council has a duty to set aside a Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP) for the repayment of external debt that it considers “prudent”. For this financial
year in respect of debt that is supported by the Revenue Support Grant the method chosen is
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) method. The CFR method calculates MRP as 2% of

the non-housing CFR at the end of the preceding financial year.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 72 ~

2024/25
£'000

187

580
184
461
450
1,862

9,517

2024/25
£'000
42,055

4,071
36
784

(1,428)
(1,030)

(2,194)
(303)
41,991
64

64
64



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the case of new borrowing for which no government support has been given and is therefore
self-financed, the Asset Life method has been used. This method requires MRP to be made in
equal annual instalments over the estimated life of the asset for which the unsupported
borrowing is undertaken.

The annuity asset life method requires that the MRP for each year be the amount presumed to
be the principal element of the equal amounts that would be payable each year in respect of a
loan at a specified rate of interest that would reduce the outstanding principal amount to zero at
the end of the estimated useful life of the asset. This results in an MRP charge that rises over
time. This is deemed to be particularly appropriate for assets which generate increasing
revenues over time. This has been chosen for the leisure facilities project.

2023/24 2024/25
£'000 £'000
(224) General Fund Charge (303)
- HRACharge -
(224 _(303)

33. Analysis of Net Assets Employed

Restated

2023/24 2024/25

£'000 £'000
7,991 General Fund 9,011

Housing Revenue
60,062 9 60,889
Account
68,053 69,900
34. Information on Assets Held
Number of fixed assets held by the council classified by type.

No. at No. at
31/3/2024 31/3/2025

4  Allotment Sites 4

11 Car Parks 11

2 Cemeteries 2

4 Cemetery Buildings 4

1  Council Offices 1

2 Community /Day Centres 1

1 Depots and Garage 1

179 Garages 179

54 Garage Spaces 54

1 Homeless Shelter 1

7 Pavilions 7

4  Public Conveniences 4

2 Sports Centre 2

17 Sports Grounds and Parks 17

1  Vehicle Workshop 1

1 Brocks Hill Visitor Centre 1

1  Brocks Hill Country Park 1

3 Shops (Investment Property) 3

1,182  Council Dwellings 1,178

1,477 1,472

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 67

~ Page 73 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Financial Instruments Balances

A financial Instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Non-exchange transactions, such as
those relating to taxes, benefits and government grants, do not give rise to financial
instruments.

Financial Liability - an obligation to transfer economic benefits controlled by the council and
can be represented by a contractual obligation to deliver cash or financial assets or an
obligation to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is potentially
unfavourable to the council.

The council's financial liabilities held during the year are measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost and comprised of long-term loans from the Public Works Loans board and
inter-Local Authority lending, trade payables for goods and services received

Financial Asset - a right to future economic benefits controlled by the council that is
represented by cash, equity instruments or a contractual right to receive cash or other financial
assets or a right to exchange financial assets and liabilities with another entity that is
potentially favourable to the council.

The council's financial assets held during the year are accounted for under the following
classifications:

- Amortised Cost - cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, and the

business model is to collect the cash flows only

- Cashin hand

- Bank current and deposit accounts

- Fixed term deposits

- Loans to other local authorities

- Trade receivables for goods and services provided Fair value through Profit and Loss

The borrowings and investments disclosed in the Balance Sheet are made up of the
following categories of financial instruments:

Financial Assets Amortised Cost
Non-Current Current Total

2023/124 2024/25 2023/124 2024/25 2023/124 2024/25
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Debtors 5 3 1,976 1,281 1,981 1,284
Cash and Cash Equivalents 0 0 923 534 923 534
Investments 0 0 1,000 1,600 1,000 1,600
5 3 3,899 3,415 3,904 3,418

Financial Liabilities Amortised Cost
Non-Current Current Total
2023/24 2024/25 2023/24 2024/25 2023/124 2024/25

Borrowings 16,968 15,871 19,658 19,744 36,626 35615

Creditors 36 25 2,319 2,449 2,355 2,474
17,004 15,896 21977 22,193 38,981 38,089

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 68

~ Page 74 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. Financial Instruments Gains/Losses

The gains and losses recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
in relation to financial instruments are made up as follows:

2023/24  2024/25

Financial Assets:

Loans and

receivables
£,000 £,000
Interest expense 1,203 1,474
Total expense in Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision of Services 1,203 1,474
Interest income (166) (194)
Net gain/(loss) for the year 1,037 1,280

37. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities Carried at Amortised Cost

Financial liabilities and financial assets represented by loans and receivables are carried in
the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair value can be assessed by calculating the
present value of the cash flows that will take place over the remaining term of the instruments,

using the following assumptions:

o Estimated interest rates on 31 March 2025 for loans and investments, including those
loans from the Public Works Loan Board, are based on a rate equivalent to that of the

outstanding period of each loan or investment.

¢ No early repayment or impairment is recognised.

o Where an instrument will mature in the next 12 months, the carrying amount is assumed

to approximate to fair value.

e The fair value of trade and other receivables is taken to be the invoiced or billed amount.

The fair values calculated are as follows:

Financial Liabilities 31 March 2024 31 March 2025
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
£,000 £,000 £,000
Loans (36,626) (35,444) (35,615) (33,881)
Short term creditors (2,319) (2,319) (2,449) (2,449)
Long Term Creditors 0 0 0
PFl and Lease Liabilities (36) (25) (36)
(38,981) (37,799) (38,089) (36,366)

Financial Assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2025

Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Long Term Debtors

£,000 £,000 £,000
3,899 3,423 3,423

5 3 3
3,904 3,426 3,426

The fair value is more than the carrying amount because the Council’'s portfolio of loans
includes a number of fixed rate loans where the interest rate payable is higher than the rates

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 75 ~

69



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

available for similar loans at the balance sheet date. This commitment to pay interest above
current market rates increases the amount that the Council would have to pay if the lender
requested or agreed to early repayment of the loans.

The fair value is represented by the carrying amount as the Council has no material long-term
investments.

38. Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments

The Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, the key risks are:
o Credit risk — the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the Council.

e Liquidity risk — the possibility that the Council might not have funds available to meet its
commitments to make payments.

¢ Re-financing risk — the possibility that the Council might be required to renew a financial
instrument on maturity at disadvantageous interest rates or terms.

e Market risk - the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Council resulting from
changes in such measures as interest rates movements.

The Council’s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and implementing restrictions to minimize these risks. The procedures for risk
management are set out through a legal framework set out in the Local Government Act 2003
and the associated regulations.

These require the Council to comply with the CIPFA Prudential Code, the CIPFA Treasury
Management in the Public Services Code of Practice and Investment Guidance issued through
the Act.

Overall, these procedures require the Council to manage risk in the following ways:
e By formally adopting the requirements of the Code of Practice.

e By approving annually in advance prudential indicators for the following three years
limiting:

o The Council’s overall borrowing.

o The maximum and minimum exposures to fixed and variable rates.

o The maximum and minimum exposures to the maturity structure of its debt.
o The maximum annual exposure to investments maturing beyond a year.

o By approving an Investment Strategy for the forthcoming year, setting out its criteria for
both investing and selecting investment counterparties, in compliance with the
Government Guidance:

These are required to be reported and approved at or before the Council’s annual Council Tax
setting budget or before the start of the year to which they relate. These items are reported
with the annual Treasury Strategy and Plan which outlines the detailed approach to managing
risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure; actual performance of the
treasury function is also reported quarterly to Members.

These policies are implemented by a central treasury team. The Council maintains written
principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such
as interest rate risk, credit risk, and the investment of surplus cash through Treasury
Management Practices (TMPs). These TMPs are a requirement of the Code of Practice and
are reviewed by the Finance team periodically.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 70

~ Page 76 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to the Council’s customers. Deposits are only made with UK banks and “top 20”
building societies with a minimum long-term rating of ‘A’ and a short-term rating of F1. In
addition, investments in money market funds may be made, provided that such funds have a
long-term rating of ‘AAA’. Top 20 is defined as building societies with a minimum asset base
of £1 billion. The Council has a policy of not lending more than £1.5 million of its surplus
balances to one institution.

The following analysis summarises the Council's maximum exposure to credit risk on other
financial assets, based on experience of default, adjusted to reflect current market conditions.
For sundry debtors, other debtors and housing rents the historical experience of default is
based on the provision for bad and doubtful debts according to generally accepted accounting
practice. This is adjusted to reflect current market conditions.

Historical

Experience
Adjusted for Estimated
Market Maximum
Amount at Historical Conditions at Exposure to
31st March  Experience 31st March Default and
2025 of Default 2025  Uncollectibility
£000's % % £000's
A B Cc (Ax C)

Deposits with banks and financial Institutions

Local Authorities 0 0 0 0
AAA Rated Counterparties 0 0 0 0
AA Rated Counterparties 0 0 0 0
A Rated Counterparties 0 0 0 0
BBB Rated Counterparties 0 0 0 0
Sundry Debtors * 853 0 0 34
Other Debtors 98 0 0 4
Housing Rents 338 0 0 7
45

* Sundry debtors include the overpayment of housing benefits, building control fees and
charges, licensing fees and other service fees and charges.

Whilst the credit crisis in international markets raised the overall possibility of default, the
Council maintains strict credit criteria for investment counterparties. As a result of these high
credit criteria, we have maintained historical default rates as a good indicator under these
current conditions. No credit limits were exceeded during the reporting period and the Council
does not expect any losses from non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to
deposits.

The Council does not allow credit for customers, such that all of the debtor’s balance is past
its due date for payment. The past due amount can be analysed by age as follows:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 71

~ Page 77 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2024/25 2023/24

£000's £000's
Less than three months 528 945
Three to six months 32 30
Six months to one year 11 21
More than one year* 282 232
853 1,228

* The majority of debt that has been outstanding for more than one year relates to the
overpayment of housing benefit where instalment payments have been set up.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined in IFRS 7 as “the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting
obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another

financial asset”. This includes the concept referred to as refinancing risk in the CIPFA Treasury
Management Code.

The Council manages its liquidity position through the risk management procedures above
(the setting and approval of prudential indicators and the approval of the Treasury Strategy
and Plan and Investment Strategy reports), as well as through a comprehensive cash flow
management system, as required by the Code of Practice. This seeks to ensure that cash is
available when it is needed.

The Council has ready access to borrowing from the Money Markets to cover any day-to-day
cash flow need, and whilst the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) provides access to longer
term funds, it also acts as a lender of last resort to councils (although it will not provide funding
to a council whose action is unlawful).

The Council is also required to provide a balanced budget through the Local Government
Finance Act 1992, which ensures sufficient monies are raised to cover annual expenditure.
There is therefore no significant risk that it will be unable to raise finance to meet its
commitments under financial instruments.

Refinancing and Maturity Risk

The Council maintains a significant debt and investment portfolio. Whilst the cash flow
procedures above are considered against refinancing risk procedures, longer term risk to the
Council relates to managing the exposure to replacing financial instruments as they mature.
This risk relates to both the maturing of longer-term financial liabilities and longer-term
financial assets.

The approved prudential indicator limits for the maturity structure of debt, and the limits placed
on investments placed for greater than one year in duration, are the key parameters used to
address this risk. The Council approved the Treasury Strategy and Plan and Investment
Strategy to address the main risks, and the central treasury team addresses the operational
risks within the approved parameters.

This includes:

¢ monitoring the maturity profile of financial liabilities and amending the profile through either
new borrowing or the rescheduling of the existing debt; and

¢ monitoring the maturity profile of investments to ensure sufficient liquidity is available for
the Council’s day-to-day cash flow needs, and the spread of longer-term investments to
provide stability of maturities and returns in relation to the longer-term cash flow needs.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 72

~ Page 78 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

2024/25 2023/24
£,000 £,000

Less than one year 22,182 21,977
Between one and two years 995 1,017
Between two and five years 3,066 3,044
More than five years 11,846 12,943
38,089 38,981
Short Term Creditors (2,449) (2,319)
Short Term Borrowing (19,744) (19,658)
Long Term Borrowing (15,871) (16,968)
Long Term Creditors (25) (36)
(38,089) (38,981)

All trade and other payables are due to be paid in less than one year.

*Amounts owing to and from central government and other local government agencies are not
deemed financial instruments, as they represent statutory obligations, rather than tradable
instruments. Consequently, the short-term creditors figure here is lower than the Balance
Sheet figure.

Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the Council. For instance, a rise in
interest rates would have the following effects:

e Borrowings at variable rates — the interest expense charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement will rise

e Borrowings at fixed rates — the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall

¢ Investments at variable rates — the interest income credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement will rise

¢ Investments at fixed rates — the fair value of the assets will fall

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate borrowings
would not impact on the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Movement in
the fair value of fixed rate investments will be reflected in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. However, changes in interest payable and receivable on variable rate
borrowings and investments will be posted to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and affect the General Fund Balance.

The Council has several strategies for managing interest rate risk. The policy is to have no
more than 25% of its borrowings in variable rate loans.

The treasury management team has an active strategy for assessing interest rate exposure
that feeds into the setting of the annual budget, and which is used to update the budget during

the year. This allows any adverse changes to be accommodated. The analysis will also advise
whether new borrowing taken out should be fixed or variable.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 73

~ Page 79 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

According to this assessment strategy, on 31 March 2025, if interest rates had been 1% higher
with all other variables held constant, the financial effect would have been:

2024/25 2023/24

£000's £000's

Increased return on money market investments (40) (46)
Impact on Income and Expenditure Account (40) (46)
Share of Overall Impact Credited to the HRA (21) (25)

At 315t March 2025 the Bank of England Base Rate was 4.25%. Market predictions are at
present that the rate will reduce towards the end of 2025.

e Price Risk
The Council is not exposed to price risk as it does not invest in equity shares.
e Foreign Exchange Risk

The Council has no financial assets or liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and thus
no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

39. Agency Services

The Council does not normally act as an agent for other entities, beyond its role as a billing
authority, collecting Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates on behalf of Central Government
and local precepting authorities. These transactions are reflected in the Collection Fund,
details of which are disclosed within these financial statements.

During 2024/25 the council did not act as an agent for other entities.

40. Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Municipal Mutual Insurance

The Scheme of Arrangement was enacted in 2012/13. The impact upon the Council as a
scheme creditor is not clear, nor is the consequential impact on future funding for unknown
claims incurred but not reported between 1974 and 1992. Whilst the Council has so far fulfilled
its obligations to the scheme, the total liability going forward is uncertain and there thus
remains the possibility of future demands on Council funds.

Litigation
The Council is involved in no outstanding litigation as of 31/03/25.
Truck Cartel

The Council has joined a possible collective compensation claim (coordinated by the LGA)
against certain truck manufacturers who engaged in price fixing between 1997 and 2011. The

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 74

~ Page 80 ~



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

potential claim is in the early stages of gathering information and it is still unclear as to the
potential value of any claim, or the strength of any claim. The Council has to date incurred no
costs.

39-41 Canal Street

In 2018, after many attempts to identify, locate and contact the owners of the property, the
Council compulsorily purchased an Edwardian factory building in South Wigston that had lain
derelict for many years. The property was cleaned up and sold at auction to a property
developer. The proceeds of this sale, approximately £350K net of the Council’s relevant costs,
are being held in escrow. The apparent owners of the property have come forward, but have
yet to make a claim on these funds, pending ongoing negotiations.

41. Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and
Errors

None

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 75

~ Page 81 ~



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

This account summarises the resources that have been generated and consumed in
providing services and managing the Council’s Housing Revenue Account (HRA) during
the last year. It includes all day-to-day expenses and related income on an accruals basis,
as well as transactions measuring the value of fixed assets actually consumed and the

real projected value of retirement benefits earned by employees in the year.

Expenditure

Repairs and maintenance

Supervision and management

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges
Depreciation and impairment of non-current assets
Debt management charges

Write-Offs

Increase/(decrease) in bad debt provision

Total Expenditure

Income

Dwellings rent

Non dwellings rent

Charges for services and facilities
Other Income

Total Income

Net Income of HRA Services as included in the whole authority
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

HRA senices share of Corporate and Democratic Core

HRA Share of other amounts included in whole authority net expenditure of
continuing operations not allocated to specific services

Net Income of HRA Services

HRA share of the operating income and expenditure included in the

whole authority Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement:

(Gain)/Loss on the Sale of HRA non-current assets
De-recognition of Non-Current Assets

Interest and investment income

Interest payable and similar charges

Pensions interest cost and expected return on pension assets

(Surplus) / Deficit for the Year on HRA Services

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 82 ~

2024/25

Note £000's

1,238

1,196

7

6,7 1,935
9

30

(140)

4,275

(5,896)
(84)
(292)
(5)

(6,277)

(2,002)

1,342
4)

(664)

(352)
73
(99)
727
14

(301)

2023/24

Restated
£000's

1153
976
14
2,544
2

30

24

4,743

(5,496)
(79)
(312)
(28)

(5,915)

(1,172)

1,434

40

302

(174)
209
(69)
763

23

1,054

76



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT STATEMENT

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the HRA
Income and Expenditure Account and the HRA Balance.

Balance on the HRA at the end of the previous reporting period (1,411) (1,419)
(Surplus) / Deficit for the Year on HRA Income and Expenditure Statement (301) 1,054
Adjustments made between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under statute 46 (1,059)
Net (increase) or decrease before transfers to or (from) reserves (255) (5)
Transfers to or (from) reserves 9) 13
(Increase) or decrease in year on the HRA (264) 8
Balance on the HRA at the end of the current reporting period (1,675) (1,411)

1. Adjustment Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Statute

2024/25 2023/24
£000's £000's
Impairment of non-current assets (301) (1,026)
(Gain)/loss on the sale of non-current assets 352 174
Accumulating compensating absences (9) 3
De-recognition of non-current assets (73) (209)
Net charges made for retirement benefits in acc  (155) (151)
Transfer (to)/from Major Repairs Reserve 0 0
Revenue contribution to capital 0 0
Employers contribution payable to the
Leistershire Pension Fund and retirement 232 150
benefits payable direct to pensioners
Adjustments made between Accounting
Basis and Funding Basis under Statute 46 (1,059)

2. Balance Sheet Value of Housing Revenue Account assets

2024/25 2023124
© £000's  £000's
Operational Assets
Dwellings 78,721 78,411
Other Land and Buildings 1,365 1,365
Vehicles Plant and Equipment 13 15
Intangible Assets 0 23
80,099 79,776
Non Operational Assets
Investment Property 150 144
Total 80,249 79,920

The vacant possession value of dwellings on 31 March 2025 was £187.429m (2023/24
£186.691m), against a balance sheet value of £78.720m (2023/24 £78.410m). The
difference reflects the fact that social housing rents generate a lower income stream
than could be obtained in the open market. The value placed on assets in a commercial
environment will reflect the required economic rate of return in relation to income
streams that the assets might be expected to generate throughout their economic life.
To the extent that income streams are constrained to serve a wider social purpose, the

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 77

~ Page 83 ~



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

value of capital assets employed for council housing will be reduced. This is known
as the Social Housing Discount Factor which for Oadby and Wigston is 42% of the
vacant possession value.

3. Housing Stock

The Council was responsible for managing on average 1,180 dwellings during
2023/24. The stock at year end was as follows;

2024125 2023124

Number Number

Houses/Bungalows 651 656
Flats/Maisonettes 527 526
1,178 1,182

The change in stock can be summarised as follows;

2024/25 2023124
* Number ~ Number
Stock at 1 April 1,182 1,184
Sales 7) (3)
Additions 3 1
Stock at 31 March 1,178 1,182
4. Major Repairs Reserve
2024/25 2023/24
£000's £000's
Balance at 1 April 1,191 1,296
Amounts transferred in 1,633 1,518
Transfers to/(from) HRA 0
Used to finance capital expenditure (2,194) (1,623)
Balance at 31 March 630 1,191

5. Funding of HRA Stock

A total of £2.994m was spent on the Authority’s housing stock in 2024/25 (£1.725m in
2023/24).

This was funded as follows:

2024/25 2023124
£000's ~ £000's
Major Repairs Reserve 2,194 1,623
Capital Receipts 408 102
Grants and Contributions 392 0
Total 2,994 1,725
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 78

~ Page 84 ~



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

HRA Capital Receipts retained by the Authority for 2024/25 totalled £0.834m (2023/24
£0.359m). These were entirely attributable to the sale of council houses under the
Right to Buy Scheme.

6. Depreciation and Amortisation

The total charge for non-current assets within the Authority’s HRA during the financial
year 2024/25 is £1.558m (2023/24 £1.518m)

2024/25 2023/24
£000's £000's
Dwellings 1,458 1,385
Other Land and Buildings 119 106
Plant, Equipment and Vehicles 33 4
Intangibles (Computer Software) 23 23
Total W W
7. Impairment of HRA Assets
2024/25 2023/24
£000's £000's
Dwellings 123 1,026
Non-Operational Assets 178 0
301 1,026

In 2024/25 £0.439m of impairment reversal was credited to the HRA.
8. Rent Arrears

During the year rent arrears have decreased by £40,000.

202425 2023/24

£000's £000's
Arrears at 31 March 337 377
337 377

A bad debt provision has been made in the accounts in respect of potentially
uncollectible rent arrears. The value of the provision on 31 March 2025 is £0.139m (31
March 2024 £0.275m).

9. HRA Share of Contribution To or From the Pension Fund

To Comply with IAS 19 the current service costs for the HRA are incorporated into
Supervision and Management and Repairs and Maintenance costs shown.

These items are then reversed by the net effect of the following items:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 79

~ Page 85 ~



NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

(i) Net Charges Made for Retirement Benefits in Accordance with IAS 19. This
amounted to £155k in 2024/25 (£150k in 2023/24).

(i) Employers Contributions to Leicestershire County Council pension fund and
retirement benefits paid direct to pensioners. This amounted to £232k in 2024/25
(£150k in 2023/24).

10. Capital Expenditure

Financing of Capital Expenditure:

2024/25 2023/24
£000's £000's
Dwellings 2,994 1,725
Other Land and Buildings 0 0
Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 0 0
IT Software 0 0
Other 0 0
2,994 1,725
Summary of Capital Expenditure:
2024/25 2023124
Summary of capital expenditure £000's £000's
Central Heating 1,277 299
Door Replacement 24 22
Decent Homes Work 197 241
Major Adaptations 109 217
Fire Safety 154 112
Ventilation Insulation 13 6
Housing Block Improvements 0 534
Thermal Works 812 0
New Housing Supply 408 40
Other 0 254
2,994 1,725
11. Transfer to General Fund
2024/25 2023124
£000's £000's
HRA Share of Corporate Management & 458 515
Democratic Core
Proportion of Cleaning Costs 62 123
Input into the HRA from other Service Areas 731 708
Housing Vehicle Maintenance 3 5
Grounds Maintenance 3 3
85 80
1,342 1,434
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 80

~ Page 86 ~



COLLECTION FUND

Explanatory Foreword

The Collection Fund is an agent’'s statement that reflects the statutory obligation of
billing authorities such as Oadby and Wigston Borough Council to maintain a separate
Collection Fund. The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in
relation to the collection from taxpayers of Council Tax and National Non-Domestic
Rates (NNDR) and its distribution to preceptors, who are other local government
bodies and the Government.

The Council has a statutory requirement to operate a Collection Fund as a separate
account to the General Fund. The purpose of the Collection Fund therefore, is to isolate
the income and expenditure relating to Council Tax and National Non-Domestic
Business Rates. The administrative cost associated with the collection process is
charged to the General Fund.

For Oadby and Wigston, the Council Tax precepting bodies are the Leicestershire
County Council (LCC), the Police and Crime Commissioner for Leicestershire (PCCL)
and the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Combined Fire Authority (LLRCFA).

In 2013/14, the local government finance regime was revised with the introduction of
the retained business rates scheme. The main aim of the scheme is to give councils a
greater incentive to grow businesses in the borough. It does, however, also increase
the financial risk due to non-collection and the volatility of the NNDR tax base.

The scheme allows the Council to retain a proportion of the total NNDR received. The
Oadby and Wigston share is 40% with the remainder paid to precepting bodies. For
Oadby and Wigston the NNDR precepting bodies are Central Government (50%
share), County Council (9%) and Fire Authority (1% share).

NNDR surpluses declared by the billing authority in relation to the Collection Fund are
apportioned to the relevant precepting bodies in the subsequent financial year in their
respective proportions. Deficits likewise are proportionately charged to the relevant
precepting bodies in the following year.

The national code of practice followed by Local Authorities in England stipulates that
a Collection Fund Income and Expenditure account is included in the billing authorities

accounts. Whist each preceptors incorporates their share of the collection fund
balance sheet into their individual consolidated balance sheet.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 81

~ Page 87 ~



COLLECTION FUND

THE COLLECTION FUND ACCOUNT

202324
Business
Rates Council Tax Total
£000's £000's £000's
0 38,977 38,977
0 101 101
11,453 0 11,453
142 0 142
114 0 114
26 0 26
0 0 0
3 0 3
306 0 306
12,044 39,078 51,122
12,369 38,215 50,584
59 0 59
0 0 0
0 0 0
103 395 498
477 0 477
0 0 0
0 14 14
0 87 87
0 < 4
0 16 16
8 0 8
102 0 102
13,118 38,731 51,849
1,074 (347) 727
419 (512) (93)
1,493 (859) 634
(747) 0 (747)
(597) (99) (696)
(134) (618) (752)
(15) (110) (125)
0 (32) (32)
(1,493) (859) (2,352)

Income

Council Tax Payers

Transfers from General Fund -
Council Tax Benefits

Business Ratepayers

Note

3

Apportionment of Previous Year Deficit -

Central Government

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council
Leicestershire County Council
Police and Crime Commissioner for
Leicestershire

Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland
Combined Fire Authority

Transitional Relief
Total Income

Expenditure
Precepts and Demands
Costs of Collection
Court Costs
Bad and Doubtful Debts -
Write Offs
Provisions
Appeals

Apportionment of Previous Year Surplus -

Central Government
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Leicestershire County Council
Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland
Combined Fire Authority
Police and Crime Commissioner for
Leicestershire
Disregarded Amounts - Renewable
Energy
Transitional Relief

Total Expenditure

Movement on Fund
Balance at Beginning of Year

(Surplus)/Deficit on Fund at End of Year

Allocated to -
Central Government
Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Leicestershire County Council
Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland
Combined Fire Authority
Police and Crime Commissioner for
Leicestershire

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 88 ~

2024/25
Business

Rates Council Tax Total
£000's £000's £000's
41,549 41,549

56 56

11,869 11,869
797 797
638 638
144 144

0

16 16

0

13,464 41,605 55,069
12,623 40,842 53,465
53 53

0

0

(37) 102 65
(53) (53)

0

54 54

336 336

60 60

17 17

5 5

35 35
12,626 41,411 54,037
(838) (194) (1,032)
1,493 (859) 634
655 (1,053) (398)
(327) 0 (327)
(262) 119 (143)
(59) 759 700
@) 39 32

0 136 136
(655) 1,053 398
82



NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

1. Council Tax Balance and Transactions at Year End

For the purpose of the Balance Sheet, it is considered that this authority acts as an
agent, collecting Council Tax on behalf of the major preceptors and itself. Council Tax
transactions and balances are therefore allocated between this authority and the other

major preceptors.

Shown below are the allocations to all preceptors as at 31 March 2025.

Bad Debt Over & Pre  (Surplus) Balance Balance
Arrears  Provision payments /Deficit Payable 2024/25 2023/24
Authority £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Leicestershire County Council 3,225 (1,308) (525) (759) 633 675
Leicestershire PCCO 576 (234) (94) (136) 112 120
Combined Fire Authority 166 (67) (27) (39) 33 34
Total Other Major Preceptors 3,967 (1,609) (646) (934) v 778 829
Oadby & Wigston Borough Council 502 (204) (82) (119) 97 105
Total All Preceptors 4,469 (1,813) (728) (1,053) 875 934

2. Council Tax

Council Tax derives from charges raised according to the value of residential
properties, which have been classified into 9 valuation bands (A-H) for this specific
purpose. Individual charges are calculated by estimating the amount of income
required to be taken from the Collection Fund by the Council for the forthcoming year
and dividing this by the Council Tax base (i.e. the equivalent numbers of Band D

dwellings).

The Council Tax base for 2024/25 has increased to 18,367.98 (17,986.70 in 2023/24).

Estimated No. of

Taxable Properties No.of Band
after Effect of D Equivalent
Band Discounts Ratio Dwellings
z 6.20 5/9 3.44
A 2,802.45 6/9 1,868.30
B 5,169.45 7/9 4,020.68
C 6,343.10 8/9 5,638.31
D 2,973.94 9/9 2,973.94
E 1,999.64 11/9 2,444.01
F 537.77 13/9 776.79
G 463.71 15/9 772.85
H 73.74 18/9 147.49
Total 20,370.00 18,645.81
Add Adjustment** 1.89
Deduct Allowance for Losses in Collection (279.72)
Council Tax Base 18,367.98

** The adjustment relates to anticipated changes during the year for successful
appeals against valuation bandings, new properties, demolitions, disabled persons
relief, exempt properties, and crown contributions.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25

~ Page 89 ~

83



NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

3. Income from Business Ratepayers (Non — Domestic Rates or NDR)

In 2013/14, the administration of NNDR changed following the introduction of a
business rates retention scheme which aims to give councils a greater incentive to
grow businesses but also increases the financial risk due to volatility and non-collection
of rates. Instead of paying NNDR to the central pool, local authorities retain a
proportion of the total collectable rates due. In the case of Oadby and Wigston the local
share is 40%. The remainder is distributed to preceptors and in the case of Oadby and
Wigston these are Central Government 50%, Leicestershire County Council (LCC) 9%
and 1% to the Leicester, Leicestershire and Rutland Combined Fire Authority (CFA).

When the scheme was introduced, Central Government set a baseline level for each
authority identifying the expected level of retained business rates and a top up or tariff
amount to ensure that all authorities receive their baseline amount. Tariffs due from
authorities payable to Central Government are used to finance the top ups to those
authorities who do not achieve their targeted baseline funding. In this respect Oadby
and Wigston paid a tariff in 2024/25 to the value of £3,847,539 (£3,745,755 in 2023/24)
(see Note 10, Notes to the Core Financial Statements).

A further Safety Net or Levy system acts to ensure that any local authority is protected
from a net localised business rate yield of less than 92.5% of its Baseline Funding. A
Safety Net grant is paid if the authority’s yield falls below this with a Levy being imposed
if it is greater. In 2024/25, the Council was in a Levy position of £159k (Levy of £42k
for 2023/24). (see Note 10, Notes to the Core Financial Statements).

As part of the business rates retention scheme, all local authorities were given the
opportunity to work with neighbouring and partner authorities to develop a bid to
become a local authority business rate “pool”’. Oadby and Wigston Borough Council is
part of the Leicestershire NDR pool, which is administered by Leicestershire County
Council. Member authorities are treated as a single authority for the purpose of certain
calculations under the business rates retention scheme. The advantage of a pool is to
potentially generate additional business growth through collaborative working and to
smooth out the impact of volatility in business rates income across a wider economic
area.

In addition to the local management of business rates, authorities are expected to
finance appeals made in respect of rateable values as defined by the Valuation Office
Agency, and hence business rates outstanding as at 31 March 2024. As such,
authorities are required to make a provision for these amounts. Appeals are charged
and provided for in proportion of the precepting shares. The total provision charged to
the collection fund for 2024/25 has been calculated at £326,563 (£347,653 2023/24).

NDR is paid by businesses. Central Government specifies an annual rate in the pound
and local businesses pay an annual NDR bill calculated by multiplying the RV of their
premises by this annual rate, there are reliefs for small businesses, charities etc.

The total non-domestic rateable value at 31st March 2025 was £35,372,466
(£35,356,441 31st March 2024) The national non-domestic multipliers for the year
were:

Full 0.546 (0.512 for 2023/24)
Small Business 0.499 (0.499 for 2023/24)

Shown below are the balance sheet allocations to all preceptors as at 31 March 2025:
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 84

~ Page 90 ~



NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND

~ Page 91 ~

Bad Debt Appeals Over & Pre  (Surplus) Balance Balance
Arrears  Provision Provision payments /Deficit Payable 2024/25 2023/24
Authority £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Central Government 672 (102) (408) (152) 327 337 587
Leicestershire County Council 121 (18) (73) (27) 59 62 105
Combined Fire Authority 13 ) (8) (3) 7 7 11
Total Other Major Preceptors 806 (122) (489) (182) 393 406 703
Oadby & Wigston Borough Council
538 (81) (327) (122) 262 270 (8)
Total All Preceptors 1,344 (203) (816) (304) 655 676 695
4. Precepts and Demands
2023/24 2024/25
Business Council Business Council
Rates Tax Total Rates Tax Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
1,113 27,438 28,551 Leicestershire County Council 1,136 29,418 30,554
Police and Crime Commissioner for
0 4915 4,915 Leicestershire 0 5,258 5,258
124 1,426 1,550 Combined Fire Authority 126 1,500 1,626
6,184 0 6,184 Central Government 6,312 0 6,312
4,948 4,436 9,384 Oadby and Wigston Borough Council 5,049 4,666 9,715
12,369 38,215 50,584 Total 12,623 40,842 53,465
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 85



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The Statement of Accounts has been prepared with reference to the objective of
showing the results of the stewardship and accountability of elected members and
management for the resources entrusted to them and on the underlying assumption of
a going concern basis.

The Statement of Accounts summarises the council’s transactions for the 2024/25
financial year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2025. The council is required
to prepare an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations
2015, which requires the statement to be prepared in accordance with proper
accounting practices. These practices under Section 21 of the 2003 Act primarily
comprise the Code of Practice on Local Council Accounting in the United Kingdom
2024/25, supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
statutory guidance issued under Section 12 of the Local Government Act 2003.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets
and financial instruments.

The council’s accounting policies are updated annually to reflect any changes in IFRS,
including changes in International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), HM
Treasury guidance, CIPFA guidance, The Service Reporting Code of Practice
(SeRCOP) or any other change in statute, guidance or framework impacting on the
council’s accounts.

The council’s accounting policies as far as possible have been developed to ensure
that the accounts are understandable, relevant, free from material error or
misstatement, reliable comparable and are applied consistently.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected. Critical judgements and areas where the
use of estimates is significant.

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, rather than when cash payments
are made or received.

In particular:

e Fees, charges, and rents due from customers are accounted for as income at the
date the Council provides the relevant goods or services.

¢ Revenue from contracts with service recipients, whether for services or the
provision of goods,

is recognised when (or as) the goods or services are transferred to the service
recipient in accordance with the performance obligations in the contract.

o Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Where there is a
gap between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are
carried as inventory on the Balance Sheet.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 86

~ Page 92 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

o Works are charged as expenditure when they are completed before which they are
carried as works in progress on the Balance Sheet.

¢ Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on
the basis of the effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather
than the cash flows fixed or determined by the contract.

o Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been
received or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
balance sheet. Where it is doubtful that debts will be settled the balance of debtors
is written down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be
collected.

Exceptions to this are:

e Telephone accounts are charged to that year which has most of the quarter to
which the rental or the charge relates as appropriate. This is rather than
apportioning them between the financial years.

¢ Insurance premiums are due on the 30 September each year and are charged to
the year that the payment is made and not adjusted between years.

e Rentals and maintenance agreements are consistently charged to the year where
the period starts and are not apportioned between the years.

Exceptions to the accruals principle are consistently applied each year and therefore
do not have a material effect on the year’s accounts.

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty with notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature within one month period or less from the date of acquisition and
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in
value.

In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the authority’s cash
management.

Exceptional items are material items which derive from individual events that fall within
the ordinary activities of the Council and are identified as exceptional items by virtue
of their size, nature or incidence. When items of income and expense are material their
nature and amount is disclosed separately either on the face of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the accounts depending on how
significant the items are to an understanding of the council’s financial performance

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
correct a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for
prospectively, i.e. in the current and future years affected by the change and do not
give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 87

~ Page 93 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting
practices or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect
of transactions, other events and conditions on the council’s financial position or
financial performance. Where a change is made, it is applied retrospectively (unless
stated otherwise) by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the
prior period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by
amending opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts are debited with the
following charges to record the real cost of holding non-current assets during the year:

o Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.

e Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service and other losses
where there are no accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which
the losses can be written off.

¢ Amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the services.

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment
loses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from
revenue (known as the Minimum Revenue Provision - MRP) to contribute towards the
reduction in its overall borrowing requirement. For debt that is supported by Revenue
Support Grant (RSG), the provision is calculated using the Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) method. For new borrowing for which no Government support has
been given and is therefore self-financed, the annuity asset life method has been used
for the 2024/25 accounts.

The CFR method calculates the provision as 2% of the non-housing supported CFR at
the end of the preceding financial year (2% of the capital expenditure funded by
supported borrowing).

The annuity asset life method requires that the MRP for each year be the amount
presumed to be the principal element of the equal amounts that would be payable each
year in respect of a loan at a specified rate of interest that would reduce the outstanding
principal amount to zero at the end of the estimated useful life of the asset. This results
in an MRP charge that rises over time. This is deemed to be particularly appropriate
for assets which generate increasing revenues over time.

Depreciation, impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by MRP in
the Movement in Reserves Statement, by way of an adjusting transaction with the
Capital Adjustment Account for the difference between the two.

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR)
on behalf of the major preceptors (including government for NDR) and as principals,
collecting council tax and NDR for themselves.

Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund (the Collection
Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council tax and

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 88

~ Page 94 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that
the amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council Tax and NDR

The council tax and NDR income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However,
regulations determine the amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the
council's General Fund. The difference between the income included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the amount required by
regulation to be credited to the General Fund is taken to the Collection Fund
Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect
of council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts,
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

Where debtor balances for the above are identified as impaired because of a likelihood
arising from a past event that payments due under the statutory arrangements will not
be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to the taxation and non-specific
grant income and expenditure line in the CIES. The impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount and the revised future cash flows.

Benefits Payable During Employment

Short-term employee benefits (those that fall wholly within 12 months of the year end)
such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, bonuses and non-
monetary benefits such as car loans for current employees, are recognised as an
expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council.

An accrual is made against the service in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services for the cost of holiday entitlements and flexitime earned by employees but
not taken before the year end and which employees can carry forward into the next
financial year. The accrual made is required under statute to be reversed out of the
General Fund Balance by a credit to the Un-useable Reserve — Accumulated Absence
Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that holiday entitlements are
charged to revenue in the financial year in which the holiday absence occurs.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the council to
terminate an officer's employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s
decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are
charged on an accruals basis to the appropriate service segment or, where applicable,
to a corporate service segment at the earlier of when the council can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a
restructuring.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions
require the General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the
council to the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 89

~ Page 95 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove
the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any
such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post-employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Scheme
administered by Leicestershire County Council.

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefits scheme:-

¢ The liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are included in the
Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method — i.e., an
assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates etc. and projections of future earnings for current
employees.

o Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate
determined by the pension scheme’s actuary.

e The assets of pension fund attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet at their fair value:

» Quoted securities - current bid price

» Unquoted securities - professional estimate
» Unitised securities - current bid price

» Property - market value

The change in the net pension’s liability is analysed into the following components:

e Service Cost comprising;
Current service cost - the increase in liabilities as result of years of service earned
this year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to
the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked.
Past service cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the Net
Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of Non-Distributed Costs.
Net Interest cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during
the year as they move one year closer to being paid — debited to Net Operating
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
e Remeasurements comprising;
The return on plan assets — excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability — charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Actuarial gains and losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise because
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or
because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Contributions paid to the pension fund — cash paid as employer’s contributions to
the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted for as an expense.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 90

~ Page 96 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund
Balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund in
the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement this means that there are appropriations to and
from the Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement
benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and any
amounts payable to the fund but unpaid at the year end. The negative balance that
arises on the Pension Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General
Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows
rather than as benefits are earned by employees.

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement
benefits in the event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result
of an award to any member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the
award and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, both favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting period and the date when
the Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue. Two types of events can be
identified:

e Those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting
period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

e Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the
Statement of Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events but where a category
of events would have a material effect. Disclosure is made in the notes as to the
nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the
Statement of Accounts.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the council becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument; they are initially measured
at fair value and are carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing
and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the
liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the
life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the council has, this means that the amount presented
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest) and
interest charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the
amount payable for the year according to the loan agreement.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 9N

~ Page 97 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund balance
to be spread over future years.

Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach
that reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cash flow
characteristics. The Council holds financial assets measured at:

» amortised cost, and
« fair value through profit or loss (FVPL)

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows.
Financial assets are classified as amortised cost, except for those whose contractual
payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (i.e. where the cash flows
do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).

Expected Credit Loss Model

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all financial assets held at amortised
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also
applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised
for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Authority. Impairment losses are calculated
to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might not take place because the
borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a crucial part in assessing
losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument was initially
recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not increased
significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month expected
losses. The Council has one small loan to a local organisation and one small soft loan
due to be redeemed within the next financial year. It does not have reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to support the
measurement of lifetime expected losses on an individual instrument basis. It has
therefore assessed losses for loans held on a collective basis.

Fair Value measurements of financial assets

Fair value of an asset is the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:

* Instruments with quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets — the
market price

* Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments in active markets for
identical assets — discounted cash flow analysis

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the
following three levels:

* Level 1 inputs — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
that the Authority can access at the measurement date.

* Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 92

~ Page 98 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

* Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset. Any gains and losses that arise
on de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has
made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding
principal receivable and interest credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement.

The Council has made several loans to employees as part of its assisted car purchase
scheme at less than market rates (soft loans). When soft loans are made, a loss is
recorded in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the present
value of the interest that will be foregone over the life of the instrument, resulting in a
lower amortised cost than the outstanding principal. Interest is credited at a marginally
higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from employees with the
difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet.
Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General Fund Balance
is the interest receivable for the financial year — the reconciliation of amounts debited
and credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain
against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial
Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement on the
General Fund Balance.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of the likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Any gains or losses that arise on de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, Government grants, third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is a
reasonable assurance that:

e The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments and

e The grants or contribution will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or
contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are stipulations which specify that the
future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset acquired using the
grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified, or
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 93

~ Page 99 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been
satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied,
the grant or contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue
grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced
revenue grants and contributions and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, they are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. Where the grant has yet to be used to finance capital
expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. ltems in the Capital Grants
Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have
been applied to fund capital expenditure.

Tangible heritage assets are defined as those tangible assets with historical, artistic,
scientific, technological, geophysical, or environmental qualities and are held and
maintained for their contribution to knowledge and culture.

Heritage assets are recognised where they meet these criteria and are valued in
excess of the de-minimis threshold of £3,000. Heritage assets are measured in the
Balance Sheet at insurance value which is based on market value. An impairment
review is carried out each year to assess any physical depletion of the assets. All
heritage assets held by the Council are deemed to have indefinite lives and are
therefore not depreciated. Any disposal of assets will be treated in the same manner
as other Property, Plant and Equipment.

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are
identifiable and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it
will bring benefits to the Council for more than one financial year.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are carried at amortised cost
and the depreciable amount of the intangible asst is amortised over its useful life to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset might
be impaired —any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory
purposes, amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not
permitted to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds
greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 94

~ Page 100 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at the year-end and recorded
in the Balance Sheet at cost plus any profit reasonably attributable to the works.

An investment property is one that is used solely to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Property that is used to facilitate the delivery of services or production of goods
as well as to earn rentals or for capital appreciation does not meet the definition of an
investment property.

Investment properties are measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in
surplus or deficit within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Investment properties held at fair value are not depreciated.

Fair value is to be interpreted as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its highest
and best use which is market value. The fair value of investment property held under a
lease is the lease interest.

The Council accounts for leases as finance leases where the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards relating to the leased property to the
Council. All other leases are classed as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are
considered separately for classification. Arrangements that do not have the legal status
of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return for payment are accounted for
under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
specific assets.

The Council as lessee.

Finance Leases

Where a lease is classified as a finance lease, then the substance of the transaction
is considered to be the same as if the authority had purchased the asset and financed
it through taking out a loan.

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance
Sheet at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s
inception (or the present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset
recognised is matched by a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct
costs of the authority are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid
on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents
are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. Lease payments
are apportioned between:

e A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment —
applied to write down the lease liability and;

¢ Afinance charge (debited to the financing and investment income and expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, plant and equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using
the policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 95

~ Page 101 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

over the lease term if this is shorter than the asset’'s estimated useful life (where
ownership of the asset does not transfer to the authority at the end of the lease period).

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as an expense to the services benefitting from use of the
leased property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is
a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease).

The Council as lessor

Finance Lease

If the authority is the lessor in an operating lease, it will retain the property either as an
item of property, plant and equipment or as an investment property on the Balance
Sheet and credit rentals to income as they become payable, subject to any requirement
to smooth the payments and/or the lease incentives.

Where the authority grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the
commencement of the lease, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet
(whether property, plant and equipment or assets held for sale) is written off to the
other operating expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the authority’s
net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal (i.e., netted off
against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a lease
(long-term debtor) asset in the Balance Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

¢ A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down
the lease debtor (together with any premiums received), and

¢ Finance income (credited to the financing and investment income and expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Operating Leases

Where the authority grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or
equipment, the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the
other operating expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if
this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the
commencement of the lease). Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

International Financial Reporting Standard 16

In 2024/25, the Council applied IFRS16 - Leases, as required by the Code of Practise
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom. The main impact of the new
accounting standard is that for arrangements previously accounted for as operating
leases (i.e. without recognising the leased asset on the balance sheet or the
corresponding future lease payments as a liability) a right of use asset and lease

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 96

~ Page 102 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

liability are to be brought onto the balance sheet at the 1st April 2024. Leases for items
of low value (£10,000) or leases that expire before the 31 March 2024 are exempt from
the new arrangements.

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in
accordance with the council's arrangements for accountability and financial
performance.

The cost of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the
supply or service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service
Reporting Code of Practice 2024/25 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle
is used — the full cost of overheads and support services are shared between users in
proportion to the benefits received, except for:

e Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation.

¢ Non-Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees
retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-
operational properties.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate
headings in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, as part of Net
Cost of Services.

An appropriate charge has been made from the General Fund to the Housing Revenue
Account for Corporate and Democratic Core costs. This has been based on the
proportion of committee time spent on Housing Revenue Account business.

Segmental Reporting

The Council’s operating segments are organised into seven service areas. These were
determined to give both members and the general public a clear picture of the services
the Council provides and will assist the making of decisions about allocating resources
and assessing performance. The seven segments are:

e Customer Services and Business Transformation
e Senior Leadership Team

e Community and Wellbeing

e Law and Governance

e The Built Environment

e Finance and Resources

e Housing Revenue Account

Measurement of segmental income and expenses is in accordance with the Council’s
accounting policies. Shared costs are included in segments based on the actual
recharges made.

The Council does not report on segmental asset and liability internally, therefore it is
not required to report segmental information on assets and liabilities.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 97

~ Page 103 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are
expected to be used during more than one financial year are classified as property,
plant and equipment.

Recognition

Expenditure equal to or in excess of £3,000 (de-minimis level) on the acquisition,
creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is capitalised on an
accrual's basis, provided that it yields benefits to the Council for more than one
financial year. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to
deliver future economic benefits or service potential (e.g. repairs and maintenance) is
charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the purchase price and any
expenditure that is directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for
its intended use.

The council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under
construction.

The cost of an asset acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value,
unless the acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a
variation in the cash flows of the council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired
via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given
up by the council.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

o Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement
bases:

e Infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction — depreciated
historical cost

o Dwellings — current value, determined using the basis of existing use value for
social housing (EUV-SH)

e Council offices — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for
the asset in its existing use (existing use value EUV), except for a few offices that
are situated close to the council’s housing properties, where there is no market for
office accommodation and that are measured at depreciated replacement cost
(instant build) as an estimate of current value

e Surplus assets — the current value measurement base is fair value, estimated at
highest and best use from a market participant’s perspective

o All other assets — current value, determined as the amount that would be paid for
the asset in its existing use (existing use value EUV).

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 98

~ Page 104 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are revalued each year by either
a desktop revaluation or by the major revaluation exercise which occurs every five
years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve to
recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains are credited to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of an
impairment loss previously charged to a service revenue account.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains since 1 April 2007 only; the date
of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated
into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are
estimated to be material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
this is less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for
the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified they are accounted for by:

e Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up
to the amount of the accumulated gains).

¢ \Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

e Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the
relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
up to the amount of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have
been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all property, plant and equipment assets by the
systematic allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception
is made for assets without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain
community assets) and assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under
construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

e Council dwellings— straight-line allocation over the useful life of the property as
estimated by the valuer — currently 40 years.

e The Council’s operational buildings are depreciated over a period of between 5 and
20 years. It is recognised that Leisure Centres, which are a newer build, have a
greater expected life and these are depreciated over 40 years.

¢ Vehicles, plant, furniture, and equipment — a percentage of the value of each class
of assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer. Council
currently is using the straight-line allocation method over the useful life of the asset.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 99

~ Page 105 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The useful life of the plant, equipment and vehicles fall into a range of between 5
and 10 years.

Newly acquired or operational assets are depreciated for a full year in the first year of
use or acquisition.

No depreciation is provided for on assets in the year of disposal

Depreciation is not charged on freehold land, investment properties or assets held for
sale.

Where an asset has major components with different estimated useful lives, these are
depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have
been chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned the value of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal).
Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account

Amounts received for disposals that are more than £10,000 are categorised as capital
receipts. The Council also retains an amount relating to the building of new houses in
the One-for-One replacement agreement the Council has signed up to as well as
Council House Buy-Back should these occur.

The balance of receipts received from disposals are credited to the Useable Capital
Receipts Reserve which can then only be used for new capital investment or set aside
to reduce the Council's underlying need to borrow (the Capital Financing
Requirement). Receipts are appropriated to the reserve from the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against Council Tax as the cost of
fixed assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.
Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Available-for-sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the
asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Income and
Expenditure Account for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the
asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument. Where there are no
fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g. dividends) is credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes receivable by
the Council.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 100

~ Page 106 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the
following principles:

¢ Instruments with quoted market prices — the market price.

e Other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow
analysis.

¢ Equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent appraisal of company
valuations.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-sale Reserve and
the gain/loss is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
Where impairment losses have been incurred — these are also debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement along with any net gain/loss for
the asset accumulated in the Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of the likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Any gains or losses that arise on de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement along with any accumulated
gains or losses previously recognised.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less
any impairment losses).

Componentisation

A component is a part of a larger asset that must be separately identified and
depreciated, for the purposes of assisting more accurate financial reporting and asset
management.

A component must have the following factors:
o A significantly different useful life from the parent asset
¢ A significantly different value to the parent asset

¢ Provide an economic or service benefit to the Council, which is materially different
to the rest of the asset.

The Council will recognise significant components of an item of property, plant and
equipment where the asset’s value is greater than £1,000,000 or where the component
is more than 25% of the total asset’s value.

Componentisation takes place at valuation, acquisition, and enhancement of the
parent asset.

The following assets have been componentised
e Wigston Swimming Pool

e Council Offices

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 101

~ Page 107 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

e Blaby Road Park
e Parklands Leisure Centre

Council Dwellings are not componentised other than the separation of the land value,
as the internal components individually do not form a significant enough part of the
value to be material.

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, where
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are charged to the appropriate revenue account when the Council becomes
aware of the obligation, based on the best estimate of the likely settlement at the
Balance Sheet date. When payments are made, they are charged to the provision set
up in the balance sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each
financial year - where it becomes more likely than not that a transfer of economic
benefits will not be required, the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant
service revenue account.

Where some or all the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met by
another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income in the
relevant revenue account if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if
the obligation is settled.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the authority.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note
to the accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the authority.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to
cover contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts in the Movement
on Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred,

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 102

~ Page 108 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

it is charged to the appropriate service revenue account in that year to score against
the Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
The reserve is then appropriated back into the General Fund Balance statement so
that there is no net charge against council tax for the expenditure.

Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute results from expenditure of a
capital nature where the result is that a non-current asset is not created for the Council.

This also includes exceptional revenue expenditure for which a capitalisation direction
can be granted to allow this expenditure to be funded from capital. Capitalisation
direction gives the Council the flexibility to treat specified revenue expenditure as
capital expenditure, the Council must meet strict criteria and should only be sought for
costs which are due largely to factors beyond the control of the Council and are
unavoidable.

Where the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing
capital resources or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement
from the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out
the amounts charged so that there is no impact on the level of council tax.

VAT payable is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable
from HM Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

Revenue (excluding non-exchangeable transactions) represents the amount
receivable in respect of services provided to customers.

Revenue is recognised only when payment is probable. Revenue from services is
recognised as the services are provided.

The total consideration on arrangements with multiple revenue generating activities is
allocated to those components that can operate independently based on the estimated
fair value of the components. When the fair value of components cannot be assessed,
the revenue is spread over the term of the service.

Revenue arising from the provision of other services is recognised evenly over the
periods in which the service is provided.

Related party transactions re circumstances where an authority might have the
potential either to be controlled/influenced or to exert control/influence.

The council is required to disclose material related party relationships and
transactions, outstanding balances between the Council and its related parties.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 103

~ Page 109 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets, such as surplus assets and
investment properties, and some of its financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability or

* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability on the same basis that
market participants would use when pricing an asset or liability (assuming they were
acting in their economic best interest).

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The Council uses appropriate valuation techniques,
which takes into account the three levels of inputs to valuations for fair value assets:

* Level 1 — quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Council can assess at the measurement date.

* Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

e |IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rate (Lack of
Exchangeability) issued in August 2023. The amendments to IAS 21 clarify how
an entity should assess whether a currency is exchangeable and how it should
determine a spot exchange rate when exchangeability is lacking.

o IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts issued in May 2017. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 and

sets out principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 104

~ Page 110 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

For the purposes of the Code of Practice the following definitions have been adopted:

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Those principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an entity
that specify how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected
in its financial statements through:

(i)  Recognising

(i)  Selecting measurement bases for, and

(iii) Presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes to reserves.
Accounting policies do not include estimation techniques.

Accounting policies define the process whereby transactions and other events
are reflected in financial statements. For example, an accounting policy for a
particular type of expenditure may specify whether an asset or loss is to be
recognised; the basis on which it is to be measured; and where in the Revenue
account or Balance Sheet it is to be presented.

ACQUIRED OPERATIONS

Operations comprise services and divisions of service as defined in the Best
Value Accounting Code of Practice. Acquired operations are those operations
of the local authority that are acquired in the period.

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or
surpluses that arise because:

(a) Events have not coincided with the actuarial assumptions made for the last
valuation (experience gains and losses), or

(b)  The actuarial assumptions have changed.

ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Assets which are being marketed for sale in their current condition.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to and

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 105

~ Page 111 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

not merely maintains the value of an existing fixed asset.

CLASS OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

The classes of non-current assets required to be included in the accounting
statements are:

Operational assets

Council dwellings

Other land and buildings

Vehicles, plant, furniture and equipment

e Community assets

Intangible assets

Non-operational assets
e Investment properties
o Heritage Assets
e Assets under construction

e Assets held for sale

Further analysis of any of these items should be given if it is necessary to

ensure fair presentation.

COMMUNITY ASSETS

Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no
determinable useful life, and that may have restrictions on their disposal.
Examples of community assets are parks, cemeteries and allotments.

CONSISTENCY

The principle that the accounting treatment of like items within an accounting
period and from one period to the next is the same.

CONSTRUCTIVE OBLIGATION

An obligation that derives from an authority’s actions where:

(@) by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a
sufficiently specific current statement, the authority has indicated to other
parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b) as a result, the authority has created a valid expectation on the part of
those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

CONTINGENT ASSET

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 106

~ Page 112 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events whose existence
will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the local authority’s control.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is either:

(a) a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the authority’s control; or

(b) a present obligation arising from past events where it is not probable that
a transfer of economic benefits will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

CORPORATE AND DEMOCRATIC CORE

The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities
engage in specifically because they are elected, multi-purpose authorities. The
cost of these activities are thus over and above those which would be incurred
by a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the
same services. There is therefore no logical basis for apportioning these costs
to services.

CURRENT SERVICE COST (PENSIONS)

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities
expected to arise from employee service in the current period.

CURTAILMENT

For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future
service of present employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual
of defined benefits for some or all of their future service. Curtailments include:

(a) termination of employees’ services earlier than expected, for example as a
result of closing a factory or discontinuing a segment of a business, and

(b) termination of, or amendment to the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so
that some or all future service by current employees will no longer qualify for
benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments
of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally
funded).

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEME

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 107

~ Page 113 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays
regular contributions fixed as an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does
not have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee
service in the current and prior periods.

DEPRECIATION

The measure of the cost or revalued amount of the benefits of the fixed assed
that have been consumed during the period.

Consumption includes the wearing out, using up or other reduction in the useful
life of a fixed asset whether arising from use, effluxion of time or obsolescence
through either change in technology or demand for the goods and services
produced by the asset.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Operations comprise services and divisions of service as defined in CIPFA’s
Standard Classification of Income and Expenditure. An operation should be
classified as discontinued if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) the termination of the operation is completed either in the period or before
the earlier of three months after the commencement of the subsequent
period and the date on which the financial statements are approved;

(b) the activities related to the operation have ceased permanently;

(c) the termination of the operation has a material effect on the nature and
focus of the local authority’s operations and represents a material
reduction in its provision of services resulting either from its withdrawal
from a particular activity (whether a service or division of service or its
provision in a specific geographical area) or from a material reduction in
net expenditure in the local authority’s continuing operations;

(d) the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of operations and activities
are clearly distinguishable physically, operationally and for financial
reporting purposes.

Operations not satisfying all these conditions are classified as continuing.

DISCRETIONARY BENEFITS

Retirement benefits which the employer has no legal, contractual or constructive
obligation to award and are awarded under the authority’s discretionary powers,
such as The Local Government (Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996, the
Local Government (Discretionary Payments and Injury Benefits) (Scotland)
Regulations 1998, or The Local Government (Discretionary Payments)
Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2001.

ESTIMATION TECHNIQUES

The methods adopted by an entity to arrive at estimated monetary amounts,
corresponding to the measurement bases selected, for assets, liabilities, gains,
losses, and changes to reserves.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 108

~ Page 114 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Estimation techniques implement the measurement aspects of accounting
policies. An accounting policy will specify the basis on which an item is to be
measured; where there is uncertainty over the monetary amount corresponding
to that basis, the amount will be arrived at by using an estimation technique.

Estimation techniques include, for example:

(@) methods of depreciation, such as straight-line and reducing balance,
applied in the context of a particular measurement basis, used to estimate
the proportion of the economic benefits of a tangible fixed assed consumed
in a period,;

(b) different methods used to estimate the proportion of debts that will not be
recovered, particularly where such methods consider a population as a
whole rather than individual balances.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Events after the Balance Sheet date are those events, favourable and
unfavourable, that occur between the Balance Sheet date and the date when the
Statement of Accounts is authorised for issue.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the
ordinary activities of the authority and which need to be disclosed separately by
virtue of their size or incidence to give fair presentation of the accounts.

EXPECTED RATE OF RETURN ON PENSIONS ASSETS

For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, including both
income and changes in fair value but net of scheme expenses, expected over
the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by the
scheme.

FAIR VALUE
The fair value of an asset is the price at which it could be exchanged in an arm’s
length transaction less, where applicable, any grants receivable towards the

purchase or use of the asset.

FINANCE LEASE

A finance lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a fixed asset to the lessee. Whether a lease is a finance lease or
an operating lease depends on the substance of the transaction rather than the
form of the contract.

GENERAL FUND

The main revenue account of the Council covering all services apart from
housing landlord functions.

GOING CONCERN

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 109

~ Page 115 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

The concept that the authority will remain in operational existence for the
foreseeable future, in particular that the revenue accounts and Balance Sheet
assume no intention to curtail significantly the scale of operations.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Assistance by government and inter-government agencies and similar bodies,
whether local, national or international, in the form of cash or transfers of assets
to an authority in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions
relating to the activities of the authority.

HERITAGE ASSETS

An asset with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that is held and maintained principally for its contribution
to knowledge and culture. Examples of heritage assets are historical buildings,
civic regalia, and antiques.

IMPAIRMENT

A reduction in the fair value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the
Balance Sheet. Destruction or damage to fixed assets will result in an
impairment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Assets that have no physical substance, primarily intellectual property. The most
common examples for local authority purposes are computer software licenses.

INTEREST COST (PENSIONS)

For a defined benefit scheme, the expected increase during the period in the
present value of the scheme liabilities because the benefits are one period closer
to settlement.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Accounting Standards now applicable to local authorities from 2010/11 onwards,
replacing the UK GAAP regime.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Interest in land and/or buildings:

(a) in respect of which construction work and development have been
completed; and

(b) which is held for its investment potential, any rental income being negotiated
at arm’s length.

INVESTMENTS (PENSIONS FUND)

The investment of the pensions fund will be accounted for in the statements of
that fund. However, authorities are also required to disclose, as part of the

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 110

~ Page 116 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

disclosures relating to retirement benefits, the attributable share of pension
scheme assets associated with their underlying obligations.

LIQUID RESOURCES

Current asset investments that are readily disposable by the authority without
disrupting its business and are either; readily convertible to known amounts of
cash at or close to the carrying amount, or traded in an active market.

Eligibility for support is determined by the government and authority payments
are reimbursed by government through S31 grant.

LONG-TERM CONTRACTS

A contract entered into for the design, manufacture or construction of a single
substantial asset or the provision of a service (or a combination of assets or
services which together constitute a single project), where the time taken
substantially to complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into
different accounting periods. Some contracts with a shorter duration than one
year should be accounted for as long-term contracts if they are sufficiently
material to the activity of the period.

NET BOOK VALUE
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their
historical cost or current value less the cumulative amounts provided for

depreciation.

NET CURRENT REPLACEMENT COST

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition
and in its existing use, i.e. the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent
asset, adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.

NET DEBT
The authority’s borrowings less cash and liquid resources. Where cash and

liquid resources exceed borrowings, reference should be to net funds rather than
net debt.

NET REALISABLE VALUE

The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or market value in the
case of non-operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the
asset.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Non-current assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the service it
provides for a period of more than one year.
NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Fixed assets held by a local authority but not used or consumed in the delivery
of services or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority. Examples of

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 111

~ Page 117 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

non-operational assets include investment properties and assets that are surplus
to requirements, pending their sale. It should be noted that the incident of rental
income does not necessarily mean that the asset is an investment property, it
would be deemed an investment property only if the asset is held solely for
investment purposes and does not support the service or strategic objectives of
the authority and the rental income is negotiated at arm’s length.

OPERATING LEASES

In a finance lease agreement, ownership of the property is transferred to the
lessee at the end of the lease term. But, in operating lease agreement,
the ownership of the property is retained during and after the lease term by the
lessor under an operating lease, the lessee does not have this option.

OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local authority in the
direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary
responsibility or for the service or strategic objectives of the authority.

PAST SERVICE COST

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase in the present value of the scheme
liabilities related to employee service in the prior periods arising in the current
period as a result of the introduction of, or improvement to, retirement benefits.

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

Those material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in
accounting policies or from the correction of fundamental errors. A fundamental
error is one that is of such significance as to destroy the validity of the financial
statements. They do not include normal recurring corrections or adjustments of
accounting estimates made in prior years.

PROJECTED UNIT METHOD

An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make
allowance for projected earnings. An accrued benefits valuation method is a
valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate to:

(a) the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who
have ceased to be active members but are entitled to benefits payable at
a later date) and their dependants, allowing where appropriate for future
increases; and

(b) the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.
The accrued benefits are the benefits for service up to a given point in time,
whether vested rights or not. Guidance on the projected unit method is given in

the Guidance Note GN26 issued by the Faculty and institute of Actuaries.

RELATED PARTIES

Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial
period:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 112

~ Page 118 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

()  one party has direct or indirect control of the other party: or

(i)  the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or

(i) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the
other party to an extent that the other party might be inhibited from pursuing
at all times its own separate interests: or

(iv) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same
source to such an extent that one of the parties to the transaction has
subordinated its own separate interests.

Examples of related parties of an authority include:

()  central government.

(i)  local authorities and other bodies precepting or levying demands on the
council tax;

(iii)  its subsidiary and associated companies.
(iv) its joint ventures and joint venture partners.
(v) its members.

(vi) its chief officers; and

(vii) its pension fund.

Examples of related parties of a pension fund include its:
() administering authority and its related parties;

(i)  scheduled bodies and their related parties; and

(iii)  trustees and advisers.

These lists are not intended to be comprehensive.

For individuals identified as related parties, the following are also presumed to
be related parties:

(i)  members of the close family, or the same household; and

(i)  partnerships, companies, trusts or other entities in which the individual, or
a member of their close family or the same household, has a controlling
interest.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the
performance of services by, to or for a related party irrespective of whether a
charge is made. Examples of related party transactions include:

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 113

~ Page 119 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

(i)  the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related parties;

(i) the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans,
irrespective of any direct economic benefit to the pension fund;

(i) the provision of a guarantee to a third party in relation to a liability or
obligation of a related party;

(iv) the provision of services to a related party, including the provision of
pension fund administration services;

(v) transactions with individuals who are related parties of an authority or a
pension fund, except those applicable to other members of the community
or the pension fund, such as council tax, rents and payments of benefits.

This list is not intended to be comprehensive

The materiality of related party transactions should be judged not only in terms
of their significance to the authority, but also in relation to its related party.

REMUNERATION

All sums paid to or receivable by employee and sums due by way of expenses
allowances (as far as those sums are chargeable to UK income tax) and the
money value of any other benefits received other than cash. Pension
contributions payable by the employer are excluded.

RESIDUAL VALUE

The net realisable value of an asset at the end of its useful life. Residual values
are based on prices prevailing at the date of the acquisition (or revaluation) of
the asset and do not take account of expected future price changes.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services
rendered by employees that are payable after the completion of employment.
Retirement benefits do not include termination benefits payable as a result of
either (i) an employer’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before
the normal retirement date or (ii) an employee’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy in exchange for those benefits, because these are not given in
exchange for services rendered by employees.

SCHEME LIABILITIES

The liabilities of a defined benefit scheme for outgoings due after the valuation
date. Scheme liabilities measured using the projected unit method reflect the
benefits that the employer is committed to provide for service up to the valuation
date.

SETTLEMENT

An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the defined benefit scheme)

of the primary responsibility for a pension obligation and eliminates significant

risks relating to the obligation and the assets used to affect the settlement.
Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 114

~ Page 120 ~



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Settlements include:

(a)

(b)

(c)

STOCKS

a lump-sum cash payment to scheme members in exchange for their
rights to receive specified pensions benefits

the purchase of an irrevocable annuity contract sufficient to cover
vested benefits, and

the transfer of scheme assets and liabilities relating to a group of
employees leaving the scheme

The amount of unused or unconsumed stocks held in expectation of future use.
When use will not arise until a later period, it is appropriate to carry forward the
amount to be matched to the use or consumption when it arises. Stocks
comprise the following categories:

(a)
(b)

goods or other assets purchased for resale;
consumable stores;

raw materials and components purchased for incorporation into products
for sale;

products and services in intermediate states of completion;
long-term contract balances; and

finished goods.

USEFUL LIFE

The period over which the local authority will derive benefits from the use of fixed
assets.

VESTED RIGHTS

In relation to a defined benefit scheme, these are:

for active members, benefits to which they would unconditionally be
entitled on leaving the scheme;

for deferred pensioners, their preserved benefits;

for pensioners, pensions to which they are entitled.

Vested rights include where appropriate the related benefits for spouses or other
dependants.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 115

~ Page 121 ~



Annual
Governance
Statement

2024/25



Oadby & Wigston Borough Council Annual
Governance Statement 2024/25

Background and Scope of Responsibility

Oadby & Wigston Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with legislation, regulation, government guidance and that proper
standards of stewardship, conduct, probity, and professional competence are set and adhered
to by all those representing, working for, and working with the Council. The Council also has
a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination
of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council must make proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs and for facilitating the effective exercise of its functions including the
management of risk.

The Council has previously approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE framework ‘Delivering Good Governance
in Local Government’. This statement shows how the Council has complied with the code and
also meets the requirements of The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, regulation 6(1)(b),
which requires each English local authority to conduct a review, at least once a year, of the

effectiveness of its systems of internal control and approve an annual governance statement
(AGS).

The Purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which
the Council is directed and controlled. It reflects activities through which the Council meets
the needs of the community. It includes arrangements to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of
appropriate services and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage
risk at a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risks of failure to achieve policies, aims and
objectives and therefore can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and
objectives. Evaluation of the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised and
how to manage them efficiently, effectively, and economically are key parts of the Council’s
Medium Term Financial Strategy and its Corporate Plan.

This AGS confirms that the governance framework has been in place for the financial year
ended 31 March 2025 and up to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and the
Statement of Accounts.

The AGS is a summary of how the Council’s management arrangements are set up to meet
the principles of good governance and how we as a Council assure ourselves that these are
effective and appropriate. The main goal of an AGS is to provide the reader with confidence

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 117

~ Page 123 ~



that the Council has an effective system of internal control to manage risks to reasonable
levels.

The CIPFA Delivering Good Governance publication (2016) defines the various principles of
good governance in the public sector and how they relate to each other and are defined as:

e Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values and
respecting the rule of law.

e Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

o Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits.

o Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes.

o Developing the Council’s capacity, including its leadership and the individuals within it.

e Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public
financial management.

¢ Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting and audit, to deliver effective
accountability.

The governance framework at Oadby and Wigston Borough Council comprises the systems
and processes, culture and values which the Council has adopted in order to deliver on the
above principles.

The Governance Framework

Current Governance Structure

Oadby & Wigston Borough Council has retained a committee system. The majority of UK local
authorities now operate using a cabinet system where a group of members have been given
the power to make the majority of decisions on behalf of their Council.

The benefits of retaining the committee system are that all members are able to sit on a range
of decision-making committees and every member has a vote that counts. This is the
cornerstone of the Council’s governance — members are not marginalised in decision making.
All decisions are debated and made during open committee in full public view. Closed
sessions, for instance where commercially sensitive matters need to be discussed, are kept
to an absolute minimum. Only the most urgent decisions are delegated to the Chair/Vice Chair
of committees, and these must be reported back to the main committee as soon as possible.
In addition to the statutory committees that deal with development control and licensing, the
Council has three main committees:

e The Policy, Finance and Development Committee, which has overall responsibility for
setting the long term aims of the Council and moving it forward in line with these
objectives.

e The Service Delivery Committee, which has direct responsibility for the day-to-day
operation of all services.

¢ The Audit Committee, which is responsible for Internal and External Audit and Risk
Management.

Vision and Priorities

In January 2022 the Local Government Association (LGA) conducted a Peer Review. Two of
the key recommendations were for a new vision and corporate plan to be created by

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 118

~ Page 124 ~



Members. The vision was signed off in September 2022 and our new Corporate Strategy was
approved in July 2024.

The Council’s Vision, which can be viewed on our website:

https://www.oadby-wigston.gov.uk/pages/our_vision has five Strategic Objectives:

Our council:

e To be the local voice of residents and businesses.

e To ensure that we provide high quality, value for money services that meet the needs
of residents, businesses and visitors.

e To ensure high connectivity with residents and businesses

Our communities:

e To provide a clean and safe place for everyone.

e To support any activities or actions that enhance the health and wellbeing of our
Borough.

e To provide good, affordable and efficient housing for everyone.

Our economy:

e To support economic growth that is focused on our town centres.
e To make our Borough an inviting place to visit.

e To help to provide good employment opportunities.

Our environment:
e To ensure that we are a carbon conscious Borough.
e To be seen to be ‘Green’.

Our partners:

e To develop, maintain and enhance partnerships to help support delivery of our
objectives.

e To ensure we are engaged and listening to all sections of the community.

Corporate Plan & Corporate Strateqy

The Council’s current Corporate Plan was approved in July 2024, covering the period 2024-
2027.

Service plan targets and key performance indicators are set for each department within the
annual service delivery and development plans. Progress against targets is monitored
monthly by the management team and reported regularly to relevant committees.

The Council ensures that its key priorities determine the allocation of resources to deliver its
agreed activities. A robust corporate business planning programme is used to identify projects
against agreed criteria, including the Council’s policies, its priorities, the outcome of public
consultations, demonstration of continuous improvements, and responding to legislative
change.

Achievement of the Council’s priorities has been monitored throughout the financial year
2024/25 by the Council’'s Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and reports to the relevant
committees. The monitoring of delivery against agreed priorities ensures the Council’s
capacity to deliver projects within agreed costs, time and resources.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 119

~ Page 125 ~



Financial Management

The Council’s financial position is reported against budget to every meeting of the Policy,
Finance and Development Committee. Detailed budget information is provided to budget
holders each month and dedicated project teams provide financial information for large
projects or capital schemes.

The financial elements of the Council’s corporate business planning process are included in
the Medium-Term Financial Strategy, which has a detailed one-year budget and high levels
for the forthcoming years given the complete lack of clarity from central government regarding
future funding for local authorities. The Council has a good track record of financial
management and internal control, but resources are necessarily limited, and ongoing savings
targets will be required to balance the Medium Term Financial Plan.

The Council continues to ensure that the accounts are compliant with the Local Authority
Accounting Code of Practice. Performance against budget is reported at committee meetings
and managed by SLT and through the corporate business planning process. The Council
ensures that the levels of reserves it holds are generally sustainable over the medium term.
The MTFS takes account of the current economic climate and changes to funding for local
government.

The Council has a Treasury Management Strategy that is reviewed each year and monitored
on a regular basis. This ensures the Council has sound processes and controls over its
treasury function to minimise risk exposure.

Decision Making, Scrutiny and Governance

The Council, the Policy, Finance and Development Committee and the Service Delivery
Committee take decisions on service and management matters in line with terms of reference
set out in the Constitution. The committees meet four times each municipal year. Financial
performance is monitored and scrutinised by the Policy, Finance and Development Committee
on a quarterly basis the Service Delivery Committee reviews non-financial performance.
Scrutiny and challenge is managed within these core committees and further challenge is
provided by elected members through officers pre meeting with Committee Chairmen,
Resident Forums and Member Workshops.

The Council has a separate Audit Committee which receives reports from the Internal Audit
service and can require managers to attend to answer questions as required. Reports from
the External Auditor are also received at these meetings.

The Audit Committee provides an independent and high-level focus on the audit, assurance
and reporting arrangements that underpin good governance and financial standards. The
Committee also meets quarterly and oversees internal audit and external audit arrangements,
the annual accounts and ensures adequate internal controls are in place”.

Elected members are responsible for ensuring that effective policy making, scrutiny and
monitoring activities occur.

A clear committee structure assists such responsibilities to be effectively carried out. Member
expertise and involvement is further enhanced by on-going training and development
opportunities.

Internal Audit Arrangements

The Council’s internal audit function is for 2024/25 was delivered by an external provider, 360
Assurance Ltd. The annual risk-based audit plan contributes to the review of the Council’s
key internal control systems, risk management processes and corporate governance

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 120

~ Page 126 ~



arrangements. 360 Assurance supports the design and effectiveness of the governance
framework. Each internal audit review is given an assurance level. The definition of each of
these assurance levels is provided in the table below.

Definition of Assurance Levels

e Full - No significant risk issues identified.

e Significant - Exposure to levels of risk that may only impair the effectiveness of the
system or process under review.

e Moderate - Exposure to levels of risk that render some elements of the system’s control
environment undeliverable.

e Limited - Exposure to unacceptable level of risk that could have a serious impact upon
the system or process under review.

o None - Exposure to unacceptable levels of risk that could have a serious impact upon
the organisation as a whole.

Regular meetings are held between 360 Assurance and the Section 151 Officer, and the Client
Manager attends the Council’s Corporate Management Team meetings. This ensures the high
standard of internal audit support is maintained. The annual audit plan is reviewed on a
frequent basis to identify any amendments needed to reflect changing priorities, emerging
risks or resourcing challenges. Regular reports are taken on a quarterly basis to the Audit
Committee on the progress of internal audits and an annual report is also provided each year.

For 2024/25 out of a total of 17 audits, 14 returned significant assurance and 3 moderate
assurance.

For 2025/26 our internal audit provider has been changed to SWAP (South West Audit
Partnership).

External Audit Arrangements

The Audit Committee receives regular reports from the Council’s External Auditors Grant
Thornton LLP and Internal Audit (360 Assurance). The Section 151 Officer has direct access
to this committee as well as to the External Auditors. Likewise, Audit Committee members
have direct access to the External Auditor.

Financial Management Arrangements

Underpinning the Council’s financial management arrangements is a regularity framework
comprising Financial Regulations, Contract Procedure Rules, annual audits of key financial
systems and audits of other systems undertaken on a risk-based basis. Other processes and
procedures such as the Procurement Strategy and Risk Management Strategy are monitored
on a regular basis.

Role of Statutory Officers

There are governance arrangements in place to ensure that members and officers work
together to achieve a common purpose with clearly defined functions and roles. The Council’s
Constitution includes a scheme of delegation and terms of reference for each committee.
Responsibilities are set out to make clear how the Council and its committees operate within
the organisation. The scheme of delegation also defines the powers granted to the Chief
Executive (the Head of Paid Service) and other chief officers within the areas of their service
responsibility.

The Constitution reflects all relevant legislation impacting on decision making in local
government and is published on the Council’s website.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 121

~ Page 127 ~



The Council has a statutory responsibility to have a Head of Paid Service, a Section 151
Officer and a Monitoring Officer. The Council’s financial arrangements fully conform to the
governance requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer
in Local Government. The Section 151 Officer is a key member of the Senior Leadership
Team. The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the proper administration of the Council’s
financial arrangements and leads a fully resourced and suitably qualified finance function. The
Section 151 Officer was actively involved in and able to bring influence to bear on all material
business decisions to ensure immediate and long-term implications, opportunities and risks,
were fully considered and in alignment with the Medium-Term Financial Strategy.

The Monitoring Officer role is fulfilled by the Council’'s Legal and Democratic Services
Manager, who acts as guardian of the Council’s Constitution to ensure lawfulness, probity and
fairness in Council decision making. The Monitoring Officer has processes for the review of
legislative changes which feed into the annual review of the Constitution.

Consultation meetings and other forms of communication between the Monitoring Officer and
senior managers as appropriate ensures that managers can contribute to revisions to the
Constitution including the scheme of delegation.

The annual review includes the Constitution’s terms of reference.

The Senior Leadership Team

Officer decision making at a strategic level is led by the Senior Leadership Team. For the
majority of 2024/25 this comprised of the Chief Executive, a Strategic Director, a Chief
Finance Officer/S151 Officer, the Monitoring Officer, the Head of Built Environment and the
Head of Customer Service and Transformation. The Team meets formally on a weekly basis
and standing items of business include finance, policy, governance, human resources,
performance management and the delivery of the Council’s priorities.

Standards of Conduct

Officers of the Council are expected to maintain high standards of conduct. The Council has
a staff code of conduct that is published on the intranet along with other policies and
procedures.

There is an agreed protocol between members and officers to ensure that a constructive
working relationship exists, and this Annual Governance Statement also promotes and
demonstrates the values of good governance through upholding high standards of conduct
and behaviour. In addition, Policy, Finance and Development committee fulfils the functions
of the Standards Committee and operates to ensure that councillors and any co-opted
members of the Council behave in a way that exemplifies high standards of conduct and
effective governance and has regard to the member code of conduct.

Regular records of advice and code issues are kept by the Monitoring Officer.

Declaring interests under the code of conduct is a standard item on the agenda at every
committee meeting and Council and declarations are minuted by a member of the Democratic
and Electoral Services Officer. A legal advisor attends all Council and committee meetings to
advise on the application of the code and other issues where this is requested or otherwise
considered appropriate. A planning code of conduct is in place and is adhered to by members
who sit on the Development Control Committee.

Members and officers comply with the Council’s gift and hospitality policy.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 122

~ Page 128 ~



The Council’s website explains how complaints can be made against elected members by
either downloading a complaint form or making a complaint on-line. The web page also has
links to the code of conduct and the Constitution.

A register of the Council’s contracts is published on the Council’s website. In addition, details
of the Council’s spend on individual items over £250 is published on a quarterly basis.

Compliance

The Council’'s policies and procedures are drawn up and regularly reviewed to ensure
compliance with current legislation and regulations. Legal Services assist with updating and
amending policies and advise on legal implications including legislative impacts on
recommendations included in committee reports. Equalities implications are also considered
as part of committee reports.

Whistle Blowing

Concerns regarding non-compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations can be
raised through the Council’'s anti-fraud and confidential reporting policies. Concerns raised
are always investigated and acted upon following clearly defined guidelines.

The Whistle Blowing Policy is published on the Council’s intranet and internet to raise
awareness and outline procedures in place to staff, contractors and the public. It features in
the induction of new staff.

The Monitoring Officer, after consultation with the Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer,
has statutory powers to report to Council in relation to any function, proposal, decision or
omission that s/he considers would give rise to unlawfulness or any decision or omission that
might give rise to maladministration. Such a report would have the effect of stopping the
proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered.

Officer and Member Development

The Council’'s staff appraisal process assesses performance and delivery of Council
objectives and also identifies any skills gaps that need addressing. Each officer has an agreed
annual personal development plan. Progress against these plans is reviewed regularly
through one-to-one discussions with line managers. The process ensures that the Council
continually keeps under review the levels of skills required to carry out functions with due
regard to law, policy and regulation.

As part of the Council’s business planning process each service plan includes learning and
development needs linked to specific actions.

This ensures that the skill sets required for delivering the key priorities and actions for the
Council are identified and provided.

Training programmes and other development opportunities are circulated and shared more
broadly using the Council’s internal communication mechanisms. The Council also supports
the training and development of members.

Consultation

Engaging with local people and other stakeholders to ensure robust public accountability is a
key element of the governance framework. The Council takes every opportunity to consult
with relevant stakeholders before taking any decisions likely to impact on the level and quality

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 123

~ Page 129 ~



of services. In addition, the Council’s business planning process includes an annual timetable
of formal consultation events ensuring statutory, voluntary and business partners have the
opportunity to comment on budget proposals under consideration.

The Council has given delegated authority on budget provision to three Resident Forums who
can make recommendations to the Policy, Finance & Development Committee on how funds
could be allocated to various projects within their geographic area. The Forums’ membership
is open to people who live in the three areas and this approach has been found to be a very
good sources of two-way communication and consultation around the Council’s policy
initiatives.

Reviewing the Effectiveness of the Governance Framework

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness
of its governance framework including the system of internal control.

The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of senior managers within the Council
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance
environment. The annual report from the Council’s Internal Audit service is a key document in
assessing the effectiveness of the Council’'s governance arrangements. Comments from
External Auditors Grant Thornton LLP and other agencies and inspectorates such as the Local
Government Association are also important.

The Senior Leadership Team, chaired by the Chief Executive, reviews the Council’s
governance framework and control environment and is responsible for the preparation of the
Annual Governance Statement. Appropriate managers are responsible for producing their
own service assurance statements and developing an improvement plan to rectify any
identified governance weaknesses within their service areas. The Audit Committee reviews
the Annual Governance Statement and evaluates the strength of the underlying assurance
statements and evidence.

External Audit

The Council’s external auditors are Grant Thornton. Each year the external auditors
review the Council’s arrangements for:

e Preparing accounts and compliance with statutory and other relevant requirements.

e Ensuring the proper conduct of financial affairs and monitoring their adequacy and
effectiveness in practice.

¢ Managing performance to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of
resources.

In April 2025 Grant Thornton issued their Audit Findings Report, covering the audit of the
Council’'s 2023/24 financial statements. Four improvement recommendations were identified
within the report and were identified as being agreed and addressed.

The report also identified a follow-up of 7 recommendations from previous audits. Out of these
7 recommendations the Council is confident to have completed 6 of them, and this was
formally reported to the Council’'s Audit Committee 09 April 2025.

Internal Audit

The Council’'s Head of Internal Audit is required to provide an annual opinion, based upon and
limited to the work performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the organisation’s
risk management, control and governance processes (i.e. the Council’'s system of internal

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 124

~ Page 130 ~



control). This is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and
approved by the Audit Committee, which should provide a reasonable level of assurance.

The Head of Internal Audit’s role reflects best practice which is compliant with Public Sector
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

For 2024/25, the Head of Internal Audit view was that, based on an objective assessment of
the framework of governance, risk management and control, an opinion of Significant
Assurance was provided.

The Head of Internal Audit Opinion and Annual Report will be presented report to the Audit
Committee during July 2025.

The Head of Internal Audit stated that there was a generally sound framework of governance,
risk management and control designed to meet the organisation's objectives and controls are
generally being applied consistently.

Basis of the Auditors opinion formed

¢ An initial assessment of the design and operation of the underpinning risk management
framework and supporting processes.

e An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk-based audit
assignment contained within internal audit risk-based plans that have been reported
throughout the year. This assessment has taken account of the relative materiality of these
areas and management’s progress in respect of addressing control weaknesses.

e Any reliance that is being placed upon third party assurances.

Risk Management

During 2024/25 the Council’s Strategic Risk Register was monitored by the Risk Management
Group — a small, cross-organisational group of officers, managers and Heads of Service who
monitor risk on behalf of the Senior Leadership Team. SLT review and sign off risk updates
which are then presented to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

The register identified major risks and commented on their likelihood and impact on the
Council’s objectives. Each risk is allocated a responsible senior officer for identifying an action
plan and provides an update.

Risk management is embedded in processes such as project management, appraisal of new
capital investment and service development plans as well as all formal Council reports.

The Role of the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The CFO (also referred to as the S151 Officer) conforms to the governance requirements and
core responsibilities of two CIPFA Statements on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer; in
Local Government (2016) and in the Local Government Pension Scheme (2014). The CFO is
a key member of the Senior Leadership Team and is able to bring influence to bear on all
material business decisions, ensuring that immediate and long-term implications,
opportunities, and risks, are fully considered and in alignment with the MTFS and other
corporate strategies.

The CFO is aware of, and committed to, the five key principles that underpin the role of the
CFO and has completed an assurance statement that provides evidence against core
activities which strengthen governance and financial management across the Council.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 125

~ Page 131 ~



The Role of the Monitoring Officer (MO)

The Monitoring Officer has responsibility for ensuring that decisions taken comply with all
necessary statutory requirements and are lawful. Where in the opinion of the Monitoring
Officer any decision or proposal is likely to be unlawful and lead to maladministration, he/she
shall advise the Council.

The MO is also bound to ensure that decisions taken are in accordance with the Council’s
budget and it's Policy Framework and provides advice on the scope of powers and authority
to take decisions.

In discharging this role, the Monitoring Officer is supported by officers within the Legal and
Democratic Services Teams.

The Monitoring Officer received public complaints during 2024/25.
Level 1 complaints 101
Early resolution 21

Level 2 complaints 19

Local Government Ombudsman

The Local Government Ombudsman were involved in four complaints during 2024/25. One
was not investigated and the Council is awaiting the outcome from the other three
investigations.

Housing Ombudsman

The Housing Ombudsman Service investigates complaints about social housing landlords
when residents have already gone through the landlord's internal complaints process and
haven't achieved a satisfactory resolution. In 2024-25 the Housing Ombudsman completed
3 investigations into the Council’'s Housing Services which resulted in 6 findings with 4
maladministration findings, a total number of 8 orders being made including payments of
compensation and 3 recommendations such as further staff training, which the Council
accepted.

Constitutional Matters

The key roles and responsibilities of Council committees, of elected members, the Chief
Executive, Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer / Section 151 Officer are set out in
the Council’'s Constitution scheme of delegation.

These three officers are responsible for ensuring that the Council acts within the law and in
accordance with established policies and procedures. No report can be presented to Council
or a committee for approval without first being reviewed by these officers or their delegated
representative(s). These officers are also responsible for ensuring that legislation and policy
relating to health and safety are implemented in practice.

The Council's Constitution sets out how it operates, how decisions are made and the
procedures which are followed to make sure these are efficient, transparent and accountable
to the people the Council serves. It's the key guide and 'rulebook’ for how the Council; its staff
and elected Members fulfil their roles and responsibilities. The Constitution is updated
periodically, and the latest version is dated August 2024.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 126

~ Page 132 ~



Code of Conduct

The standards of behaviour expected from members and officers are set out in the
Member/Officer Codes of Conduct. The Council adopted the LGA Model Code of Conduct
with local amendments, in December 2021. A register of members’ interests is maintained,
and the records of interest are declared at Council and committee meetings. All members are
required to complete Related Party Declarations at the end of the financial year in support of
the statutory financial statements.

Members’ allowances are examined on an annual basis and a review of the allowance scheme
was last undertaken in 2024 by an independent remuneration panel.

The Monitoring Officer received two member complaints in 2024/25 which were resolved
informally without the need to conduct an investigation.

Effectiveness

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting at least annually, a review of its governance
framework including the system of internal control.

The review is informed by the Internal Audit Annual Report, the work of the Audit Committee,
the comments of external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates, and the work
of the Senior Leadership Team who have responsibility for the development and maintenance
of the internal control environment.

The review considers evidence identified to support where the Council meets the
CIPFA/SOLACE guidance and sets out this in the Assurance Review and Evidence
document. Governance areas are given an assessment scoring as follows:

e Good — Good governance exists and there are no improvements required.

e Fair — Satisfactory governance exists but improvements are required to meet good
governance.

e Poor - Significant issues with governance exist which needs addressing.

Areas identified as fair or poor are reported within the annual governance statement and
remedial actions are also outlined.

2024/25 Review of Effectiveness and Areas of improvement identified
during 2024/25

No significant governance issues have been identified in the annual assurance review for
2024/25.

Full details of the review can be found in the Assurance Review Statement for 2024/25 which
is published alongside this Annual Governance Statement and can be found later in this
document.

Oadby and Wigston Financial Statements 2024/25 127

~ Page 133 ~



Overall opinion and conclusion
Conclusion

The Council is satisfied that appropriate governance arrangements are in place however it remains
committed to maintaining and where possible improving these arrangements, by proactively addressing
those issues identified in undertaking the annual review.

The Council will continue to seek to enhance and strengthen governance arrangements within these areas
for improvement and monitor progress made as part of our next annual review.

Statement of Leader and Chief Executive

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of the governance
framework carried out by members of the Senior Leadership Team and that the arrangements continue to
be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework.

~ Page 134 ~

128



Signed Signed

Councillor Samia Haq Anne Court
Leader of the Council Chief Executive
30/06/2025 30/06/2025



Annual Governance Statement
Assurance Review

May 2025

Assurance and evidence in support of the Council’s Governance Statement

Assessment Score:
GOOD - Good governance exists and there are no improvements required.
FAIR — Satisfactory governance but improvements are required to meet ‘Good Governance’.

POOR - Significant issues with governance exist which need addressing.

- Page 136 -~ 130



THE COUNCIL’s GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Council’'s governance framework is consistent with the seven principles of the CIPFA /
SOLACE Framework, which are:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and
respecting the rule of law.

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement.

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits.

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes.

E. Developing the Authority’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it.

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial
management.

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective

accountability.

At the core of the framework are the principles of behaving with integrity and ensuring openness.

G. Implementing good C. Defining outcomes
practices in transparency, in terms of sustainable
reporting, and audit, to economic, social, and
deliver effective environmental benefits
accountability

A. Behaving with
integrity, demonstrating
strong commitment to ethical
values, and respecting
the rule of law

F. Managing risks D. Determining the
and performance through B. Ensuring openness interventions necessary
robust internal control and comprehensive to optimize the
and strong public stakeholder engagement achievement of the
financial management intended outcomes

E

Developing the
entity’s capacity,
including the capability
of its leadership and the
individuals within it

-~ Page 137 - 131



Core Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting

the rule of law

Supporting Principle 1: Behaving with Integrity

Requirement of local
authorities to:

Asses| Evidence

1. Ensuring members and
officers behave with
integrity and lead a
culture where acting in
the public interest is
visibly and consistently
demonstrated thereby
protecting the
reputation of the
organisation.

2. Ensuring members take
the lead in establishing
specific standard
operating principles or
values for the
organisation and its
staff and that they are
communicated and
understood. These
should build on the
Seven Principles of
Public Life (the Nolan
Principles)

3. Leading by example
and using these
standard operating
principles or values as a
framework for decision
making and other
actions

Good.

Good.

Constitution (incl. statutory officers, None.
scheme of delegation, financial and
procurement procedure rules)
Council, Committee Chairs,
Committees.

OFLOG Self-Assessment
Service policies,

Complaints procedure

Head of Paid Service,
Monitoring Officer and S151
Officer

HR policies and procedures
Fraud policy in place.

Induction training for new
members and staff.

Codes of conduct

Ethics report taken to PFDC
quarterly.

SLT & CMT

External & Internal Audit reports.
Corporate Plan

Council’s values

OFLOG Self-Assessment
Corporate Strategy

2025/26 Budget

Organisational Strategy

None.

Council leadership (Leader of the None.
Council Deputy Leader, Committee

Chairs and Vice Chairs, Mayor and

Deputy Mayor)

Declarations of interest noted.

Up-to-date register of gifts and

hospitality.

- Page 138 -~ 132



4. Demonstrating, Good.
communicating, and
embedding the
standard operating
principles or values
through appropriate
policies and processes
which are reviewed on
a regular basis to
ensure that they are
operating effectively

Anti-fraud and corruption policy in ~ None.
place. Register of interests and
annual declaration of related
parties. The whistle blowing policy
and complaints policy are well
established and regularly reviewed.
The Members and Officers Codes
of Conduct refers to a requirement
to declare interests.

Minutes show declarations of
interest were sought, and
appropriate declarations made.

Supporting Principle 2: Demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values

Requirement of local

authorities to:

1. Seeking to establish, monitor Good.

and maintain the
organisation’s ethical
standards and performance

2. Underpinning personal
behaviour with ethical values
and ensuring they permeate
all aspects of the
organisation’s culture and
operation.

3. Developing and maintaining  Good.

robust policies and
procedures which place
emphasis on agreed ethical
values

4. Ensuring that external
providers of services on
behalf of the organisation are
required to act with integrity
and in compliance with high
ethical standards expected by
the organisation

Assess | Evidence

Good.

Good.

Significant
Issues

Values developed with staff None.
and embedded into induction
process for officers and
members and appraisals for
staff. Standards and Ethics
report taken to PFDC quarterly.
Values embedded into
induction process for officers
and members and appraisals
for staff.

Values were developed with
staff and are embedded across
the Council

None.

Appraisal process built upon  None.
values of the Council and

has been revisited during

the year.

Equality and Diversity

Policy in place.

ElAs are part of our

standard approach and

taken forward where
appropriate or required.

Key partnerships have
mechanisms in place to
define role and scope of
partners.

Procurement exercises, where
appropriate, include
assessment criteria around
social value which is
incorporate into contracts.

None.

~ Page 139 ~

Areas for
Improveme
nt

133



Supporting Principle 3: Respecting the rule of law

Assessment| Evidence

Requirement of local
authorities to:

Ensuring members and Good.

staff demonstrate a
strong commitment to
the rule of the law as
well as adhering to
relevant laws and
regulations

Creating the conditions Good.

to ensure that the
statutory officers, other
key post holders and
members are able to
fulfil their
responsibilities in
accordance with
legislative and
regulatory
requirements.

Striving to optimise the Good.

use of the full powers
available for the benefit
of citizens,
communities, and other
stakeholders

Dealing with breaches Good.

of legal and regulatory
provisions effectively

Ensuring corruption Good.

and misuse of power
are dealt with
effectively

Constitution is adhered to and None.
reviewed regularly.

Statutory provisions are adhered

to.

Head of Paid Service, Monitoring

Officer and S151/CFO in place.

Job descriptions and roles of None.
statutory officers are well

defined and understood by the
organisation.

Structure of SLT ensures statutory
officers are included in decision

making.

The S151 / CFO role complies
with CIPFA’s Statement on the
Role of the Chief Financial Officer
in Local Government (CIPFA,
2016).

Statutory Officers meet separately

to the Senior Leadership Team

when necessary and the Directors

and CEX regularly meet

separately.

Arrangements in place for legal None.
advice and recording of advice.

All reports requiring a decision are
considered by Finance and Legal

before being considered by the

relevant decision-making
committee/Council.

Proper arrangements in place for None.
legal advice and recording of

advice, Monitoring Officer

referenced to give advice and

ensure Council’s operates within

the law at all times. Monitoring

Officer authorised to investigate

all breaches and refer to

appropriate regulatory bodies.
Whistleblowing policy, anti-fraud None.
and corruption policy in place.
Segregation of duties on key

financial processes.

- Page 140 -~ 134



Core Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement

Supporting Principle 1: Openness

Requirement of local Assessment| Evidence Significant| Areas for

authorities to: Issues Improvement

1. Ensuring an open Good. Corporate Plan and emerging None.
culture through Corporate Strategy.
demonstrating, Budget considerations are consulted
documenting and upon, and results are published.
communicating the FOI requests actively responded to,
organisation’s website, online publishing of
commitment to expenditure.
openness

2. Making decisions that  Good. Record of decision making and None.
are open about actions, supporting materials. Standard report
plans, resource use, format used. The Council’s
forecasts, outputs and governance framework aims to
outcomes. The ensure it sets and meets its
presumption is for objectives and responsibilities in a
openness. If that is not lawful, timely, open, inclusive, and
the case, a justification honest manner; and that its use of
for the reasoning for public money and resources are
keeping a decision safeguarded, properly accounted for
confidential should be and used economically, efficiently
provided and effectively.

3. Providing clear Good. Decisions well documented with None.
reasoning and evidence supporting information and advice
for decisions in both included. Forward Plan detailing
public records and report publication on a timely basis.
explanations to Calendar of dates for submitting,
stakeholders and being publishing, and distributing timely
explicit about the reports is adhered to Council and
criteria, rationale and Committee meetings are normally

open to the public unless information
is of a commercially sensitive nature.
The conduct of business is defined
by formal procedures and rules that
are set out in the Constitution.

considerations used. In
due course, ensuring
that the impact and
consequences of those
decisions are clear

4. Using formal and Good Customer and staff satisfaction None.
informal consultation surveys carried out regularly.
and engagement to Resident Forums in place for key
determine the most towns in the borough (Oadby,
appropriate and effective Wigston and South Wigston).
interventions / courses
of action. We follow statutory requirements

for consultation and very often go
above that in terms of community
engagement.

Ad-hoc approach to informal
consultation in place and utilised.

Communications Strategy adopted
April 2022 and Customer Experience
Strategy adopted in 2023.

The Tenant and Leaseholder Forum
plays a key role ensuring the Council
meets its regulatory standards.

-~ Page 141 - 135



Comprehensive consultations
undertaken in 2023/24 including
2024/25 budget consultation,
hackney carriage vehicle
consultation, polling districts, places
and stations, statement of
community involvement, draft
climate change strategy, draft damp,
mould and condensation policy and
housing tenants’ perception survey.

Supporting Principle 2: Engaging comprehensively with institutional stakeholders

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Assessment| Evidence

1. Effectively engaging Good.

with institutional
stakeholders to ensure
that the purpose,
objectives and intended
outcomes for each
stakeholder relationship
are clear so that
outcomes are achieved
successfully and
sustainably

2. Developing formal and Good.

informal partnerships to
allow for resources to
be used more efficiently
and outcomes achieved
more effectively

3. Ensuring that Good.

partnerships are
based on trust, a
shared commitment
to change, a culture
that promotes and
accepts challenge
among partners and
that the added
value of partnership
working is explicit

Formal and informal partnerships None.
in place. Regular diarised

meetings with appropriate senior
officers and partners (including

SLM, Helping Hands).

Strong example is relationship

with University of Leicester and

support from the Council to the

Civic Agreement.

Partnership working across the  None.
authority is strong for example

the recently formed Building

Control partnership. Approach to
consideration of shared services
embedded as part of alternative

service delivery model reviews.

Develop
Partnership
Toolkit as per
Corporate
Strategy.

Service Level Agreements.
Partnership agreements exist.

The organisation has a range of
partnerships and collaborative
relationships. They have

appropriate legal agreements and
governance commensurate with

the nature of the partnership,

depending on factors such as

legal status, membership, risk,

subject matter.

As above. None.

~ Page 142 ~

Head of
Law and
Democracy

136



Core Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits

Supporting Principle 1: Defining outcomes

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Assessment| Evidence

1. Having a clear vision Fair.
which is an agreed
formal statement of
the organisation’s
purpose and intended
outcomes containing
appropriate
performance
indicators, which
provides the basis for
the organisation’s
overall strategy,
planning and other
decisions.

2. Specifying the Good.

intended impact on, or
changes for,
stakeholders including
citizens and service
users. It could be
immediately or over
the course of a year or
longer

3. Delivering defined Good.

outcomes on a
sustainable basis
within the resources
that will be available

4. Identifying and Good.

managing risks to the
achievement of
outcomes

5. Managing service Good.

users’ expectations
effectively with regard
to determining

The Corporate Plan and None.

emerging Strategy defines the
vision for the Council, including
values and priorities.

Service Plans are developed
based on the Corporate Plan.
The quarterly monitoring report
and End of Year report details
performance against the
performance indicators.

Council Vision is widely
promoted and embedded within
the authority.

The emerging Corporate
Strategy is firmly aligned with
the vision.

Intended impacts set out in None.

Corporate Plan / Strategy and
Team Business Plans.

Team Business Plans None.

developed for each service
area. Regular performance and
finance reports monitored by
SLT; Project performance
reports monitored by SLT,
Service Delivery and
Performance, Finance and
Development Committees.

Quarterly review of risk with None.

SLT.

Risk Management Group
involves a cross-organisational
set of officers from all
management levels who
monitor risk.

Audit Committee review of risk
on a quarterly basis.

Performance Indicators within  None.

Team Business Plans and
Corporate Plan/Strategy include

~ Page 143 ~

Approval of Interim
New Corporate Strategic

Strategy Director
Embed the Strategic
revised PPM Director
approach

across the

Council.

Ensure that all Senior

the agreed Leadership
Internal Audit Team
actions are (However
implemented  each SLT

in a timely Member is
manner responsible
(Added focus  for their own
to given to service

those Audits area).
with less than
Significant
Assurance),

137



priorities and making
the best use of the
resources available

agreed set of quality standard
measures.

Supporting Principle 2: Sustainable economic, social and environmental benefits

Requirement of local
authorities to:

1. Considering and
balancing the combined
economic, social and
environmental impact of
policies, plans and
decisions when taking
decisions about service
provision

2. Taking a longer-term
view with regard to
decision making, taking
account of risk and
acting transparently
where there are
potential conflicts
between the
organisation’s intended
outcomes and short-
term factors such as the
political cycle or
financial constraints

3. Determining the wider
public interest
associated with
balancing conflicting

Fair.

Assessment| Evidence Significant| Areas for

Issues Improvement
We actively consider the None. A review of Head of
social and economic committee report Law and
impact of policies in format will be Democracy
decisions. An example of undertaken to
this is social value ensure report
considerations in authors convey the
procurement exercises. economic, social
Risk management plays and environmental
an active part in impact of policies,
considering and plans and decisions.

Good.

Good.

balancing impacts.

Record of decision None.
making and supporting

materials made available
publicly on website.

The Medium-Term
Financial Strategy
adopted includes an
affordability approach to
assessing the financial
implications of the
corporate strategy.

The MTFP includes a
Sustainability Plan for
closing budget gaps.

The draft Corporate
Strategy has been
developed in order to be
deliverable within the
Council’s budgetary
constraints.

The MTFP is updated and
presented to members
twice annually and to
scenario model potential
outcomes associated with
key factors and impact of
decisions.

We follow statutory None.
requirements for
consultation and as part
of very often go above

- Page 144 -~ 138



interests between
achieving the various
economic, social and
environmental benefits,
through consultation
where possible, in order
to ensure appropriate
trade-offs.

4. Ensuring fair access to Good.

services

that in terms of
community engagement.

Ad-hoc approach to
informal consultation in
place and utilised.
Elected members act in
public interest. Record of
decisions made available
to public via website.
Consultations on key
projects with key groups.

Members abide by the
code of conduct and all
committee reports are
prepared to reflect all the
relevant options, risks
and benefits — so
members have all the
relevant information in
front of them when they
make a decision.

The Council is
transparent in decision
making.

We publish all our
agendas and minutes.

Nominated Equalities None.

lead. All new policies
presented for approval
require Equalities Impact
Assessment to be
completed and regularly
reviewed as part of
ensuring fair access.

Equality and Diversity
Policy in place. Process
in place for equalities
impact assessments and
action included in
Equalities and Diversity
Action Plan to assess
current processes.

The Customer Experience
Strategy was adopted in
2023 and progress is
regularly monitored to
ensure fair access to
services is available to all
our residents. Our local
insight document is
available on the intranet
and used so that all our
staff better understand
our customer groups.

~ Page 145 ~

139



Core Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended
outcomes

Supporting Principle 1: Determining interventions

Requirement of local Assessment| Evidence Significant| Areas for

authorities to: Issues Improvement

Ensuring decision Good.

makers receive
objective and rigorous
analysis of a variety of
options indicating how
intended outcomes
would be achieved
and including the risks
associated with those
options. Therefore
ensuring best value is
achieved however
services are provided

Considering feedback Good.

from citizens and
service users when
making decisions
about service
improvements or
where services are no
longer required in
order to prioritise
competing demands
within limited
resources available
including people,
skills, land and assets
and bearing in mind
future impacts

All reports details options None.
appraisals and risks
associated with decisions.

The Medium-Term Financial
Strategy adopted includes an
affordability approach to assessing
the financial implications of the
corporate strategy.

The MTFP includes a
Sustainability Plan for closing
budget gaps. This is updated and
presented to members twice
annually and to scenario model
potential outcomes associated with
key factors and impact of
decisions.

The draft Corporate Strategy has
been developed in order to be
deliverable within the Council’s
budgetary constraints.

Budget consultation undertaken for None.
2024/25 received 359 replies.

Whilst this was a challenging

budget, due to the amount of

savings that were necessary a

change to the draft budget was to
reintroduce expenditure on

community health and well-being.

Other comprehensive
consultations undertaken in
2023/24 include the hackney
carriage vehicle consultation,
polling districts, places and
stations, statement of community
involvement, draft climate change
strategy, draft damp, mould and
condensation policy and housing
tenants’ perception survey.

For other areas, we follow statutory
requirements for consultation and
very often go above that in terms
of community engagement. Ad-hoc
approach to informal consultation
in place and utilised.

- Page 146 -~ 140



Supporting Principle 2: Planning interventions

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Assessment| Evidence

Establishing and Good.
implementing robust

planning and control

cycles that cover

strategic and

operational plans,

priorities and targets.

2. Engaging with internal Good.
and external
stakeholders in
determining how
services and other
courses of action
should be planned and
delivered.

3. Considering and Good
monitoring risks facing
each partner when
working collaboratively
including shared risks

4. Ensuring arrangements Good.
are flexible and agile so
that the mechanisms
for delivering outputs
can be adapted to
changing
circumstances
5. Establishing Good.
appropriate key
performance indicators
(KPIs) as part of the
planning process in
order to identify how
the performance of
services and projects is
to be measured
6. Ensuring capacity Good.
exists to generate the
information required to
review service quality
regularly

Calendar dates for all Council
meetings agreed in advance,
reports published in a timely
manner ensuring a robust
planning cycle.

Quarterly performance and
finance reports monitored by SLT
and Service Delivery and Policy,
Finance and Development
Committees.

Resident Forums in
existence for each major
town in the borough.

We regularly consult
where changes to policies
are made, over and above
statutory requirements.

Tenant engagement
approach for Housing now
established and will
develop further in 2023/24.

Strong partnerships exist.
Partnership agreements exist
where necessary for
financial/legal/governance/risk
reasons and formal agreements
are put in place. (e.g. Shared
Building Control).

Delegated

responsibility in some

areas. Constitution is

flexible.

Delegated decision making can
be amended to facilitate urgent
decision making.

KPls established and approved
for each service and included in
Service Plans.

Quarterly Performance Reports
are considered by Service
Delivery Committee.

Performance is included to give
context for decisions to be made
where necessary.

Resource dedicated to
Transformation which works
across the organisation to make

~ Page 147 ~

None.

None.

None

None.

None.

None.

Ensure that all CFO
Internal Audit
Reviews are
considered by

SLT in detalil

prior to final

sign-off by

Service

Managers

141



8.

Preparing budgets in  Good
accordance with
organisational

objectives, strategies

and the medium-term
financial plan

Informing medium and Good.

long term resource
planning by drawing up
realistic estimates of
revenue and capital
expenditure aimed at
developing a
sustainable funding
strategy

customer, process and financial
improvements.

Programme of service reviews
underway in 2023 as part of the
council’s Sustainability
Programme.

Strategic and Financial Planning None.

timetable was reviewed and
aligned for 2024/25 planning,
enabling a more integrated
approach. Numerous Member
workshops covering Financial
Sustainability were undertaken
during the year.

Star Chambers where the Council
Leader, Deputy Leader,
Chairmen of SDC and PFDC and
a Councillor from the Opposition
were invited to budget meetings
in order to scrutinise and
understand budget proposals with
the respective Heads of Service
prior to formal budget setting.

2024/25 Budget was approved
with the Council committed to not
using General Reserves to
balance the budget.

Emerging Corporate Strategy is
prepared with close alignment to
financial position.

Strategic and Financial Planning None.

timetable was reviewed and
aligned for 2024/25 planning,
enabling a more integrated
approach. Numerous Member
workshops covering Financial
Sustainability were undertaken
during the year.

Star Chambers where the Council
Leader, Deputy Leader,
Chairmen of SDC and PFDC and
a Councillor from the Opposition
were invited to budget meetings
in order to scrutinise and
understand budget proposals with
the respective Heads of Service
prior to formal budget setting.

A realistic, practical and
achievable Sustainability Plan
was approved as part of the
2024/25 Budget with Council
committed to not using General
Reserves to balance the budget.

~ Page 148 ~

Ensure
2025/26
budget is
prepared in
accordance
with Corporate
Strategy
activities.

CFO

142



Supporting Principle 3: Optimising achievement of intended outcomes

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Assessment| Evidence

Significant
Issues

Areas for
Improvement

1. Ensuring the medium-term Fair
financial strategy
integrates and balances
service priorities,
affordability and other
resource constraints

2. Ensuring the budgeting  Good.
process is all inclusive,
taking into account the full
cost of operations over the
medium and longer term

3. Ensuring the medium-term Good
financial strategy sets the
context for ongoing
decisions on significant
delivery issues or
responses to changes in
the external environment
that may arise during the
budgetary period in order
for outcomes to be
achieved while optimising
resource usage

A realistic, practical and None.
achievable
Sustainability Plan was
approved as part of the
2024/25 Budget with
Council committed to
not using General
Reserves to balance
the budget.

The MTFP updated
and presented to
members twice
annually and to
scenario model
potential outcomes
associated with key
factors and impact of
decisions.

Further work through
the Sustainability
Programme as outlined
above will enhance
this.

There is a five-year None.
Capital budget planning
window.

The detailed revenue

budget currently

planned one year at a

time.

The MTFP focuses on
five-year medium term.

The Medium-Term None.
Financial Strategy

adopted includes an
affordability approach

to assessing the

financial implications of

the corporate strategy.

The MTFP includes a
Sustainability Plan for

closing budget gaps.

The draft Corporate
Strategy has been
developed in order to
be deliverable within
the Council’'s budgetary
constraints.

The MTFP is updated
and presented to
members twice

~ Page 149 ~

Ensure savings CFO
targets identified in

the Sustainability

Plan are met and
consistently applied.

143



annually and to
scenario model
potential outcomes
associated with key
factors and impact of
decisions.

Social value considered None
through the Council’s
Procurement Policy.

4. Ensuring the achievement Good
of ‘social value’ through
service planning and
commissioning.

Core Principle E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the
individuals within it

Supporting Principle 1: Developing the entity’s capacity

Assessment| Evidence

Requirement of local

Significant| Areas for

authorities to: Improvement

Reviewing operations, Fair.
performance use of

Reviews of structures,
ways of working and

Complete the Head of Law
revision of the and

assets on a regular basis performance carried out as Asset Democracy
to ensure their continuing necessary. Management
effectiveness Acquisitions and Disposals Policy and
Policies. Capital
Expenditure
Work is underway with the Plan
asset management policy
and capital expenditure !Ensure the
plan but this is not yet Corporate
complete. Assets’ element
of the Asset
A comprehensive asset Management
review has been Database is
undertaken and associated timetabled and
completed.

Improving resource use  Good
through appropriate

application of techniques

such as benchmarking

and other options in order

to determine how the

authority’s resources are
allocated so that

activities including asset
disposals are underway.

The approach to
purchasing a specific asset
management database has
been refined so that the
asset management is
contained within the
Council’'s Housing Asset
Management System
(therefore maximising the
use of that Council IT
Asset).

Benchmarking is conducted None.

across the Council, and
Customer Services
participate in a local
benchmarking group with
other Leicestershire

Councils. There are several

other specific groups, for

example, the DWP
~ Page 150 ~

144



outcomes are achieved (Department for Work and

effectively and efficiently Pensions) Benefits
Performance Management
Group. As a result of
benchmarking with regard
to planning processes, the
Council have streamlined
their process so that now
they lead in terms of
decision times. The
management of extensions
has also been improved.

Finance benchmarking
subscription in place via LG

Inform.
3. Recognising the benefits Good. Strong partnership working None.
of partnerships and across the Council.
collaborative working
where added value can be
achieved
4. Developing and Good Existing Strategic Risk None.
maintaining an effective Register.
workforce plan to enhance
the strategic allocation of People Strategy approved
resources and rolled out during
Summer 2023.

Sustainability Plan
identified areas for possible
redundancy as part of the
required savings targets for
the 2024/25 Budget.

Supporting Principle 2: Developing the capability of the entity’s leadership and other individuals

Requirement of local Assessment| Evidence

authorities to:

1. Developing protocols to Good. Regular meetings between None.
ensure that elected and Leader and Chief Executive.
appointed leaders negotiate Regular meetings also take
with each other regarding place between the Chief
their respective roles early Executive and Leader of the
in the relationship and that Opposition.

a shared understanding of Committee Chairs supported
roles and objectives is by designated SLT leads.
maintained Robust member induction

programme, with specific
and significant training

planned.
Code of Conduct for all
members.
2. Publishing a statement that Good. Regular review of delegation None.
specifies the types of and financial regulations.
decisions that are Constitution.

delegated and those
reserved for the collective

-~ Page 151 - 145



decision making of the
governing body

Ensuring the leader and the Good. Clear roles and None.
chief executive have clearly responsibilities with CEX’s

defined and distinctive objectives set and monitored
leadership roles within a by Members.

structure whereby the chief
executive leads the
authority in implementing
strategy and managing the
delivery of services and
other outputs set by
members and each
provides a check and a
balance for each other’s

authority

Developing the capabilities Good. Comprehensive timetable  None.
of members and senior of member inductions.
management to achieve Members trained as and
effective shared leadership when required for specific
and to enable the issues.

organisation to respond Formal induction process
successfully to changing for new administration and
legal and policy demands new members.

as well as economic, Robust member induction
political and environmental programme, with specific
changes and risks by: and significant training was

undertaken.
Code of Conduct for all

Ensuring members and :
members and officers.

staff have access to
appropriate induction
tailored to their role and
that ongoing training and
development matching
individual and
organisational
requirements is available
and encouraged

Ensuring members and
officers have the
appropriate skills,
knowledge, resources and
support to fulfil their roles
and responsibilities and
ensuring that they are able
to update their knowledge
on a continuing basis.
Ensuring personal,
organisational and system-
wide development through
shared learning, including
lessons learnt from
governance weaknesses
both internal and external
Ensuring that there are Good. Resident Forums, Customer None.
structures in place to feedback, regular formal
encourage public consultation exercises.
participation

Taking steps to consider  Good. LGA Financial Health Check None.
the leadership’s own 2021 and LGA Corporate
effectiveness and ensuring Peer Review.

- Page 152 -~ 146

Detailed and specific
induction processes take
place for staff and
appraisals which detail
any specific learning are
undertaken annually.

Post entry training and
CPD is also encouraged,
and professional fees are
reimbursed.



leaders are open to
constructive feedback from
peer review and
inspections

7. Holding staff to account
through regular
performance reviews
which take account of
training or development
needs

8. Ensuring arrangements are Good.

in place to maintain the
health and wellbeing of the
workforce and support
individuals in maintaining
their own physical and
mental wellbeing.

Good.

OFLOG Best Value Self-
Assessment undertaken
March/April 2024

Staff development plans None.
linked to appraisals. Staff
performance appraisal

approach was reviewed,

refreshed and relaunched

in 2023.

There are numerous health None.
and well-being initiatives

such as discount on leisure
facilities for staff, free eye-

tests, cycle to work scheme,
Brocks Hill walks and

activities such as pilates.
Employee advice line,

There are counselling

sessions available for

those in need.

Sickness management

ongoing.

Core Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial

management

Supporting Principle 1: Managing risk

Requirement of local

authorities to: ment

Assess

Evidence

Issues

1. Recognising that risk Good.
management is an

integral part of all

activities and must be
considered in all aspects

of decision making

2. Implementing robust and Good.
integrated risk
management
arrangements and
ensuring that they are
working effectively

3. Ensuring that
responsibilities for
managing individual risks
are clearly allocated

Good.

Risk Management system in None.
place with regular monitoring at
Manager/HoS level and SLT and

Audit Committee.

New cross-service and role Risk
Management Group established
to monitor risk.

Risk Management Policy adopted
by Audit Committee January 23.

Risk Management Policy formally None.
approved and adopted.

Health and Safety Action Plan in
place.

Risk Management system in None.
place with regular monitoring.

Each Strategic Risk has a

member of SLT as the strategic

risk owner.

-~ Page 153 - 147



Supporting Principle 2: Managing Performance

Requirement of local

Assessm | Evidence Significant Areas for
authorities to: Issues Improvem

1. Monitoring service Good.

delivery effectively
including planning,
specification, execution
and independent post
implementation review

2. Making decisions Good.

based on relevant,
clear objective analysis
and advice pointing out
the implications and
risks inherent in the
organisation’s financial,
social and
environmental position
and outlook

3. Encouraging effective  Good.

and constructive
challenge and debate
on policies and
objectives to support
balanced and effective
decision making

4. Providing members Good.

and senior
management with
regular reports on
service delivery plans
and on progress
towards outcome
achievement

Monitoring of service delivery None.
currently completed through

service plans. Agreed

performance targets reported
monthly.

SLAs for all service areas,
reviewed annually.

Standardised project appraisal None.
and affordability approach
developed as part of the MTFS.

This new approach was utilised
for the Council funding
allocation decision for the office
relocation.

Committee system enables all None.
members to contribute towards
ensuring policies are effective

and objectives are delivered.

Support offered to opposition
members e.g. through regular
briefings with the LOTO, CEX
and relevant members of SLT,
through the Buddying System
and as part of budget setting.

Regular quarterly reports to None.
SLT and Service Delivery
Committee.

~ Page 154 ~

ent

148



5. Ensuring there Good.
is consistency
between
specification
stages (such as
budgets) and
post
implementation
reporting (eg
financial
statements)

Standing orders in place. None.
Approval reports are separate

from financial updates.

Supporting Principle 3: Robust internal control

Requirement of local
authorities to:

1. Aligning the risk
management strategy
and policies on internal
control with achieving
the objectives

2. Evaluating and
monitoring the
authority’s risk
management and
internal control on a
regular basis

3. Ensuring effective Fair
counter fraud and anti-
corruption arrangements
are in place

4. Ensuring additional
assurance on the overall
adequacy and
effectiveness of the
framework of
governance, risk
management and control
is provided by the
internal auditor

5. Ensuring an audit
committee or equivalent
group or function which
is independent of the
executive and
accountable to the
governing body:

Asses | Evidence

Good.

Good.

Good.

Good.

Signifi
cant
Issues
Risk management policy audit  None.
plan and regular audit reports.
Risk management policy with None.
risks reviewed regularly by Risk
Management Group, SLT and
Audit Committee.
Compliance with the Code of None.

Practice on Managing the Risk of
Fraud and Corruption (CIPFA,
2014).

Anti-fraud policy updated April
2023 and Anti-corruption policy in
place.

Anti-fraud training has been
rolled out across the Council.

Annual Report on anti-fraud
progress to be provided to Audit
Committee

Annual governance statement,
internal audit arrangements
adequate with internal audit
actively involved in service
improvement.

None.

Audit committee complies with  None.
best practice. See

Audit Committees: Practical

Guidance for Local Authorities

and Police (CIPFA, 2018).

Terms of Reference in place for
Committee.

~ Page 155 ~

Areas for
Improvement

Ant-Fraud Report Interim
to be submitted to Strategic
Audit Committee Director

149



provides a further source
of effective assurance
regarding arrangements
for managing risk and
maintaining an effective
control environment that
its recommendations are
listened to and acted
upon.

Training for committee members
provided June 2022, included
session to enable committee
members to approve the
financial statements. Financial
Statement repeated in March
2025.

Audit Committee Self-
Assessment was undertaken in
January 2024

Supporting Principle 4: Managing Data

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Assessment | Evidence Significant

Issues

Areas for
Improvement

1. Ensuring
effective
arrangements
are in place for
the safe
collection,
storage, use and
sharing of data,
including
processes to
safeguard
personal data.

2. Ensuring effective
arrangements are in
place and operating
effectively when
sharing data with other
bodies.

3. Reviewing and
auditing
regularly the
quality and
accuracy of data
used in decision
making and
performance
monitoring.

Good. Policies in place None.

Good.

Good.

for data
management
and data
protection.
Designated data
protection
officer.

Data sharing None.
agreements in

place and data
processing
agreements

where

necessary.

Regular internal None.
audits carried

out.

Supporting Principle 5: Strong public financial management

Requirement of local

authorities to:

Asses| Evidence Significant

Issues

None.

None.

None.

Areas for
Improvement

1. Ensuring financial
management supports both
long-term achievement of
outcomes and short-term
financial and operational
performance.

Fair.

The Medium-Term None.
Financial Strategy

includes new affordability
approach to assessing the
financial implications of

the corporate strategy and

a Sustainability Plan for

closing budget gaps.

~ Page 156 ~

Progress the CFO
outstanding actions

to meet the CIPFA
Financial

Management Code:

150



Ensuring well-developed
financial management is
integrated at all levels of
planning and control,
including management of
financial risks and controls

Good

During 2023/24 the S151
Officer led a number of
financial workshops with
elected members to
emphasise the Council’s
financial position.

Working closely with
Councillors and the SLT,
the budget setting process
for 2024/25 provided
challenging yet tangible
and achievable savings
targets that were
necessary to put the
Council on a more
sustainable footing.

The MTFP is updated and
presented to members
twice annually and to
scenario model potential
outcomes associated with
key factors and impact of
decisions.

That said, the work
undertaken to adopt the
CIPFA Financial
Management Code in
2022 identified areas
where the Council did not
achieve the Code
requirements and the
majority of these have
now been taken forward
with any outstanding
actions outstanding to be
implemented in 2024/25

There are budget
monitoring reports and
regular reviews. The
relationship between
budget managers and
business partners has
improved and finance play
a key role in key projects
(such as the introduction
of alternate weekly bin
collections). This will now
be monitored, and
continuous improvements
undertaken in a ‘business
as usual” approach.

~ Page 157 ~

Progress the
vision for
finance at
OWBC
Undertake
training needs
analysis of
finance team
and develop
training and
development
plan

Update
Financial
Procedure
Rules
Implement the
Internal Audit
recs/

151



Core Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver

effective accountability

Supporting Principle 1: Implementing good practice in transparency

Requirement of local | Assessment| Evidence

authorities to:

1. Writing and Good.

communicating
reports for the public
and other
stakeholders in an
understandable style
appropriate to the
intended audience
and ensuring that
they are easy to
access and
interrogate

2. Striking a balance  Good.

between providing
the right amount of
information to satisfy
transparency
demands and
enhance public
scrutiny while not
being too onerous to
provide and for
users to understand

Website is  None.
user

friendly, all

formal

reports

written in

‘plain

English’.

Website None.
user

friendly, all

formal

reports

written in

‘plain

English’.

Website

includes
translation

tool.

Supporting Principle 2: Implementing good practices in reporting

Requirement of local | Assessment

authorities to:

1. Reporting at least  Good.

annually on
performance, value
for money and the
stewardship of its
resources

2. Ensuring members Good.

and senior
management own
the results

Evidence Significant

Issues

Service and None.
Financial
performance

are reported
quarterly to
committees,
Statement of
Accounts,

Annual

Governance
Statement.
Members and None.
SLT receive

and approve
reports.

~ Page 158 ~

Significant | Areas for
Issues Improvement

Areas for
Improvement

152



Ensuring robust Good.

arrangements for
assessing the extent
to which the
principles contained
in the Framework
have been applied
and publishing the
results on this
assessment
including an action
plan for
improvement and
evidence to
demonstrate good
governance (annual
governance
statement)

Ensuring that the Good.

Framework is
applied to jointly
managed or shared
service
organisations as
appropriate

Ensuring the Good.

performance
information that
accompanies the
financial statements
is prepared on a
consistent and timely
basis and the
statements allow for
comparison with
other similar
organisations

Annual None.
Governance
Statement.

Annual None.
Governance
Statement.

Format None.
follows best
practice.

Supporting Principle 3: Assurance and effective accountability

Requirement of local Assessment| Evidence

authorities to:

1. Ensuring that Good. Recommendations None.
recommendations for from external audit
corrective action acted upon.
made by external Regular

audit are acted upon

communication

between S151
Officer and
External Auditor.

Progress made
against external

153
~ Page 159 ~



Ensuring an effective Good.

internal audit service
with direct access to
members is in place
which provides
assurance with
regard to governance
arrangements and
recommendations are
acted upon

Welcoming peer
challenge, reviews
and inspections from
regulatory bodies and
implementing
recommendations

audit recs are
reported to Audit
Committee

Internal Audit None.

report directly to
Audit

Committee.
Recommendations
from internal audit
acted upon.
Compliance of
Internal Audit
arrangements with
Public Sector
Internal Audit
Standards.
Regular
communication
between S151
Officer and
Internal Auditor.

Corporate Peer  None.

Challenge
undertaken
January 2022. All
recommendations
were
implemented.

OFLOG Best
Value approach
has been
approved by
Council

~ Page 160 ~

154



@ GrantThornton

Audit Findings (ISA 260)
Report for Oadby and
Wigston Borough Council

Year ended 31 March 2025

28 November 2025



O GrantThornton

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Brocks Hill Country Park

Washbrook Lane

Oadby

LE2 5JJ

28 November 2025

-IU Audit Findings for Oadby and Wigston Borough Council for the 31 March 2025
Q

Commercial in Confidence

Grant Thornton UK LLP
103 Colmore Row
Birmingham

B3 3AG

+44(0)121 212 000
www.grantthornton.co.uk

Q
® This Audit Findings presents the observations arising from the audit that are significant to the responsibility of those charged with governance to oversee the
o financial reporting process and confirmation of auditor independence, as required by International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260. Its contents have been discussed

'}’ with management.

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit, in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK), which is directed towards forming and
expressing an opinion on the financial statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance. The audit of the
financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements.

The contents of this report relate only to those matters which came to our attention during the conduct of our normal audit procedures which are designed for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements. Our audit is not designed to test all internal controls or identify all areas of control weakness.
However, where, as part of our testing, we identify control weaknesses, we will report these to you. In consequence, our work cannot be relied upon to disclose all
defalcations or other irregularities, or to include all possible improvements in internal control that a more extensive special examination might identify. This report
has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not accept any responsibility for any
loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for,

any other purpose.

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 8 Finsbury Circus, London, EC2M 7EA. .
A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton
UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the
member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 2



Commercial in Confidence

Y GrantThornton

We encourage you to read our transparency report which sets out how the firm complies with the requirements of the Audit Firm Governance Code and the steps we
have taken to manage risk, quality and internal control particularly through our Quality Management Approach. The report includes information on the firm’s
processes and practices for quality control, for ensuring independence and objectivity, for partner remuneration, our governance, our international network
arrangements and our core values, amongst other things. This report is available at transparency-report-2024-.pdf (grantthornton.co.uk).

We would like to take this opportunity to record our appreciation for the kind assistance provided by the finance team and other staff during our audit.

Richard Anderson

Director
For Grant Thornton UK LLP

~ €971 abed ~

Chartered Accountants

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 8 Finsbury Circus, London, EC2M 7EA. .
A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton
UK LLP is @ member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the
member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 3



~ 19T abed ~

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Contents

Section

Headlines

Materiality
Overview of significant risks identified
Other findings

Communication requirements and other
responsibilities

Audit adjustments
Value for money
Independence considerations

Appendices

Commercia

Pa

The Audit Findings |

I in Confidence

ge

1

14

22

28

32

47

49

54

y



1 Headlines and
status of the audit

The Audit Findings | 5



Headlines

Commercial in Confidence

This page and the following summarises the key findings and other matters arising from the statutory audit of Oadby and Wigston Borough Council (the ‘Council’)
and the preparation of the Council's financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 for the attention of those charged with governance.

Financial statements

Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and
the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit Practice
(the ‘Code’), we are required to report whether, in our

* the Council's financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Council and its
income and expenditure for the year; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Council
Accounting and prepared in accordance with the
Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We are also required to report whether other information
published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) and
Narrative Report), is materially consistent with the
financial statements and with our knowledge obtained
during the audit, or otherwise whether this information
appears to be materially misstated.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Our audit work was completed during August-November, as planned. Our findings are summarised in this
report. We have identified three adjustments to the financial statements that have resulted in a £739,000
adjustment to the Council’s Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The impact on the level
of the Council’s useable reserves is £124,000.

Audit adjustments are detailed from page 33 and 34. We have also raised recommendations for
management as a result of our audit work. These are set out at from page 39. Our follow up of
recommendations from the prior year’s audit are detailed from page 44.

Our work is substantially complete and there are no matters of which we are aware that would require
modification of our audit opinion or material changes to the financial statements, subject to the following
outstanding matters:

* final manager and engagement lead review of audit work;
* receipt of management representation letter; and
* review of the final set of financial statements.

We have concluded that the other information to be published with the financial statements, including the
Annual Governance Statement, is consistent with our knowledge of your organisation and with the
financial statements we have audited.

Our anticipated financial statements audit report opinion will be unmodified.

The Audit Findings | 6



Commercial in Confidence

Headlines

Value for money (VFM) arrangements

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit We have completed our VFM work, which is summarised on page 48, and our detailed commentary is set
Practice (the ‘Code’), we are required to consider out in the separate Interim Auditor’s Annual Report, which was presented to Audit committee on 1 October
whether the Council has put in place proper 2025. We are satisfied that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and and effectiveness in its use of resources. We have not identified any significant weaknesses in
effectiveness in its use of resources. Auditors are arrangements.

! required to report in more detail on the Council's overalll
g-? arrangements, as well as key recommendations on any
® significant weaknesses in arrangements identified during
5 the audit.

~ Auditors are required to report their commentary on the
Council's arrangements under the following specified
criteria:
* Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness;
* Financial sustainability; and
* Governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 7



Commercial in Confidence

Headlines

Statutory duties

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the ‘Act’) also requires us to:
* report to you if we have applied any of the additional powers and duties ascribed to us under the Act; and
, ¢ to certify the closure of the audit.
g We have not exercised any of our additional statutory powers or duties.
Q
2 We have completed the majority of the work required under the Code. However, we cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate in accordance
& with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until confirmation has been received from the NAO that the
! group audit of Whole of Government Accounts has been certified by the CEAG and therefore no further work is required to be undertaken in order to discharge the
auditor’s duties in relation to consolidation returns under paragraph 2.11 of the Code.

We are satisfied that this work does not have a material effect on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025.

Significant matters

We did not encounter any significant difficulties or identify any significant matters arising during our audit.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 8



Commercial in Confidence

Headlines

National context — audit backlog

Government proposals around the backstop

On 30 September 2024, the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 came into force. This legislation introduced a series of backstop dates for locall
Council audits. These Regulations required audited financial statements to be published by the following dates:

* For years ended 31 March 2025 by 27 February 2026
* For years ended 31 March 2026 by 31 January 2027
* For years ended 31 March 2027 by 30 November 2027

= The statutory instrument is supported by the National Audit Office’s (NAO) new Code of Audit Practice 202!. The backstop dates were introduced with the purpose
© of clearing the backlog of historic financial statements and enable to the reset of local audit. Where audit work is not complete, this will give rise to a disclaimer of
: opinion. This means the auditor has not been able to form an opinion on the financial statements.

abed ~

Our 2024/25 audit of the Authority is expected to be completed more than two months in advance of the backstop date.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 9



~ QLT abed ~

Headlines

Implementation of IFRS 16

Implementation of IFRS 16 Leases became effective for local government

bodies from 1 April 2024. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and replaces IAS 17. The
objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a
manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a
basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that leases have on
the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

Local government accounts webinars were provided for our local government
audit entities during March, covering the accounting requirements of IFRS 16.
Additionally, CIPFA has published specific guidance for local Council
practitioners to support the transition and implementation on IFRS 16.
Introduction

IFRS 16 updates the definition of a lease to:

+ “a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration.”

In the public sector the definition of a lease is expanded to include arrangements
with nil consideration. This means that arrangements for the use of assets for
little or no consideration (sometimes referred to as peppercorn rentals) are now
included within the definition of a lease.

IFRS 16 requires the right of use asset and lease liability to be recognised on the
balance sheet by the lessee, except where:

* leases of low value assets
* short-term leases (less than 12 months).

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

This is a change from the previous requirements under IAS 17 where operating
leases were charged to expenditure.

The principles of IFRS 16 also apply to the accounting for PFl liabilities.

The changes for lessor accounting are less significant, with leases still categorised
as operating or finance leases, but some changes when an Council is an
intermediate lessor, or where assets are leased out for little or no consideration.

Impact on the Council

* Based on draft financial statements the Council have not identified any right-
of-use assets and have trivial lease liabilities.

* We performed specific audit procedures to ensure the completeness of recorded
assets. This included reviewing the processes used by the council to capture and
maintain lease data.

» From our work, we identified that the Council did not have a formal process for
identifying right-of use assets. We have included a recommendation on page
43.

* Our work identified no undisclosed material leased or right of use assets.

The Audit Plan | 10



2 Materiality

The Audit Findings | 11



~ 2.1 abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Our approach to materiality

As communicated in our Audit Plan dated March 2025, we determined materiality at the planning stage as £823,000 based on 2.1% of prior year gross expenditure
for the 2023/24 period. At year-end, we have reconsidered planning materiality based on the draft financial statements. We have updated materiality to £736,000
based on 2.1% of gross expenditure reported in the 2024/24 draft statement of accounts. We updated materiality as we judged that the movement was significant.

A recap of our approach to determining materiality is set out below.

Basis for our determination of materiality Performance materiality Specific materiality
* We have determined materiality at £736,000 * We have determined performance materiality at * We deem senior officer remuneration as a sensitive
based on professional judgement in the context of £1478,000, this is based on 65% of headline area for the users of the account and therefore
our knowledge of the Council. materiality. applied a specific materiality. We have determined
* We have used 2.1% of gross expenditure as the * This reflects our risk assessed knowledge of materiality for the disclosure at £11,700.
basis for determining materiality. potgntlol fgr ertrors gccurtrlng. This is thg (t:mlwolunt Reporting threshold
* In setting this benchmark we consider what level of we determing, 1o reduce to an appropriately fow . . . e
misstatement could reasonablu be expected to level the probability that the aggregate of * We will report to you all misstatements identified in
influence the economic decisio%\s of uspers taken on uncorrected and undetected misstatements excess of £36,000, in addition to any matters
the basis of the financial statemnents exceeds materiality for the financial statements as considered to be qualitatively material.
' a whole.

* We have revised the performance materiality due
to the actual gross expenditure changing
significantly from that anticipated at the planning
stage resulting in a review of the appropriateness
of the materiality figure.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 12



Our approach to materiality

A summary of our approach to determining materiality is set out below.

Commercial in Confidence

Council (£) Qualitative factors considered
Materiality for the financial statements 736,000 We have determined financial statement materiality based on a
proportion of the gross expenditure of the council for financial year.
Materiality equates to approximately 2.1% of the gross expenditure for the
2024/25 period.
. Performance materiality 478,000 Based on the internal control environment at the Council we determined
Q‘? that 65% of headline materiality would be an appropriate benchmark.
Q
g Specific materiality for — senior officer remuneration 11,700 We determined a lower materiality for the senior officer remuneration
3 disclosures. Materiality equates to approximately 2.1% of the expenditure
) for the 2024/25 period.
Reporting threshold 36,000 We will report to you all misstatements identified in excess of our reporting

threshold, in addition to any matters considered to be qualitatively
material.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 13



3 Overview of
significant risks
identified

The Audit Findings | 14



~ G/, T abed ~

Overview of audit risks

The below table summarises the significant risks discussed in more detail on the subsequent pages.

Commercial in Confidence

Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as an identified risk of material misstatement for which the assessment of inherent risk is close to the upper end of the
spectrum due to the degree to which risk factors affect the combination of the likelihood of a misstatement occurring and the magnitude of the potential

misstatement if that misstatement occurs.

Other risks are, in the auditor’s judgement, those where the risk of material misstatement is lower than that for a significant risk, but they are nonetheless an area of

focus for our audit.

Change in risk Risk of fraud Level of judgement or
Risk title Risk level since Audit Plan or error estimation uncertainty  Status of work
Management override of controls Significant <—> Fraud High
The revenue cycle includes fraudulent transactions Rebutted > Fraud Low
The expenditure cycle includes fraudulent transactions Rebutted — Fraud Low
Valuation of land and buildings Significant > Error High
Valuation of council dwellings Significant “r Error High
Valuation of the net pension fund liability Significant > Error High

T Assessed risk increase since Audit Plan
— Assessed risk consistent with Audit Plan

Not likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the financial statements
Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

Assessed risk decrease since Audit Plan @® Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 15



~9/T abed ~

Significant risks

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Commercial in Confidence

Key observations

Management override of controls

Under ISA (UK) 240, there is a non-rebuttable
presumption that the risk of management
override of controls is present in all entities.

We have therefore identified management override of

controls, in particular journals, management

estimates and transactions outside the course of

business as a significant risk of material
isstatement.

We have:

evaluated the design and implementation of
management controls over journals;

analysed the journals listing and determined
the criteria for selecting high risk unusual
journals;

identified and tested unusual journals made
during the year and the accounts production
stage for appropriateness and corroboration;

gained an understanding of the accounting
estimates and critical judgements applied by
management and considered their
reasonableness;

evaluated the rationale for any changes in
accounting policies, estimates or significant
unusual transactions, and;

reviewed and tested transfers between the
General Fund and HRA journals.

Our audit work to date has not identified any material
adjustments in relation to override of controls. At the
date of this report, we are still finalising our testing in this
area.

Audit procedures have identified control weaknesses
where internal controls and controls over journal entries
could be improved to enhance the control environment.

We noted that one member of the finance team has
elevated access rights within Integra 2, not
commensurate with their role. In addition, there are no
review of user activities completed by the Council to
ensure unauthorised activity is identified

We have included recommendations on the subsequent
page.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 16



~ /LT abed ~

Significant risks

Commercial in Confidence

Risk identified Audit procedures performed Key observations
The revenue cycle includes fraudulent Despite our rebuttal of this risk, we have Our audit work has not identified any material
transactions undertaken a significant level of work on the adjustments or findings in relation to the risk
Under ISA (UK) 240, there is a rebuttable \A/\;Jthhorltg s revenue streams, as they are material. identified.

e have:

presumed risk of material misstatement due to
the improper recognition of revenue. This
presumption can be rebutted if the auditor
concludes that there is no risk of material
misstatement due to fraud related to revenue
recognition.

We have identified and completed a risk
assessment of all revenue streams for the
Council. We have rebutted the presumed risk
that revenue may be misstated due to the
improper recognition of revenue for all revenue
streams. This is due to the low fraud risk in the
underlying nature of the transaction, or
immaterial nature of the revenue streams both
individually and collectively.

Accounting policies and systems

* Evaluated the Council's accounting policies for
recognition of income for its various income
streams and compliance with the CIPFA Code.

Fees, charges and other service income

* Agreed, on a sample basis, income and year
end receivables from other income to invoices
and cash payment or other supporting
evidence.

Taxation and non-specific grant income

* Income for national nan-domestic rates and
council tax is predicable and therefore we have
conducted substantive analytical procedures.

* For other grants we have sample tested items
back to supporting information and subsequent
receipt, considering accounting treatment
where appropriate.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 17



~ 8/ T abed ~

Significant risks

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Commercial in Confidence

Key observations

The expenditure cycle includes fraudulent
transactions

Practice note 10: Audit of financial statements of
Public Sector Bodies in the United Kingdom
(PN10) states that the risk of material
misstatement due to fraud related to
expenditure may be greater than the risk of
material misstatement due to fraud related to
revenue recognition for public sector bodies.

We have identified and completed a risk
assessment of all expenditure streams for the
Council. We have considered the risk that
expenditure may be misstated due to the
improper recognition of expenditure for all
expenditure streams and concluded that there is
not a significant risk. This is due to the low fraud
risk in the underlying nature of the transaction,
or immaterial nature of the expenditure streams
both individually and collectively.

Despite our rebuttal of this risk, we have
undertaken a significant level of work on the
Council’s expenditure streams. We have:

* Updated our understanding of the Council's
business processes associated with accounting
for expenditure;

* Evaluated the Council's accounting policies for
recognition of expenditure for its various
material expenditure streams and compliance
with the CIPFA Code; and

* Agreed, on a sample basis, expenditure and
year end creditors to invoices and cash
payment or other supporting evidence.

Our audit work to date has not identified any
material adjustments or findings in relation to the
rink identified.

We have conclusions on some samples
outstanding. With the most significant being the
Council’s treatment of passported DFG
expenditure. We will provide a verbal update, when
this report is presented to Audit Committee.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 18



Significant risks

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Key observations

Commercial in Confidence

Valuation of land and buildings

Uncertainty relating to the revaluation of land
and buildings

The revaluation of land and buildings should be
performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that carrying amounts are not materially

, different from those that would be determined

Q'? at the end of the reporting period.

& The Council revalues its land and buildings

H, every year to ensure that the carrying value is

© not materially different from the current value at
the financial statements date. The valuations
represent a significant estimate by management
in the financial statements due to the size of the
numbers involved and the sensitivity of these

estimates to changes in the key assumptions.

We have:

Evaluated management’s processes and
assumptions for the calculation of the estimates, the
instruction issued to valuation experts and the scope
of their work;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuation expert;

Written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which
the valuations were carried out to ensure that the
requirements of the CIPFA code are met;

Challenged the information and assumptions used
by the valuer to assess completeness and
consistency with our understanding;

Tested, on a sample basis, revaluations made during
the year to see if they had been input correctly into
the Council’s asset register and accounted for
correctly; and

Evaluated the assumptions made by management
for those assets not revalued during the year and
how management has satisfied themselves that
these are not materially different to current value at
year end.

Our audit work has not identified any material
adjustments or findings in relation to the

valuation of land and buildings.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 19



Significant risks

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Commercial in Confidence

Key observations

Valuation of council dwellings

Uncertainty relating the revaluation of council dwellings

The Council contracts an expert to provide annual
valuations of council dwellings, based on guidance

1 issued by the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and

U Communities. They are valued using a beacon
< approach, based on existing use value discounted by
— the relevant social housing factor (EUV-SH).

0
© The key inputs into the valuation are the social housing

factor, consideration of market movements and
determination of the beacons.

The valuation represents a significant estimate by

management in the financial statement due to the size

of the numbers involved and the sensitivity of the
estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore have identified the valuation of council
dwellings to be a significant risk.

We have:

* Evaluated management’s processes and assumptions

for the calculation of the estimates, the instruction
issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work;

Evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the valuation expert;

Written to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the
valuations were carried out to ensure that the
requirements of the CIPFA code are met;

Challenged the information and assumptions used by
the valuer to assess completeness and consistency with
our understanding, and;

Tested, on a sample basis, revaluations made during
the year to see if they had been input correctly into the
Council’s asset register and accounted for correctly.

Our audit work has not identified any
material adjustments or findings in
relation to the valuation of council
dwellings.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 20



Significant risks

Risk identified

Audit procedures performed

Commercial in Confidence

Key observations

Valuation of net pension liability

The net pension fund liability, as reflected in the Balance
Sheet, represents a significant estimate in the financial

statements.

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved and the
sensitivity of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

The methods applied in the calculation of the IAS 19
estimates are routine and commonly applied by all actuarial
- firms in line with the requirements set out in the Code.

)
@ The source data used by the actuaries to produce the IAS 19
i estimates is provided by administering authorities and

= employers. We do not consider this to be a significant risk as

! this is easily verifiable.

The actuarial assumptions used are the responsibility of the
entity but should be set on the advice given by the actuary.
A small change in the key assumptions (discount rate,
inflation rate, salary increase and life expectancy) can have
a significant impact on the estimated IAS 19 asset/

liability. We have therefore concluded that there is a
significant risk of material misstatement in the IAS 19
estimate due to the assumptions used in the calculation.
Further, the Council has had to consider the potential impact
of ‘IFRIC 14 IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset’.
Because of this we have assessed the recognition and
valuation of the pension asset as a significant risk.

We have:

Updated our understanding of the processes and controls put in
place by management to ensure that the Council’s pension fund
net liability is not materially misstated and evaluate the design of

the associated controls;

Evaluated the instructions issued by management to their
management expert (an actuary) for this estimate and the scope

of the actuary’s work;

Assessed the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
actuary who carried out the Council’s pension fund valuation;

Assessed the accuracy and completeness of the information
provided by the Council to the actuary to estimate the liability;

Tested the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and
disclosures in the notes to the core financial statements with the

actuarial report from the actuary;

Obtained assurances from the auditor of Leicestershire Pension
Fund as to the controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of
membership data, contributions data and benefits and fund

assets valuations sent to the actuary

Undertaken procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the
actuarial assumptions made by reviewing the report of the
consulting actuary (as auditor’s expert) and performing any
additional procedures suggested within the report, and;

Reviewed management’s assessment under IFRIC 14 to determine
whether any additional onerous liability should be recognised.

Our audit work on the Council’s
IFRIC 14 assessment has
identified an adjustment to the
net pension fund liability above
our trivial threshold and a
material disclosure adjustment.
See pages 34 and 36.

We have reviewed the IAS19
assurances from the auditor of
the Leicestershire Pension Fund,
they identified a misstatement in
the total reported pension fund
assets, this results in an
estimated £44,000 variance in
the Council’s share. This does
not impact the balance sheet,
due the IFRIC 14 adjustment.

No other issues were identified in
respect of the valuation of the
net pension fund liability.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 21



L4 Other findings

The Audit Findings | 22



~ €8T abed ~

Other findings — key judgements and estimates

This section provides commentary on key estimates and judgements in line with the enhanced requirements for auditors.

Assessment:

® [Red] We disagree with the estimation process or judgements that underpin the estimate and consider the estimate to be potentially materially misstated
[Amber] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider optimistic
[Grey] We consider the estimate is unlikely to be materially misstated however management’s estimation process contains assumptions we consider cautious
[Green] We consider management’s process is appropriate and key assumptions are neither optimistic or cautious

Commercial in Confidence

Key judgement Summary of management’s approach Auditor commentary Assessment
or estimate
Valuation of land  Other land and buildings comprises of specialised assets We have:

and buildings

£23.3m at 31
March 2025

such as leisure centres and libraries, which are required to
be valued at depreciated replacement cost (DRC) at year
end, reflecting the cost of a modern equivalent asset
necessary to deliver the same service provision. The
remainder of other land and buildings are not specialised
in nature and are required to be valued at existing use in
value (EUV) at year end. The Council has engaged an
external valuer to complete the valuation of properties as
at 31/3/2025. All land and building assets were revalued in
2024/25.

The total year end valuation of land and buildings was
£23.3m, a net decrease of £0.1m from 2023/24 (£23.4m).

* deepened our risk assessment procedures performed
including understanding processes and controls around
the identification and determination of the estimate;

* not identified any issues with the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate;

* not identified any concerns over the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert used
by the Council;

¢ considered the movements in the valuations of individual
assets and confirmed their consistency with national
indices; and

* not identified any indicators of management bias in
determining the estimate or evidence that might
contradict management’s assessment.

We consider
management’s
process is
appropriate and
key assumptions
are neither
optimistic or
cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 23



~ 18T abed ~

Other findings — key judgements and estimates

Key judgement
or estimate

Summary of management’s approach

Auditor commentary

Commercial in Confidence

Assessment

Valuation of
council dwellings

£78.7m at 31
March 2025

The Council owns 1,178 dwellings and revalues these
properties in accordance with DCLG’s Stock Valuation for
Resource Accounting guidance. The guidance stipulates
that either the use of beacon methodology or discounted

cash flow can be used to value council dwelling properties.

The Council has applied the beacon valuation method
which entails a detailed valuation of representative
property types which is then applied to similar properties.
The Council has engaged an external valuer to complete
the valuation of these properties. The year end valuation
of council dwellings was £78.7m, a net increase of £0.3m
from 2023/24 (£78.4m).

We have:

deepened our risk assessment procedures performed
including understanding processes and controls around
the identification and determination of the estimate;

not identified any issues with the completeness and
accuracy of the underlying information used to
determine the estimate;

no concerns over the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the valuation expert used by the Council;

considered the movements in the valuations of individual
assets and their consistency with national indices;

not identified any material errors within the disclosures
in the financial statements; and

considered management bias in determining the
estimate and evaluated evidence that might contradict
management’s assessment.

We have not identified any issues from our work.

We consider
management’s
process is
appropriate and
key assumptions
are neither
optimistic or
cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 24



~ GgT abed ~

Other findings — key judgements and estimates

Key judgement
or estimate

Summary of
management’s approach

Auditor commentary

Commercial in Confidence

Assessment

Valuation of net
pension liability
£7.1m at 31 March
2025

IFRIC 14 addresses
the extent to which
an IAS 19 surplus
can be recognised
on the Balance
Sheet as an asset
and whether any
additional liabilities
are required in
respect of onerous
funding
commitments.

The Council’s net pension
liability at 31 March 2025 is
£7.1m (PY £8.5m) comprising
the Leicestershire Pension
Fund funded and unfunded
defined benefit pension
scheme obligations. The
Council uses Hymans
Robertson to provide
actuarial valuations of the
Council’s assets and
liabilities derived from this
scheme. A full actuarial
valuation is required every
three years.

The latest full actuarial
valuation of the
Leicestershire Pension Fund
was completed for 31 March
2022. Given the significant
value of the net pension fund
liability, small changes in
assumptions can result in
significant valuation
movements.

We have:

assessed mcmogement’s expert;

used PwC as auditor’s expert to assess the actuary and the assumptions made by the

actuary — see table below for the comparison made;

confirmed that the Council’s share of LGPS pension assets is in line with expectations;

confirmed that the increase in the estimate is reasonable;

assessed the approach taken by the actuary;

reviewed management’s assessment under IFRIC 14 to determine whether any
additional onerous liability was appropriately recognised;

performed procedures around the completeness and accuracy of the underlying
information used to determine the estimate; and

reviewed the adequacy of the disclosure of the estimate in the financial statements.

Actuary
Assumption value PwC range Assessment

Discount rate
Pension increase rate
Salary growth

Life expectancy — Males
currently aged 45/65

Life expectancy — Females
currently aged 45/65

24.2 (25.8)

5.8%-5.85%
2.7%-2.8%
3.25%-5.25%

Individual employer
level

Individual employer
level

Reasonable
Reasonable

Reasonable

Reasonable

Reasonable

We consider
management’s
process is
appropriate and
key assumptions
are neither
optimistic or
cautious

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 25



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings — Information Technology

This section provides an overview of results from our assessment of the Information Technology (IT) environment and controls therein which included identifying risks
from IT related business process controls relevant to the financial audit. This table below includes an overall IT General Control (ITGC) rating per IT application and
details of the ratings assigned to individual control areas.

ITGC control area rating

Technology acquisition, Related
IT Overall ITGC Security development and Technology significant
application Level of assessment performed rating management maintenance infrastructure risks
Integra 2- Management
! general ITGC assessment (design effectiveness) override of
ledger Amber Amber Green Green controls

Q
«Q
(¢
[ERN

% We have summarised the control deficiencies identified on the following page. These are considered non-significant deficiencies relevant to the audit of the financial
, statements. When taking these into account in aggregation, we have provided an overall ITGC rating as amber.

Assessment:

® [Red] Significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements
[Amber] Non-significant deficiencies identified in IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements/significant deficiencies identified but with sufficient mitigation of relevant risk
[Green] IT controls relevant to the audit of financial statements judged to be effective at the level of testing in scope

@ [Black] Not in scope for assessment

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 26



Commercial in Confidence

Other findings - Information Technology

Issue
Inadequate control over privileged systems access in Integra 2 Auditor view
During our review of user accounts, we identified one member of the For each user identified as having privileged system access, management should:
finance team who had elevated access rights, not commensurate of their . . . .. .
| * Review the requirement for the account to be assigned privileged access;
role.
Users with administrative privileges at application level can bypass internal * Implement mitigating controls to safeguard the account, and;
, control mechanisms and may compromise the integrity of financial data. ~ * Frequently monitor activities performed using the account.

Q‘? Without adequate oversight over the user there is an increased risk of
Q unauthorised or inappropriate changes to underlying data.

£ Lack of review of information security logs Auditor view

~ We identified that there is no review of activities, performed by individuals |, 2022/23 we raised a recommendation that management should consider

with privileged access to Integra2. There is a risk that superusers could be \yhether a central review of all super user activity can be undertaken to mitigate
making unauthorised changes to the system without management being the risk of undetected, unauthorised activity.

aware.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 27



5 Communication
requirements and
other responsibilities

The Audit Findings | 28



~ 68T abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Other communication requirements

Issue

Commentary

Matters in relation to fraud

Matters in relation to related
parties

Matters in relation to laws
and regulations

Written representations

Confirmation requests from
third parties

Disclosures

Audit evidence and
explanations

Significant difficulties

We have previously discussed the risk of fraud with the Audit Committee. We have not been made aware of any incidents in the
period and no other issues have been identified during the course of our audit procedures.

Through audit procedures we identified two undisclosed related parties, where Council members held directorships and
transactions in year have been assessed as material to the related party entity. Refer to page 35 for details of the adjustment
made by management. We have also raised a recommendation for the Council to complete procedures around assessing the
completeness of the disclosure. Refer to page 42 for details.

You have not made us aware of any significant incidences of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations, and we have not
identified any incidences from our audit work.

A letter of representations will be requested from the Council upon completion of our work.

We requested from management permission to send confirmation requests to the Council’s banking and treasury partners. This
permission was granted and the requests were sent and have been received as part of our final accounts work.

Our review found no material omissions in the financial statements
Allinformation and explanations requested from management was provided.

No significant difficulties have been noted.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 29



~ 06T abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Other responsibilities

Issue

Commentary

Going concern

In performing our work on going concern, we have had reference to Statement of Recommended Practice — Practice Note 10: Audit of financial
statements of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom (Revised 2024). The Financial Reporting Council recognises that for particular sectors,
it may be necessary to clarify how auditing standards are applied to an entity in a manner that is relevant and provides useful information to the
users of financial statements in that sector. Practice Note 10 provides that clarification for audits of public sector bodies.

Practice Note 10 sets out the following key principles for the consideration of going concern for public sector entities:

* The use of the going concern basis of accounting is not a matter of significant focus of the auditor’s time and resources because the
applicable financial reporting frameworks envisage that the going concern basis for accounting will apply where the entity’s services will
continue to be delivered by the public sector. In such cases, a material uncertainty related to going concern is unlikely to exist, and so a
straightforward and standardised approach for the consideration of going concern will often be appropriate for public sector entities

* For many public sector entities, the financial sustainability of the reporting entity and the services it provides is more likely to be of significant
public interest than the application of the going concern basis of accounting. Our consideration of the Council’s financial sustainability is
addressed by our value for money work, which is covered elsewhere in this report.

Practice Note 10 states that if the financial reporting framework provides for the adoption of the going concern basis of accounting on the basis
of the anticipated continuation of the provision of a service in the future, the auditor applies the continued provision of service approach set out
in Practice Note 10. The financial reporting framework adopted by the Council meets this criteria, and so we have applied the continued
provision of service approach. In doing so, we have considered and evaluated:

* the nature of the Council and the environment in which it operates

* the Council’s financial reporting framework

* the Council’s system of internal control for identifying events or conditions relevant to going concern

* management’s going concern assessment.

On the basis of this work, we have obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to enable us to conclude that:
* a material uncertainty related to going concern has not been identified; and

* management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 30



~ 16T abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Other responsibilities

Issue

Commentary

Other information

Matters on which we report
by exception

Specified procedures for
Whole of Government
Accounts

We are required to give an opinion on whether the other information published together with the audited financial statements
(including the Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report), is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

No inconsistencies have been identified. We plan to issue an unmodified opinion in this respect.

We are required to report on a number of matters by exception:

* if the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with disclosure requirements set out in CIPFA/SOLACE guidance or is
misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we are aware from our audit

+ if we have applied any of our statutory powers or duties
* where we are not satisfied in respect of arrangements to secure value for money and have reported a significant weakness.

We have nothing to report on these matters

We are required to carry out specified procedures (on behalf of the NAO) on the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA)
consolidation pack under WGA group audit instructions.

Note that work is not required as the Council does not exceed the threshold.

Certification of the closure
of the audit

Due to the timetable for the Whole of Government Accounts, we are unable to issue the certificate alongside the audit opinion.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 31



6 Audit adjustments

The Audit Findings | 32



~ €6T abed ~

Audit adjustments

Commercial in Confidence

We are required to report all non-trivial misstatements to those charged with governance, whether or not the accounts have been adjusted by management.

Impact of adjusted misstatements

All adjusted misstatements are set out in detail below, along with the impact on the key statements and the reported net expenditure for the year ending 31 March

2025.
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure Impact on total net
Statement Balance Sheet expenditure Impact on general fund
Detail £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Depreciation
On recalculation of the annual depreciation charge for the Council’s
property plant and equipment we identified for two building assets
and council dwelling acquisitions that depreciation had been
calculated using an inaccurate useful economic life and not in line
with the Council’s accounting policy.
Credit Cost of services- HRA Expenditure (63) (63) Nil
Credit Other operating expenditure (837) (837) Nil
Credit Surplus on revaluation of PPGE (266) (266) Nil
Debit Property, Plant and Equipment 1,166 Nil

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 33



~ 6T abed ~

Audit adjustments

Commercial in Confidence

Comprehensive Income and Balance Impact on total Impact on
Expenditure Statement Sheet net expenditure general fund
Detail £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Net Pension Fund Liability
During the audit, it was noted that the Council had a net asset position, whose benefit
based on the actuary asset ceiling asset assessment was to be floored at zero with an
additional pension liability recognised. Management has appropriately processed a £13.
265m asset ceiling adjustment to reflect an appropriate adjusted net liability as at 31
March 2025.
The effect on the current year financial statements is as follows:
Dr Remeasurement of the net defined pension liability 309 309 Nil
Cr Net Pension Fund Liability (309) Nil
Debtors
The disclosure for audit fees did not agree to the fees communicated in the audit plan. This
resulted from an incorrect classification between Audit fees, payments in advance and
creditors.
The effect on the current year financial statements is summarised below, where the
variance between the adjustment to the CIES and the general fund relates to impact on the
HRA.
Dr Cost of services expenditure 120 120 @at)
Dr Short term creditors 35
Cr Short term debtors (145) Nil
Overall Impact of Audit Adjustments (739) 739 (739) 111)

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 34



~ G6T abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Audit adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure Misclassification or change identified Adjusted?
Note 11: Property Plant We noted that the Council holds £2,305k of assets at nil net book value in their fixed asset register. A verification v
and Equipment exercise done by management confirmed that assets with a total value of £1,117k had been disposed of/or could not be
located. As a result, gross book value and accumulated depreciation of property plant and equipment in the disclosure
is overstated by £1,117k. This had no impact on the Balance Sheet.
Note 14:Debtors The presentation of the note does not comply with the CIPFA code. The Council disaggregate debtors balances by v
central government bodies, other local authorities and other individuals. Per the code the note should be disaggregated
into amounts receivable from trade, customers, prepayments and other amounts.
Note 23: Expenditure We noted discrepancies between the outturn report submitted to Cabinet and the figures presented under the column v
and Funding Analysis titled “Net Expenditure chargeable to the General Fund and HRA balances”. The variances are material and should be
supported with a reconciliation and sufficient narrative to aid the understanding of users.
Note 27: Related parties ~ We noted two undisclosed related party transactions totalling £7,500, where councillors held directorship in entities v
which had transacted with the Council in the period. Although these transactions are not material from the Council’s
perspective, they are considered material to third party.
Note 28: Remuneration During our review of the Council’s disclosure of payments made to senior employees by post, we noted that the v
of Senior Staff schedule included managers whose remuneration exceeded £50,000 per annum. The disclosure should be limited to
those individuals who appropriately meet the definition of a senior officer per the CIPFA Code.
Note 28: Remuneration We noted through audit procedures over Officer’s Salary exceeding £60,000, that reported totals did not align with v

of Senior Staff

payroll data received. The band £50,000-£55,000 was disclosed as having 7 employees, whereas our review indicates
it should be 5 employees. The band £55,000 — £60,000 was disclosed as having 1 employee, whereas our review
indicates it should be 3 employees and from the review we realised 1 employee whose salary falls within band £90,000 -
£95,000 was excluded from the calculation.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 35



Audit adjustments

Misclassification and disclosure changes

Commercial in Confidence

The table below provides details of misclassification and disclosure changes identified during the audit which have been made in the final set of financial statements.

Disclosure

Misclassification or change identified

Adjusted?

Note 29: Defined
benefit pensions
schemes

Note 29: Defined
benefit pensions
scheme

Note 29: Defined
benefit pensions
scheme

Note 31: Audit costs

l
0
Q

«Q
(¢
[EEN
©
(o3}

l

Accounting policies

Throughout

We noted inconsistencies between the amounts disclosed in the CIES, Note 21 Pensions Reserve and Note 29 Defined
Benefit Pension Schemes. The correct balance relating to the remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, included
in the CIES and Note 21, is £710k. The balance in Note 29 is understated by £306k.

The effect of the asset ceiling including additional liability that has been recognised in the accounts is £7,850k. Upon
recalculation, the balance should have been £7,424k. In order to arrive at the described position, the Council should have
reported £13,571k as effect of the asset ceiling, resulting in a £5,8121k difference.

The disclosure did not have sufficient detail of the effect of IFRIC 14, including the breakdown of how the asset was
calculated and sufficient narrative to comply with the CIPFA Code.

Through reconciliation between the draft statement of accounts and the actuarial report we noted a variance of £306k in
relation to the return on plan assets. The Council has disclosed the balance of £269k, which was not consistent with the
actuary who reported and amount of £575k. This has no impact on the balance sheet due to the asset ceiling adjustment.

The disclosure for audit fees of £127k did not agree to the fees communicated in the audit plan of £145k. The note
disclosed prior year fees, professional fees for pension reports. This resulted to an overall difference of £3%9k. The note has
been updated to disclose the external audit fees which reconciles to the audit plan.

A number of non-material accounting policies have been identified through our review of the accounts. We have requested
that management consider removing.

A number of page referencing, formatting, grammar and mathematical errors typographical errors have been identified
throughout the financial statements. These have been amended by management

v

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 36



~ /6T abed ~

Audit adjustments

Impact of unadjusted misstatements

Our work to date has identified no unadjusted misstatements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

The Audit Findings | 37



l

~ 86T abed

Commercial in Confidence

Impact of unadjusted misstatements in the prior year

The table below provides details of misstatements identified during the prior year audit which were not adjusted for within the final set of financial statements for
2023/24, and the resulting impact upon the 2024/25 financial statements. We also present the cumulative impact of both prior year and current year unadjusted
misstatements on the 2024/25 financial statements. The Audit Committee is required to approve management's proposed treatment of all items recorded within the

table below.

Comprehensive

Income and
Expenditure

Impact on total Impact on general

Statement Balance Sheet net expenditure fund
Reason for

Detail £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 not adjusting
Invoices raised after year end No CIES impact as
The testing of invoices raised after year end identified an item of accounting for the
business rates income relating to 2022/23 that had been accounted 0 0 0 income is required,
for in 2024/25. As this would constitute an immaterial prior year but we note it was
error, the correct accounting treatment would be to recognise the in the incorrect
income in 2023/24. As a result, income for 2024/25 is overstated.. period.
Unsupported disposals and scrapped assets
Our testing identified some assets where management were unable Auditor estimate,
to provide sufficient evidence to support disposal and derecognition. 0 75 0 0 balance not
This estimated misstatement continues to impact the closing material
balance sheet.
Overall impact of prior year unadjusted misstatements 0 75 0 0]
Cumulative impact of prior year and current year unadjusted 0 75 0 0]

misstatements on 2024/25 financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 38



~ 66T abed ~

Action plan

Commercial in Confidence

We set out here our recommendations for the Council which we have identified as a result of issues identified during our audit. The matters reported here are limited
to those deficiencies that we have identified during the course of our audit and that we have concluded are of sufficient importance to merit being reported to you in

accordance with auditing standards.

Assessment Issue and risk

Recommendations

Inadequate control over privileged systems access in
Integra 2

We recommend that for each user identified as having privileged system
access, management should:

During our review of user accounts, we identified one * Review the requirement for the account to be assigned privileged access;
metmber of the flrgonc;etge.am \l/vho had elevated access rights, Implement mitigating controls to safeguard the account, and;
not commensurate of their role.
Users with administrative privileges at application level can * Frequently monitor activities performed using the account.
bypass internal control mechanisms and may compromise Management response
the integrity of financial data. The current superuser is our systems administrator for Integra 2. We will add an
Without adequate oversight over the user there is an additional superuser (the Finance Manager), and they will regularly scrutinise
increased risk of unauthorised or inappropriate changes to each other’s activities.
underlying data.

Key

@ High — Significant effect on control system and/or financial statements
Medium — Limited impact on control system and/or financial statements

® Low — Best practice for control systems and financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 39



~ 00¢ abed ~

Action plan continued

Commercial in Confidence

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

Journal Approval We recommend that the Council consider adopting a review process whereby
We noted from our risk assessment of journal entry controls ~ the S151 officer is not required to approve journals.
that the S151 officer has approved journals. This has not Management response
been the case for the full period, however, was required due This is unavoidable given the small size of the finance team. There are only three
to key finance team members leaving the organisation. This officers that can approve manual journals, and the possibility that both of the
may cause a segregation of duties risk and reduce the two non-S151 officers are on annual leave or sick leave at the same time will
integrity of the review process. always exist.
Self Approval of Journals We recommend that the Council review their journals approval processes to
We noted from our risk assessment of journal entry controls ensure that where journals are created, they are then not approved by the same
that journals can be created and approved by the same individual.
individual, where another member of the finance team posts  Management response
the journal to ledger. This has not been the case for the full Journal policy has been amended. Finance officers who are sent journals for
period, however, was required due to key finance team upload are under instruction to send them for approval to a different officer than
members leaving the organisation. This may cause a the one sending them.
segregation of duties risk and reduce the integrity in the
review process and financial information.

Key

@ High — Significant effect on control system and/or financial statements
Medium — Limited impact on control system and/or financial statements

® Low — Best practice for control systems and financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 40



~ T0g abed ~

Action plan continued

Commercial in Confidence

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations

Useful Economic Lives We recommend that management complete an assessment of the useful
We noted from our testing instances where the useful economic lives adopted for plant, property and equipment and ensure that they
economic lives of assets used to calculate depreciation were ~ @re consistent with the accounting policy.
not in line with_thfe Council’s.policg. There is a risk that the Management response
annual depreciation charge is not accurate and does not This will be reviewed as part of an overall review of the asset register.
reflect an appropriate rate of depreciation.
Nil net book value assets We recommend that management adopt a formal annual process to verify the
We noted from our testing that the Council does not have o existence of assets held.
formal process .to verify the existence of ogsets held at year Management response
end. We identified £2,305k of fully depreciated VPE and This will be reviewed as part of an overall review of the asset register.
£835k of fully deprecated intangible assets. Management
have made an in year adjustment to derecognise assets
which could not be verified. There is a risk that assets held on
the balance sheet no longer exist.

Key

@ High — Significant effect on control system and/or financial statements

Medium — Limited impact on control system and/or financial statements

® Low — Best practice for control systems and financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings |



~ 20g abed ~

Action plan continued

Assessment Issue and risk

Commercial in Confidence

Recommendations

Related Parties

We noted from our testing two undisclosed related party
transactions totalling £7,500, where councillors held
directorship in entities which had transacted with the
Council in the period. While we have not identified any
material, omitted transactions there remains a risk that

We recommend that when compiling the related parties disclosure management
consider the concept of materiality for both parties to ensure the disclosure is
complete and accurate.

Management response
Related parties forms for 25/26 will be amended to require disclosure of all
transactions between the Council and entities in which Councillors have an

balances recorded are not accurate and complete. interest, regardless of significance.
Collection Fund We recommend that upon production of the accounts, listings are readily
Throughout the audit we experienced significant delays in available to provide to external audit to ensure samples can be selected in a
obtaining collection fund related evidence. Specifically, timely manner.
transaction listings for reliefs, debtors and creditors. Management response
This was due to long-term sickness. The officer responsible for this area has now
been replaced.
Key

@ High — Significant effect on control system and/or financial statements
Medium — Limited impact on control system and/or financial statements

® Low — Best practice for control systems and financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 42



~ £0¢ abed ~

Action plan continued

Commercial in Confidence

Assessment Issue and risk Recommendations
[ Implementation of IFRS 16 We recommend that management complete and document a review of their
Low We noted that a completeness review of all leases held by lease arrangements to ensure that all leases have been considered as part of an

the Council was undertaken but not documented for the
purposes of IFRS 16 implementation. This increases the risk
that significant leases may be omitted from the IFRS 16

[FRS16 assessment.

Management response
A thorough review of all known and potential lease arrangements will be

assessment. conducted.
[ Unpresented Cheques We recommend that management consider the likelihood of these cheques
Low We noted, from review of the bank reconciliation, that the being realised, considering the elapsed time and write off accordingly.
Council have recurring unpresented cheques totalling Management response
£18,322. The cheques are dated between 2010 and 2021. These will be investigated and cleared during 2025-26. The manager of the
relevant section has already been notified.
Key

@ High — Significant effect on control system and/or financial statements
Medium — Limited impact on control system and/or financial statements

® Low — Best practice for control systems and financial statements

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 43



~ 0¢ abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Follow up of prior year recommendations

We identified the following issues in the audit of the Council’s 2023/2%4 financial statements, which resulted in four recommendations being reported in our 2023/24
Audit Findings Report, and one recommendation outstanding from 2022/23. We are pleased to report that management have implemented three out of five
recommendations.

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Complete

Complete

Data provided to external experts

The pensionable pay data provided to the actuary only
included pensionable pay for active employees, but should
also have included pensionable pay for leavers during the
year. There is a risk that estimates included within the
financial statements are based on incorrect source data,
leading to a misstatement.

We recommend that management implement controls to
ensure that all relevant source data is provided to external
experts.

Obtaining declarations of interests

There was one instance of a declarations form not being
completed by a sitting Councillor. In 2023/24 we have
undertaken alternative procedures to confirm the related
party transaction disclosure in the accounts is complete.
However, there is a risk that transactions with a related party
could be omitted from the disclosure in the accounts, where
declarations are not returned.

We recommend that the Council obtains and holds
declarations for all Councillors and all senior officers, and
that they are updated on a regular basis.

Audit work completed identified that there were no omissions in data provided
to the actuary.

Declarations are sent out annually and management continue to chase for
completion, as necessary.

Our audit work completed, identified no delays of completion of declarations of
interest.

=" T
re-Aurdit-Fmdimgs—t—i




~ GOg abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment

Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Complete

In progress

Coding of Collection Fund income and precepts and levies

Collection fund income and precepts and levies expenditure
were charged directly to reserves instead of the relevant CIES
account codes. This was due to coding errors and so while
the net of the two accounts appear correct, we could only
verify the split between the collection fund income and
precepts and levies expenditure by using the work carried out
in Council working papers.

We recommend that management should consider
implementing a timely reconciliation of expenditure and
income categories to detect any errors in advance of the final
accounts audit.

IT controls — General Ledger

We identified that there is no review of activities, performed
by individuals with superuser access (Admins) to Integra?2.
There is a risk that superusers could be making unauthorised
changes to the system without management being aware.

Management should consider whether a central review of all
superuser activity could be undertaken to mitigate the risk of
undetected unauthorised activity.

Audit work has identified that management have addressed this
recommendation and also, improved the quality of their collection fund working
papers so that reconciliations are easy to follow and specific balances are
easily identifiable.

We have confirmed that there is no central review of superuser activity.
Management update

A general review of Integra superuser activities will be conducted by ICT.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 45



~ 90¢ abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Follow up of prior year recommendations

Assessment Issue and risk previously communicated

Update on actions taken to address the issue

Unsupported disposals and scrapped assets

In progress

Our testing of asset disposals identified some assets where
management were unable to provide sufficient evidence to show
appropriate disposal and derecognition. There is a risk that
disposals could have occurred in a previous or future financial
year, or not at all.

We recommend that management consider retaining clearer
records on assets sales and disposals in order to satisfy audit
requirements.

Management confirmed that from January 2025 an annual review of
assets was implemented to ensure that any assets disposed of or
scrapped are identified and removed from the asset register.

Audit testing of the disposals balance did not identify any issues in respect
of evidence retention.

Audit testing of property, plant and equipment existence identified two
assets with a net book value of zero that had been disposed of in the
current period but not written out of the asset register. We are still
concluding our work in relation to this testing.

Management response

This will be reviewed as part of an overall review of the asset register.
Record-keeping for future capital projects will be improved.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 46



7 Value for Money
arrangements

The Audit Findings | 47



Commercial in Confidence

Value for Money arrangements

Approach to Value for Money work for the year ended 31 March 2025

The National Audit Office issued its latest Value for Money guidance to auditors in November 2024. The Code requires auditors to consider whether a body has put in
place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Additionally, The Code requires auditors to share a draft of the
Auditor’s Annual Report (AAR) with those charged with governance by 30t November each year from 2024-25. Our draft AAR was reported to audit committee on 1
October 2025.

In undertaking our work, we are required to have regard to three specified reporting criteria. These are as set out below.

o
@
Q
)
o
H ..
®
s (5% =
Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness Financial sustainability Governance
How the body uses information about its costs and How the body plans and manages its resources to How the body ensures that it makes informed
performance to improve the way it manages and ensure it can continue to deliver its services. decisions and properly manages its risks.

delivers its services.

In undertaking this work we have not identified any significant weaknesses in arrangements. Our detailed findings are set out in our Auditor’s Annual Report, which
was presented to Audit Committee in October.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 48



8 Independence
considerations

The Audit Findings | 49



~ QTZ abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Independence considerations

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence
of the firm or covered persons (including its partners, senior managers, managers). In this context, there are no independence matters that we would like to report to
you.

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirement of the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard

Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in February 2025 which sets out supplementary
guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies.

As part of our assessment of our independence we note the following matters:

Matter Conclusions

Relationships with Grant Thornton We are not aware of any relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our integrity, independence and objectivity.

Relationships and Investments held by individuals We have not identified any potential issues in respect of personal relationships with the Council or

investments in the group held by individuals.

Employment of Grant Thornton staff We are not aware of any former Grant Thornton partners or staff being employed, or holding discussions
in respect of employment, by the Council as a director or in a senior management role covering
financial, accounting or control related areas.

Business relationships We have not identified any business relationships between Grant Thornton and the Council.
Contingent fees in relation to non-audit services No contingent fee arrangements are in place for non-audit services provided.
Gifts and hospitality We have not identified any gifts or hospitality provided to, or received from, a member of the Council,

senior management or staff.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention and
consider that an objective reasonable and informed third party would take the same view. The firm and each covered person have complied with the Financial
Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 50



~ 112 abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

Fees and non-audit services

The following tables below sets out the total fees for audit and non-audit services that we have been engaged to provide or charged from the beginning of the
financial year to November 2025, as well as the threats to our independence and safeguards have been applied to mitigate these threats.

The below non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor.

None of the below services were provided on a contingent fee basis.

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton teams within the Grant Thornton International Limited network member firms providing
services to Oadby and Wigston Borough Council. The table summarises all non-audit services which were identified. We have adequate safeguards in place to
mitigate the perceived self-interest threat from these fees.

Audit fees £

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council audit scale fee 2024/25 145,193
Total 145,193

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 51



Commercial in Confidence

Fees and non-audit services

Assurance Service Fees

2023/24 2024/25 Threats

~ 212 abed ~

Service £ £ ldentified Safeguards applied
Certification of Housing 35,640 45,890 For these audit  The level of recurring fee taken on their own are not considered significant in comparison to the
Benefits Subsidy claim related services, total audit fee of £145,193, and in particular to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall.
we consider that Furthermore, each is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to any of them. These
the perceived factors all mitigate the perceived self interest threat to an acceptable level.
threats may Our team has no involvement in the preparation of the grants claims to be certified, and do not
apply: expect material misstatements in the financial statements to arise from the performance of the
. : e Self interest certification work. Although related income and expenditure is included within the financial
Certification of Pooling of 10,000 10,000 (as feesare  statements, the work required in respect of the certification is sperate from the work required to
HOL_JS'ng Capital Receipts recurring) audit the financial statements.
claim » Self review The scope of the work does not include making decisions on behalf of management or
« Management recommending or suggesting any particular course of action for management to follow. Our
team perform these engagements in line with set instructions and reporting framework. Any
amendments made as a result of our work are the responsibility of informed management.
Total 45,640 55,890

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 52



Fees and non-audit services

Total audit and other assurance fees
Audit fee £145,193

Assurance service fees £55,890

The above fees are exclusive of VAT.

The accounts do not currently reconcile to this balance due to 2023/24 assurance service fees being included in the 2024/25 total.

~ €12 abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

This covers all services provided by us and our network to the group/Council, its directors and senior management and its affiliates, that may reasonably be

thought to bear on our integrity, objectivity or independence.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 53



9 Appendices

The Audit Findings | 54%



~ GTZ abed ~

Commercial in Confidence

A. Communication of audit matters with those charged

with governance

Our communication plan

Audit Plan

Audit Findings

Respective responsibilities of auditor and management/those charged with governance

Overview of the planned scope and timing of the audit, form, timing and expected general content of communications
including significant risks

Planned use of internal audit
Confirmation of independence and objectivity

A statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence. Relationships and other
matters which might be thought to bear on independence. Details of non-audit work performed by Grant Thornton UK
LLP and network firms, together with fees charged. Details of safeguards applied to threats to independence

Significant matters in relation to going concern

Views about the qualitative aspects of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting practices including accounting
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures

Significant findings from the audit

Significant matters and issue arising during the audit and written representations that have been sought
Significant difficulties encountered during the audit

Significant deficiencies in internal control identified during the audit

Significant matters arising in connection with related parties

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

The Audit Findings | 55



Commercial in Confidence

A. Communication of audit matters with those charged
with governance

Our communication plan Audit Plan Audit Findings
Identification or suspicion of fraud involving management and/or which results in material misstatement of the financial PY
statements

Non-compliance with laws and regulations

Unadjusted misstatements and material disclosure omissions
|

Expected modifications to the auditor's report, or emphasis of matter

~ 912 abed

ISA (UK) 260, as well as other ISAs (UK), prescribe matters which we are required to communicate with those charged with governance, and which we set out in
the table here.

This document, the Audit Findings, outlines those key issues, findings and other matters arising from the audit, which we consider should be communicated in
writing rather than orally, together with an explanation as to how these have been resolved.

Respective responsibilities

As auditor we are responsible for performing the audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), which is directed towards forming and expressing an opinion on the financial
statements that have been prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged with governance of their responsibilities.

Distribution of this Audit Findings report

Whilst we seek to ensure our audit findings are distributed to those individuals charged with governance, as a minimum a requirement exists for our findings to
be distributed to all the company directors and those members of senior management with significant operational and strategic responsibilities. We are grateful
for your specific consideration and onward distribution of our report, to those charged with governance.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP The Audit Findings | 56



B. Our team and communications

Grant Thornton core team

Richard Anderson

Engagement Lead/
Key Audit Partner

» Key contact for senior
management and Audit
Committee

» Overall quality assurance

Francesca
Hitchman

Audit Manager

 Audit planning

* Resource management

* Performance management

Bonga Mkhize

Audit Senior / In-
charge

+ On-site audit team management
» Day-to-day point of contact
+ Audit fieldwork

reporting
Service delivery Audit reporting Audit progress Technical support
Formal * Annual client service » The Audit Plan + Audit planning meetings * Technical updates
communications review + Audit Progress and Sector + Audit clearance meetings
Update Reports « Communication of issues log

« The Audit Findings

¢ Auditor’s Annual Report
Informal * Open channel for + Communication of audit * Notification of up-coming
communications discussion issues as they arise issues

As part of our overall service delivery we may utilise colleagues who are based overseas, primarily in India and the Philippines. Those colleagues work on a fully
integrated basis with our team members based in the UK and receive the same training and professional development programmes as our UK based team. They work
as part of the engagement team, reporting directly to the Audit Senior and Manager and will interact with you in the same way as our UK based team albeit on a
remote basis. Our overseas team members use a remote working platform which is based in the UK. The remote working platform (or Virtual Desktop Interface) does
not allow the user to move files from the remote platform to their local desktop meaning all audit related data is retained within the UK.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Audit Findings 2024/25 | 57




C. Logistics

The audit timeline Year end:

31 March 2025

Planning Interim

February and March 2025 April 2025

Final

August to November 2025

Completion

November 2025

Audit
Committee
December 2025

Key elements Key elements

* Planning meeting with management
to set audit scope

* Document design
effectiveness

+ Planning requirements checklist of systems and processes

to management » Review of key judgements

+ Agree timetable and deliverables Slne Ssimetes

with management and Audit * Any planned additional

Committee testing.
» Audit team to complete planning * Issue the Audit Plan to
fieldwork management and Audit
Committee

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Key elements

* Audit teams to complete
fieldwork and detailed
testing

+ Weekly update meetings
with management

+ Draft Audit Findings issued

to management

+ Audit Findings meeting
with management

Key elements

+ Audit Findings issued
to Audit Committee

+ Audit Findings presentation
to Audit Committee

 Auditor’s Annual Report

+ Finalise and sign financial
statements and audit report

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council Audit Findings 2024/25 | 58




~ 6TZ abed ~

D. Management letter of representation

We have requested a letter of representation from management. It has been provided as a separate document to management.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

The Audit Findings | 59



~ 0zz abed ~

E. Audit opinion

To be provided on completion of the audit as a separate document.

© 2025 Grant Thornton UK LLP

Commercial in Confidence

The Audit Findings | 60



@ GrantThornton

© 2025 Grant Thornton. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or
more member firms, as the context requires. Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL) and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm
is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.




Ap pe n d iX 4 Commercial in Confidence

[**Prepare on client letterhead**]

Grant Thornton UK LLP
174 Floor

103 Colmore Row
Birmingham

B3 3AG

Date

Dear Grant Thornton UK LLP

Oadby and Wigston Borough Council
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

This representation letter is provided in connection with the audit of the financial statements of Oadby and
Wigston Borough Council (“the Authority”) for the year ended 31 March 2025 for the purpose of
expressing an opinion as to whether the Authority financial statements give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024-25 and applicable law.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief having made such inquiries as we considered
necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, for the preparation of the
Authority’s financial statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015,
International Financial Reporting Standards and the CIPFA/LLASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2024-25 ("the Code"); in particular the financial
statements are fairly presented in accordance therewith.

il.  We have complied with the requirements of all statutory directions affecting the Authority and
these matters have been appropriately reflected and disclosed in the financial statements.

fii.  The Authority has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been no non-
compliance with requirements of any regulatory authorities that could have a material effect on the
financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

iv.  We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal
control to prevent and detect fraud.

v.  Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable. Such accounting estimates include the valuation of other land and buildings,
the valuation of council dwellings and the valuation of the net pension liability. We are satisfied that
the material judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are soundly based, in
accordance with the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. We understand our
responsibilities includes identifying and considering alternative, methods, assumptions or source
data that would be equally valid under the financial reporting framework, and why these alternatives
were rejected in favour of the estimate used. We are satisfied that the methods, the data and the
significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates and their related disclosures are
appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in accordance with
the Code and adequately disclosed in the financial statements.

~ Page 222 ~



Commercial in Confidence

vi.  We confirm that we are satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation of pension
scheme assets and liabilities for International Accounting Standard 19 Employee Benefits
disclosures are consistent with our knowledge. We confirm that all settlements and curtailments
have been identified and properly accounted for. We also confirm that all significant post-
employment benefits have been identified and properly accounted for.

vii.  Except as disclosed in the financial statements:
a. there are no unrecorded liabilities, actual or contingent;
b. none of the assets of the Authority has been assigned, pledged or mortgaged; and

c. there are no material prior year charges or credits, nor exceptional or non-recurring items
requiring separate disclosure.

viii.  Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards and the Code.

ix.  All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which International Financial
Reporting Standards and the Code require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.

x.  The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

xi.  Actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and disclosed in accordance with

the requitements of International Financial Reporting Standards.

xii. ~ We have no plans or intentions that may materially alter the carrying value or classification of assets
and liabilities reflected in the financial statements.

xili. ~ We have updated our going concern assessment. We continue to believe that the Authority’s
tinancial statements should be prepared on a going concern basis and have not identified any
material uncertainties related to going concern on the grounds that:

a.  the nature of the Authority means that, notwithstanding any intention to cease its operations
in their current form, it will continue to be appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting because, in such an event, the services it performs can be expected to continue to
be delivered by related public authorities and preparing the financial statements on a going
concern basis will still provide a faithful representation of the items in the financial
statements;

b.  the financial reporting framework permits the Authority to prepare its financial statements
on the basis of the presumption set out under a) above; and

c.  the Authority’s system of internal control has not identified any events or conditions relevant
to going concern.

We believe that no further disclosures relating to the Authority's ability to continue as a going
concern needs to be made in the financial statements

xiv.  We have considered whether accounting transactions have complied with the requirements of the
Local Government Housing Act 1989 in respect of the Housing Revenue Account ring-fence.

xv.  The Authority has complied with all aspects of ring-fenced grants that could have a material effect
on the Authority’s financial statements in the event of non-compliance.
Information Provided
xvi.  We have provided you with:

a.  access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the
Authority’s financial statements such as records, documentation and other matters;

b. additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of your audit; and

~ Page 223 ~



Commercial in Confidence

c.  access to persons within the Authority from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

xvil. ~ We have communicated to you all deficiencies in internal control of which management is aware.
xvili.  All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements.
xix.  We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may

be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

xx.  We have disclosed to you all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware
of and that affects the Authority and involves:
a.  management;

b. employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
c. others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

xxi.  We have disclosed to you all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud,
affecting the financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts,
regulators or others.

xxii.  We have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance
with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when preparing financial statements.

xxiii.  We have disclosed to you the identity of the Authority's related parties and all the related party
relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

xxiv.  We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be
considered when preparing the financial statements.

Annual Governance Statement

xxv.  We are satisfied that the Annual Governance Statement (AGS) fairly reflects the Authority's risk
assurance and governance framework and we confirm that we are not aware of any significant risks
that are not disclosed within the AGS.

Narrative Report

xxvi.  The disclosures within the Narrative Report faitly reflect our understanding of the Authority's
financial and operating performance over the period covered by the Authority’s financial
statements.

Approval

The approval of this letter of representation was minuted by the Authority’s Audit Committee at its meeting
on date.

Yours faithfully

~ Page 224 ~



Commercial in Confidence

Signed on behalf of the Authority

~ Page 225 ~



	Agenda
	4 Annual Financial Statement (2024/25)
	Appendix 1 - Audited Financial Report (2024/25)
	Appendix 2 - Annual Governance Statement (2024/25)
	Appendix 3 - Audit Findings Report (2024/25)
	Appendix 4 - Draft Letter of Representation (2024/25)


